Pittsburg State University

Request for Proposal (RFP)

RFP Number	001598
Date Issued	July 1, 2021
Closing Date	July 15, 2021; 2:00pm local time
Procurement Officer	Brad Stefanoni; 620.235.4169; bstefanoni@pittstate.edu
Item	Willard Hall Water Heater Replacement
Agency & Location	Pittsburg State University (PSU) in Pittsburg Kansas
Scope	Pittsburg State University is seeking proposals for the Willard Hall Water
	Heater Replacement project. Project will require the "temporary" line
	connecting Dellinger and Willard to be installed and functional before
	August 6th. (This project IS NOT tax exempt.)
Period of Contract	One time award
Bid Submittal	Submit bid by e-mail to <u>bstefanoni@pittstate.edu</u>

- 1. When communicating, always refer to the Request for Proposal number above.
- 2. In order to receive consideration for award, one copy of this "Request for Proposal," a properly completed and signed, must be returned to Pittsburg State University no later than the specified closing time. The University is not responsible for late bids.
- 3. All prices, terms, and conditions must be shown. Additions or conditions not shown on this bid will not be allowed.
- 4. Prompt payment discounts will not be considered in determining the low bid.
- 5. This project IS NOT tax exempt.
- 6. The PSU Director of Purchasing reserves the right to accept or reject any part of this proposal.
- 7. Bid results will not be given to individuals over the phone. Written bid results may be obtained by written request from the procurement officer.
- 8. Contractual Provisions Attachment DA-146a applies to all bids.
- 9. It is hereby agreed that the bidder will, if required by law, comply with the Kansas Act Against Discrimination, K.S.A. 44-1030 et. Seq.
- 10. PSU reserves the right to award in the best interest of the university.

Vendor Name

Total Proposed Price

Contact persons: Lindell Haverstic: 620-235-4974 or <u>lhaverstic@pittstate.edu</u>; Jeff Burns: 620-235-2393 or jgburns@pittstate.edu; Justin Edge: 620-235-4297 or jedge@pittstate.edu

Pittsburg State University

General Provisions/Signature

W9 Form: Vendors who are new to PSU should submit a copy of their W-9 with bid response. The form can be downloaded at <u>www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/fw9.pdf</u>

DA-146a Contractual Provisions: The bidder agrees to accept the provisions of form DA-146a, Contractual Provisions Attachment which is incorporated into all contracts with the State <u>http://www.da.ks.gov/purch/DA-146a.pdf</u>

NEW MATERIALS, SUPPLIES, OR EQUIPMENT: Unless otherwise specified, all materials, supplies or equipment offered by a vendor shall be new, and unused in any regard. All materials, supplies and equipment shall be first class in all respects. Seconds or flawed items will not be acceptable. All materials, supplies or equipment shall be suitable for their intended purpose and, unless otherwise specified, fully assembled and ready for use on delivery.

COMPARABLE PRODUCTS: Bids on comparable products are invited. Indicate appropriate items, brands, model numbers, and specifications. Minor deviations in size and operational characteristics from those set forth in the specification will be considered when such deviations do not alter nor deter Pittsburg State University from accomplishing its intended usage or function. Each bidder must clearly indicate in writing where (if any) their product characteristics deviate from these specifications and explain how their product accomplishes the desired function even though product characteristics may be different.

ACCEPTANCE OR REJECTION: PSU reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids or part of a bid; to waive any informalities or technicalities; clarify any ambiguities in bids; and unless otherwise specified, to accept any item in the bid.

PAYMENT: Payment will be made upon receipt of shipment by PSU.

FREIGHT COST INFORMATION: FOB Destination, Freight Prepaid, and Allowed.

The undersigned certifies that he does not have any substantial conflict of interest sufficient to influence the bidding process on this bid. A conflict of substantial interest is one which a reasonable person would think would compromise the open competitive bid process.

- Legal Name of Person, Firm or Corporation:
- Payment Terms:
- Telephone Number:
- E-mail Address:
- Signature:
- Date:

State of Kansas Department of Administration DA-146a (Rev. 07-19)

CONTRACTUAL PROVISIONS ATTACHMENT

Important: This form contains mandatory contract provisions and must be attached to or incorporated in all copies of any contractual agreement. If it is attached to the vendor/contractor's standard contract form, then that form must be altered to contain the following provision:

The Provisions found in Contractual Provisions Attachment (Form DA-146a, Rev. 07-19), which is attached hereto, are hereby incorporated in this contract and made a part thereof.

The parties agree that the following provisions are hereby incorporated into the contract to which it is attached and made a part thereof, said contract being the _____ day of ______, 20____.

- 1. <u>Terms Herein Controlling Provisions</u>: It is expressly agreed that the terms of each and every provision in this attachment shall prevail and control over the terms of any other conflicting provision in any other document relating to and a part of the contract in which this attachment is incorporated. Any terms that conflict or could be interpreted to conflict with this attachment are nullified.
- 2. <u>Kansas Law and Venue</u>: This contract shall be subject to, governed by, and construed according to the laws of the State of Kansas, and jurisdiction and venue of any suit in connection with this contract shall reside only in courts located in the State of Kansas.
- 3. Termination Due To Lack Of Funding Appropriation: If, in the judgment of the Director of Accounts and Reports, Department of Administration, sufficient funds are not appropriated to continue the function performed in this agreement and for the payment of the charges hereunder, State may terminate this agreement at the end of its current fiscal year. State agrees to give written notice of termination to contractor at least thirty (30) days prior to the end of its current fiscal year and shall give such notice for a greater period prior to the end of such fiscal year as may be provided in this contract, except that such notice shall not be required prior to ninety (90) days before the end of such fiscal year. Contractor shall have the right, at the end of such fiscal year, to take possession of any equipment provided State under the contract. State will pay to the contractual charges incidental to the return of any such equipment. Upon termination of the agreement by State, title to any such equipment shall revert to contractor at the end of the State's current fiscal year. The termination of the contractor.
- 4. <u>Disclaimer Of Liability</u>: No provision of this contract will be given effect that attempts to require the State of Kansas or its agencies to defend, hold harmless, or indemnify any contractor or third party for any acts or omissions. The liability of the State of Kansas is defined under the Kansas Tort Claims Act (K.S.A. 75-6101, *et seq.*).
- 5. <u>Anti-Discrimination Clause</u>: The contractor agrees: (a) to comply with the Kansas Act Against Discrimination (K.S.A. 44-1001, *et seq.*) and the Kansas Age Discrimination in Employment Act (K.S.A. 44-1111, *et seq.*) and the applicable provisions of the Americans With Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. 12101, *et seq.*) (ADA), and Kansas Executive Order No. 19-02, and to not discriminate against any person because of race, color, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, religion, national origin, ancestry, age, military or veteran status, disability status, marital or family status, genetic information, or political affiliation that is unrelated to the person's ability to reasonably perform the duties of a particular job or position; (b) to include in all solicitations or advertisements for employees, the phrase "equal opportunity employer"; (c) to

comply with the reporting requirements set out at K.S.A. 44-1031 and K.S.A. 44-1116; (d) to include those provisions in every subcontract or purchase order so that they are binding upon such subcontractor or vendor; (e) that a failure to comply with the reporting requirements of (c) above or if the contractor is found guilty of any violation of such acts by the Kansas Human Rights Commission, such violation shall constitute a breach of contract and the contract may be cancelled, terminated or suspended, in whole or in part, by the contracting state agency or the Kansas Department of Administration; (f) Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable state and federal anti-discrimination laws and regulations; (g) Contractor agrees all hiring must be on the basis of individual merit and qualifications, and discrimination or harassment of persons for the reasons stated above is prohibited; and (h) if is determined that the contractor has violated the provisions of any portion of this paragraph, such violation shall constitute a breach of contract and the contract and the contract and the contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended, in whole or in part, by the contractor has violated the grovisions of any portion of this paragraph, such violation shall constitute a breach of contract and the contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended, in whole or in part, by the contracting state agency or the Kansas Department of Administration.

- 6. <u>Acceptance of Contract</u>: This contract shall not be considered accepted, approved or otherwise effective until the statutorily required approvals and certifications have been given.
- 7. <u>Arbitration, Damages, Warranties</u>: Notwithstanding any language to the contrary, no interpretation of this contract shall find that the State or its agencies have agreed to binding arbitration, or the payment of damages or penalties. Further, the State of Kansas and its agencies do not agree to pay attorney fees, costs, or late payment charges beyond those available under the Kansas Prompt Payment Act (K.S.A. 75-6403), and no provision will be given effect that attempts to exclude, modify, disclaim or otherwise attempt to limit any damages available to the State of Kansas or its agencies at law, including but not limited to, the implied warranties of merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose.
- <u>Representative's Authority to Contract</u>: By signing this contract, the representative of the contractor thereby represents that such person is duly authorized by the contractor to execute this contract on behalf of the contractor and that the contractor agrees to be bound by the provisions thereof.
- <u>Responsibility for Taxes</u>: The State of Kansas and its agencies shall not be responsible for, nor indemnify a contractor for, any federal, state or local taxes which may be imposed or levied upon the subject matter of this contract.
- 10. <u>Insurance</u>: The State of Kansas and its agencies shall not be required to purchase any insurance against loss or damage to property or any other subject matter relating to this contract, nor shall this contract require them to establish a "self-insurance" fund to protect against any such loss or damage. Subject to the provisions of the Kansas Tort Claims Act (K.S.A. 75-6101, *et seq.*), the contractor shall bear the risk of any loss or damage to any property in which the contractor holds title.
- 11. <u>Information</u>: No provision of this contract shall be construed as limiting the Legislative Division of Post Audit from having access to information pursuant to K.S.A. 46-1101, *et seq.*
- 12. <u>The Eleventh Amendment</u>: "The Eleventh Amendment is an inherent and incumbent protection with the State of Kansas and need not be reserved, but prudence requires the State to reiterate that nothing related to this contract shall be deemed a waiver of the Eleventh Amendment."
- 13. <u>Campaign Contributions / Lobbying:</u> Funds provided through a grant award or contract shall not be given or received in exchange for the making of a campaign contribution. No part of the funds provided through this contract shall be used to influence or attempt to influence an officer or employee of any State of Kansas agency or a member of the Legislature regarding any pending legislation or the awarding, extension, continuation, renewal, amendment or modification of any government contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

DIVISION 01

- 230010 GENERAL MECHANICAL REQUIREMENTS
- 011000 SUMMARY
- 012500 SUBSITUTION PROCEDURES
- 012600 CONTRACT MODICATION PROCEDURES
- 013100 PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND COORDINATION
- 013300 SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES
- 016000 PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS
- 017300 EXECUTION
- 017700 CLOSEOUT PROCEDURES
- 017823 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE DATA
- 017839 PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS
- 017900 DEMOSTRATION AND TRAINING

END OF DIVISION 01 TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 011000

SUMMARY

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and other Division 01 Specification Sections, apply to this Section.

1.2 SUMMARY

- A. Section Includes:
 - 1. Project information.
 - 2. Work covered by Contract Documents.
 - 3. Contractor's use of site and premises.
 - 4. Coordination with occupants.
 - 5. Work restrictions.
 - 6. Specification and Drawing conventions.
 - 7. Miscellaneous provisions.
- B. Related Requirements:
 - 1. Section 015000 "Temporary Facilities and Controls" for limitations and procedures governing temporary use of Owner's facilities.
- 1.3 DEFINITIONS
 - A. Work Package: A group of specifications, drawings, and schedules prepared by the design team to describe a portion of the Project Work for pricing, permitting, and construction.

1.4 PROJECT INFORMATION

- A. Project Identification: A-014311 PSU Willard Water Heater
 - 1. Project Location: Willard Hall
- B. Owner: Pittsburg State University
 - 1. Owner's Representative:
 - a. Lindell Haverstic, University Architect & Director Planning, Design & Construction.
 - b. 1701 South Broadway
 - c. Pittsburg, KS 66762
 - d. Telephone: 620-235-4130
- C. Engineer: Henderson Engineers.
 - 1. Engineers Representative:
 - a. Danny McGrail
 - b. 8435 Lenexa Dr. Suite 300
 - c. Lenexa, KS 66214
 - d. Telephone: 913-742-5419
- 1.5 WORK COVERED BY CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
 - A. The Work of Project is defined by the Contract Documents and includes, but is not limited to, the following:
 - 1. Scope of demolition as shown on the drawings and as described in the specifications.

PROJECT MANUAL: PSU WILLARD HALL WATER HEATER REPLACEMENT: PITTSBURG, KS 66762 HENDERSON PROJECT #: 2150002327

PSU PROJECT #: A-014311

- a. Water heater demolition including both existing gas and steam water heaters and storage tank, steam condensate pump, and associated piping.
- 2. New instantaneous water heater, storage tank, expansion tank, steam condensate pump, and associated piping.
- B. Type of Contract:
 - 1. Project will be constructed under a single prime contract.
- 1.6 CONTRACTOR'S USE OF SITE AND PREMISES
 - A. Restricted Use of Site: Contractor shall have limited use of Project site for construction operations as indicated on Drawings by the Contract limits and as indicated by requirements of this Section.
 - B. Limits on Use of Site: Limit use of Project site to areas within the Contract limits indicated. Do not disturb portions of Project site beyond areas in which the Work is indicated.
 - 1. Limits on Use of Site: Confine construction operations to areas shown within construction documents.
 - 2. Driveways, Walkways and Entrances: Keep driveways and loading areas, and entrances serving premises clear and available to Owner, Owner's employees, and emergency vehicles at all times. Do not use these areas for parking or for storage of materials.
 - a. Schedule deliveries to minimize use of driveways and entrances by construction operations.
 - b. Schedule deliveries to minimize space and time requirements for storage of materials and equipment on-site.
 - C. Condition of Existing Building: Maintain portions of existing building affected by construction operations in a weathertight condition throughout construction period. Repair damage caused by construction operations.
 - D. Condition of Existing Grounds: Maintain portions of existing grounds, landscaping, and hardscaping affected by construction operations throughout construction period. Repair damage caused by construction operations.

1.7 COORDINATION WITH OCCUPANTS

- A. Full Owner Occupancy: Owner will occupy Project site and the existing building(s) during entire construction period. Cooperate with Owner during construction operations to minimize conflicts and facilitate Owner usage. Perform the Work so as not to interfere with Owner's day-to-day operations. Maintain existing exits unless otherwise indicated. Coordinate required schedule with owner.
 - 1. Maintain access to existing walkways, corridors, and other adjacent occupied or used facilities. Do not close or obstruct walkways, corridors, or other occupied or used facilities without written permission from Owner and approval of authorities having jurisdiction.
 - 2. Notify Owner not less than 72 hours in advance of activities that will affect Owner's operations.
- B. Owner Limited Occupancy of Completed Areas of Construction: Owner reserves the right to occupy and to place and install equipment in completed portions of the Work, prior to Substantial Completion of the Work, provided such occupancy does not interfere with completion of the Work. Such placement of equipment and limited occupancy shall not constitute acceptance of the total Work.
 - 1. Engineer will prepare a Certificate of Substantial Completion for each specific portion of the Work to be occupied prior to Owner acceptance of the completed Work.
 - 2. Obtain a Certificate of Occupancy from authorities having jurisdiction before limited Owner occupancy.
 - 3. Before limited Owner occupancy, mechanical and electrical systems shall be fully operational, and required tests and inspections shall be successfully completed. On occupancy,

PROJECT MANUAL: PSU WILLARD HALL WATER HEATER REPLACEMENT: PITTSBURG, KS 66762

HENDERSON PROJECT #: 2150002327 PSU PROJECT #: A-014311

> Owner will operate and maintain mechanical and electrical systems serving occupied portions of Work.

- 4. On occupancy, Owner will assume responsibility for maintenance and custodial service for occupied portions of Work.
- 1.8 WORK RESTRICTIONS
 - A. Comply with restrictions on construction operations.
 - 1. Comply with limitations on use of public streets, work on public streets, rights of way, and other requirements of authorities having jurisdiction.
 - B. On-Site Work Hours: Contractor operating hours and access to the site and existing building are 24/7, both weekdays and weekends. However, other than operations required to occur during normal working hours, all construction activities shall occur during normal business hours.
 - C. Existing Utility Interruptions: Do not interrupt utilities serving facilities occupied by Owner or others unless permitted under the following conditions and then only after arranging for temporary utility services according to requirements indicated:
 - 1. Notify Owner not less than 5 days in advance of proposed utility interruptions.
 - 2. Obtain Owner's written permission before proceeding with utility interruptions.
 - D. Noise, Vibration, Dust, and Odors: Coordinate operations that may result in high levels of noise and vibration, dust, odors, or other disruption to Owner occupancy with Owner.
 - 1. Notify Owner not less than 5 days in advance of proposed disruptive operations.
 - 2. Obtain Owner's written permission before proceeding with disruptive operations.
 - E. Smoking and Controlled Substance Restrictions: Use of tobacco products, alcoholic beverages, and other controlled substances on Owner's property is not permitted.
 - F. Employee Identification: Provide identification tags for Contractor personnel working on Project site. Require personnel to use identification tags at all times.
- 1.9 SPECIFICATION AND DRAWING CONVENTIONS
 - A. Specification Content: The Specifications use certain conventions for the style of language and the intended meaning of certain terms, words, and phrases when used in particular situations. These conventions are as follows:
 - 1. Imperative mood and streamlined language are generally used in the Specifications. The words "shall," "shall be," or "shall comply with," depending on the context, are implied where a colon (:) is used within a sentence or phrase.
 - 2. Text Color: Text used in the Specifications, including units of measure, manufacturer and product names, and other text may appear in multiple colors or underlined as part of a hyperlink; no emphasis is implied by text with these characteristics.
 - 3. Hypertext: Text used in the Specifications may contain hyperlinks. Hyperlinks may allow for access to linked information that is not residing in the Specifications. Unless otherwise indicated, linked information is not part of the Contract Documents.
 - 4. Specification requirements are to be performed by Contractor unless specifically stated otherwise.
 - B. Division 01 General Requirements: Requirements of Sections in Division 01 apply to the Work of all Sections in the Specifications.
 - C. Drawing Coordination: Requirements for materials and products identified on Drawings are described in detail in the Specifications. One or more of the following are used on Drawings to identify materials and products:
 - 1. Terminology: Materials and products are identified by the typical generic terms used in the individual Specifications Sections.
 - 2. Abbreviations: Materials and products are identified by abbreviations scheduled on Drawings and published as part of the U.S. National CAD Standard.

3. Keynoting: Materials and products are identified by reference keynotes referencing Specification Section numbers found in this Project Manual.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

END OF SECTION 011000

SECTION 012500

SUBSTITUTION PROCEDURES

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and other Division 01 Specification Sections, apply to this Section.

1.2 SUMMARY

- A. Section includes administrative and procedural requirements for substitutions.
- B. Related Requirements:
 - 1. Document 002600 "Procurement Substitution Procedures" for requirements for substitution requests prior to award of Contract.
 - 2. Section 012300 "Alternates" for products selected under an alternate.
 - 3. Section 016000 "Product Requirements" for requirements for submitting comparable product submittals for products by listed manufacturers.

1.3 DEFINITIONS

- A. Substitutions: Changes in products, materials, equipment, and methods of construction from those required by the Contract Documents.
 - 1. Substitutions for Cause: Changes proposed by Contractor that are required due to changed Project conditions, such as unavailability of product, regulatory changes, or unavailability of required warranty terms.
 - 2. Substitutions for Convenience: Changes proposed by Contractor or Owner that are not required to meet other Project requirements but may offer advantage to Contractor or Owner.

1.4 ACTION SUBMITTALS

- A. Substitution Requests: Submit documentation identifying product or fabrication or installation method to be replaced. Include Specification Section number and title and Drawing numbers and titles.
 - 1. Substitution Request Form: Use form provided in Project Manual.
 - 2. Documentation: Show compliance with requirements for substitutions and the following, as applicable:
 - 3. Engineers' Action: If necessary, Engineer will request additional information or documentation for evaluation within seven days of receipt of a request for substitution. Architect will notify Contractor of acceptance or rejection of proposed substitution within [5 days of receipt of request, or seven days of receipt of additional information or documentation, whichever is later.
 - a. Forms of Acceptance: Change Order, Construction Change Directive, or Architect's Supplemental Instructions for minor changes in the Work.
 - b. Use product specified if Architect does not issue a decision on use of a proposed substitution within time allocated.

1.5 QUALITY ASSURANCE

A. Compatibility of Substitutions: Investigate and document compatibility of proposed substitution with related products and materials. Engage a qualified testing agency to perform compatibility tests recommended by manufacturers.

- 1.6 PROCEDURES
 - A. Coordination: Revise or adjust affected work as necessary to integrate work of the approved substitutions.
- 1.7 SUBSTITUTIONS
 - A. Substitutions for Cause: Submit requests for substitution immediately on discovery of need for change, but not later than 15 days prior to time required for preparation and review of related submittals.
 - 1. Conditions: Engineer will consider Contractor's request for substitution when the following conditions are satisfied. If the following conditions are not satisfied, Engineer will return requests without action, except to record noncompliance with these requirements:
 - a. Requested substitution is consistent with the Contract Documents and will produce indicated results.
 - b. Substitution request is fully documented and properly submitted.
 - c. Requested substitution will not adversely affect Contractor's construction schedule.
 - d. Requested substitution has received necessary approvals of authorities having jurisdiction.
 - e. Requested substitution is compatible with other portions of the Work.
 - f. Requested substitution has been coordinated with other portions of the Work.
 - g. Requested substitution provides specified warranty.
 - h. If requested substitution involves more than one contractor, requested substitution has been coordinated with other portions of the Work, is uniform and consistent, is compatible with other products, and is acceptable to all contractors involved.
 - B. Substitutions for Convenience: Not allowed.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

END OF SECTION 012500

SECTION 012600

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS

- A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and other Division 01 Specification Sections, apply to this Section.
- 1.2 SUMMARY
 - A. Section includes administrative and procedural requirements for handling and processing Contract modifications.
 - B. Related Requirements:
 - 1. Section 012500 "Substitution Procedures" for administrative procedures for handling requests for substitutions made after the Contract award.
 - 2. Section 013100 "Project Management and Coordination" for requirements for forms for contract modifications provided as part of web-based Project management software.

1.3 MINOR CHANGES IN THE WORK

- A. Engineer will issue supplemental instructions authorizing minor changes in the Work, not involving adjustment to the Contract Sum or the Contract Time.
- 1.4 PROPOSAL REQUESTS
 - A. Owner-Initiated Proposal Requests: Engineer will issue a detailed description of proposed changes in the Work that may require adjustment to the Contract Sum or the Contract Time. If necessary, the description will include supplemental or revised Drawings and Specifications.
 - 1. Work Change Proposal Requests issued by Engineer are not instructions either to stop work in progress or to execute the proposed change.
 - 2. Within time specified in Proposal Request or 20 days, when not otherwise specified, after receipt of Proposal Request, submit a quotation estimating cost adjustments to the Contract Sum and the Contract Time necessary to execute the change.
 - a. Include a list of quantities of products required or eliminated and unit costs, with total amount of purchases and credits to be made. If requested, furnish survey data to substantiate quantities.
 - b. Indicate applicable taxes, delivery charges, equipment rental, and amounts of trade discounts.
 - c. Include costs of labor and supervision directly attributable to the change.
 - d. Include an updated Contractor's construction schedule that indicates the effect of the change, including, but not limited to, changes in activity duration, start and finish times, and activity relationship. Use available total float before requesting an extension of the Contract Time.
 - e. Quotation Form: Use forms acceptable to Engineer.
 - 3. Contractor-Initiated Proposals: If latent or changed conditions require modifications to the Contract, Contractor may initiate a claim by submitting a request for a change to Engineer.
 - a. Include a statement outlining reasons for the change and the effect of the change on the Work. Provide a complete description of the proposed change. Indicate the effect of the proposed change on the Contract Sum and the Contract Time.
 - b. Include a list of quantities of products required or eliminated and unit costs, with total amount of purchases and credits to be made. If requested, furnish survey data to substantiate quantities.
 - c. Indicate applicable taxes, delivery charges, equipment rental, and amounts of trade discounts.

- d. Include costs of labor and supervision directly attributable to the change.
- e. Include an updated Contractor's construction schedule that indicates the effect of the change, including, but not limited to, changes in activity duration, start and finish times, and activity relationship. Use available total float before requesting an extension of the Contract Time.
- f. Comply with requirements in Section 012500 "Substitution Procedures" if the proposed change requires substitution of one product or system for product or system specified.
- g. Proposal Request Form: Use form acceptable to Engineer.
- 1.5 ADMINISTRATIVE CHANGE ORDERS
 - A. Allowance Adjustment: See Section 012100 "Allowances" for administrative procedures for preparation of Change Order Proposal for adjusting the Contract Sum to reflect actual costs of allowances.
 - B. Unit-Price Adjustment: See Section 012200 "Unit Prices" for administrative procedures for preparation of Change Order Proposal for adjusting the Contract Sum to reflect measured scope of unit-price work.
- 1.6 CHANGE ORDER PROCEDURES
 - A. On Owner's approval of a Work Change Proposal Request, Engineer will issue a Change Order for signatures of Owner and Contractor.
- 1.7 CONSTRUCTION CHANGE DIRECTIVE
 - A. Construction Change Directive: Engineer may issue a Construction Change Directive. Construction Change Directive instructs Contractor to proceed with a change in the Work, for subsequent inclusion in a Change Order.
 - 1. Construction Change Directive contains a complete description of change in the Work. It also designates method to be followed to determine change in the Contract Sum or the Contract Time.
 - B. Documentation: Maintain detailed records on a time and material basis of work required by the Construction Change Directive.
 - 1. After completion of change, submit an itemized account and supporting data necessary to substantiate cost and time adjustments to the Contract.
- 1.8 WORK CHANGE DIRECTIVE
 - A. Work Change Directive: Engineer may issue a Work Change Directive.. Work Change Directive instructs Contractor to proceed with a change in the Work, for subsequent inclusion in a Change Order.
 - 1. Work Change Directive contains a complete description of change in the Work. It also designates method to be followed to determine change in the Contract Sum or the Contract Time.
 - B. Documentation: Maintain detailed records on a time and material basis of work required by the Work Change Directive.
 - C. After completion of change, submit an itemized account and supporting data necessary to substantiate cost and time adjustments to the Contract.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

END OF SECTION 012600

SECTION 013100

PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND COORDINATION

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and other Division 01 Specification Sections, apply to this Section.

1.2 SUMMARY

- A. Section includes administrative provisions for coordinating construction operations on Project, including, but not limited to, the following:
 - 1. General coordination procedures.
 - 2. Coordination drawings.
 - 3. RFIs.
 - 4. Project meetings.
- B. Each contractor shall participate in coordination requirements. Certain areas of responsibility are assigned to a specific contractor.
- C. Related Requirements:
 - 1. Section 017300 "Execution" for procedures for coordinating general installation and fieldengineering services, including establishment of benchmarks and control points.
 - 2. Section 017700 "Closeout Procedures" for coordinating closeout of the Contract.

1.3 DEFINITIONS

- A. BIM: Building Information Modeling.
- B. RFI: Request for Information. Request from Owner, Engineer, or Contractor seeking information required by or clarifications of the Contract Documents.

1.4 INFORMATIONAL SUBMITTALS

- A. Subcontract List: Prepare a written summary identifying individuals or firms proposed for each portion of the Work, including those who are to furnish products or equipment fabricated to a special design. Include the following information in tabular form:
 - 1. Name, address, telephone number, and email address of entity performing subcontract or supplying products.
 - 2. Number and title of related Specification Section(s) covered by subcontract.
 - 3. Drawing number and detail references, as appropriate, covered by subcontract.
- B. Key Personnel Names: Within 5 days of starting construction operations, submit a list of key personnel assignments, including superintendent and other personnel in attendance at Project site. Identify individuals and their duties and responsibilities; list addresses, cellular telephone numbers, and e-mail addresses. Provide names, addresses, and telephone numbers of individuals assigned as alternates in the absence of individuals assigned to Project.
 - 1. Post copies of list in Project meeting room, in temporary field office, and in prominent location in the facility. Keep list current at all times.

1.5 GENERAL COORDINATION PROCEDURES

A. Coordination: Coordinate construction operations included in different Sections of the Specifications to ensure efficient and orderly installation of each part of the Work. Coordinate construction operations included in different Sections that depend on each other for proper installation, connection, and operation.

- 1. Schedule construction operations in sequence required to obtain the best results, where installation of one part of the Work depends on installation of other components, before or after its own installation.
- 2. Coordinate installation of different components to ensure maximum performance and accessibility for required maintenance, service, and repair.
- 3. Make adequate provisions to accommodate items scheduled for later installation.
- B. Coordination of Multiple Contracts: Each contractor shall cooperate with Project coordinator, who shall coordinate its construction operations with those of other contractors and entities to ensure efficient and orderly installation of each part of the Work. Each contractor shall coordinate its own operations with operations included in different Sections that depend on each other for proper installation, connection, and operation.
 - 1. Schedule construction operations in sequence required to obtain the best results, where installation of one part of the Work depends on installation of other components, before or after its own installation.
 - 2. Coordinate installation of different components with other contractors to ensure maximum performance and accessibility for required maintenance, service, and repair.
 - 3. Make adequate provisions to accommodate items scheduled for later installation.
- C. Prepare memoranda for distribution to each party involved, outlining special procedures required for coordination. Include such items as required notices, reports, and list of attendees at meetings.
 - 1. Prepare similar memoranda for Owner and separate contractors if coordination of their Work is required.
- D. Administrative Procedures: Coordinate scheduling and timing of required administrative procedures with other construction activities and scheduled activities of other contractors to avoid conflicts and to ensure orderly progress of the Work. Such administrative activities include, but are not limited to, the following:
 - 1. Preparation of Contractor's construction schedule.
 - 2. Preparation of the schedule of values.
 - 3. Installation and removal of temporary facilities and controls.
 - 4. Delivery and processing of submittals.
 - 5. Progress meetings.
 - 6. Preinstallation conferences.
 - 7. Project closeout activities.
 - 8. Startup and adjustment of systems.

1.6 COORDINATION DRAWINGS

- A. Coordination Drawings, General: Prepare coordination drawings according to requirements in individual Sections, and additionally where installation is not completely indicated on Shop Drawings, where limited space availability necessitates coordination, or if coordination is required to facilitate integration of products and materials fabricated or installed by more than one entity.
 - 1. Content: Project-specific information, drawn accurately to a scale large enough to indicate and resolve conflicts. Do not base coordination drawings on standard printed data. Include the following information, as applicable:
 - a. Use applicable Drawings as a basis for preparation of coordination drawings. Prepare sections, elevations, and details as needed to describe relationship of various systems and components.
 - b. Indicate functional and spatial relationships of components of architectural, structural, civil, mechanical, and electrical systems.

- c. Indicate space requirements for routine maintenance and for anticipated replacement of components during the life of the installation.
- d. Show location and size of access doors required for access to concealed dampers, valves, and other controls.
- e. Indicate required installation sequences.
- f. Indicate dimensions shown on Drawings. Specifically note dimensions that appear to be in conflict with submitted equipment and minimum clearance requirements. Provide alternative sketches to Engineer indicating proposed resolution of such conflicts. Minor dimension changes and difficult installations will not be considered changes to the Contract.
- B. Coordination Drawing Organization: Organize coordination drawings as follows:
 - 1. Floor Plans and Reflected Ceiling Plans: Show architectural and structural elements, and mechanical, plumbing, fire-protection, fire-alarm, and electrical Work. Show locations of visible ceiling-mounted devices relative to acoustical ceiling grid. Supplement plan drawings with section drawings where required to adequately represent the Work.
 - 2. Plenum Space: Indicate subframing for support of ceiling and wall systems, mechanical and electrical equipment, and related Work. Locate components within plenums to accommodate layout of light fixtures and other components indicated on Drawings. Indicate areas of conflict between light fixtures and other components.
 - 3. Mechanical Rooms: Provide coordination drawings for mechanical rooms, showing plans and elevations of mechanical, plumbing, fire-protection, fire-alarm, and electrical equipment.
 - 4. Structural Penetrations: Indicate penetrations and openings required for all disciplines.
 - 5. Slab Edge and Embedded Items: Indicate slab edge locations and sizes and locations of embedded items for metal fabrications, sleeves, anchor bolts, bearing plates, angles, door floor closers, slab depressions for floor finishes, curbs and housekeeping pads, and similar items.
 - 6. Mechanical and Plumbing Work: Show the following:
 - a. Sizes and bottom elevations of ductwork, piping, and conduit runs, including insulation, bracing, flanges, and support systems.
 - b. Dimensions of major components, such as dampers, valves, diffusers, access doors, cleanouts and electrical distribution equipment.
 - c. Fire-rated enclosures around ductwork.
 - 7. Electrical Work: Show the following:
 - a. Runs of vertical and horizontal conduit 1-1/4 inches (32 mm) in diameter and larger.
 - b. Light fixture, exit light, emergency battery pack, smoke detector, and other fire-alarm locations.
 - c. Panel board, switchboard, switchgear, transformer, busway, generator, and motorcontrol center locations.
 - d. Location of pull boxes and junction boxes, dimensioned from column center lines.
 - 8. Review: Engineer will review coordination drawings to confirm that, in general, the Work is being coordinated, but not for the details of the coordination, which are Contractor's responsibility. If Engineer determines that coordination drawings are not being prepared in sufficient scope or detail, or are otherwise deficient, Engineer will so inform Contractor, who shall make suitable modifications and resubmit.
 - 9. Coordination Drawing Prints: Prepare coordination drawing prints according to requirements in Section 013300 "Submittal Procedures."
- C. Coordination Drawing Process: Prepare coordination drawings in the following manner:

- 1. Schedule submittal and review of Fire Sprinkler, Plumbing, HVAC, and Electrical Shop Drawings to make required changes prior to preparation of coordination drawings.
- 2. Commence routing of coordination drawing files with HVAC Installer, who will provide drawing plan files denoting approved ductwork. HVAC Installer will locate ductwork and piping on a single layer, using orange color. Forward drawings to Plumbing Installer.
- 3. Plumbing Installer will locate plumbing and equipment on a single layer, using blue color.
- 4. Fire Sprinkler Installer will locate piping and equipment, using red color. Fire Sprinkler Installer shall forward drawing files to Electrical Installer.
- 5. Electrical Installer will indicate service and feeder conduit runs and equipment in green color. Electrical Installer shall forward drawing files to Communications and Electronic Safety and Security Installer.
- 6. Communications and Electronic Safety and Security Installer will indicate cable trays and cabling runs and equipment in purple color. Communications and Electronic Safety and Security Installer shall forward completed drawing files to Contractor.
- 7. Contractor shall perform the final coordination review. As each coordination drawing is completed, Contractor will meet with Engineer to review and resolve conflicts on the coordination drawings.

1.7 REQUEST FOR INFORMATION (RFI)

- A. General: Immediately on discovery of the need for additional information, clarification, or interpretation of the Contract Documents, Contractor shall prepare and submit an RFI in the form specified.
 - 1. Engineer will return without response those RFIs submitted to Engineer by other entities controlled by Contractor.
 - 2. Coordinate and submit RFIs in a prompt manner to avoid delays in Contractor's work or work of subcontractors.
- B. Content of the RFI: Include a detailed, legible description of item needing information or interpretation and the following:
 - 1. Project name.
 - 2. Owner name.
 - 3. Owner's Project number.
 - 4. Name of Engineer
 - 5. Engineer's Project number.
 - 6. Date.
 - 7. Name of Contractor.
 - 8. RFI number, numbered sequentially.
 - 9. RFI subject.
 - 10. Specification Section number and title and related paragraphs, as appropriate.
 - 11. Drawing number and detail references, as appropriate.
 - 12. Field dimensions and conditions, as appropriate.
 - 13. Contractor's suggested resolution. If Contractor's suggested resolution impacts the Contract Time or the Contract Sum, Contractor shall state impact in the RFI.
 - 14. Contractor's signature.
 - 15. Attachments: Include sketches, descriptions, measurements, photos, Product Data, Shop Drawings, coordination drawings, and other information necessary to fully describe items needing interpretation.
 - a. Include dimensions, thicknesses, structural grid references, and details of affected materials, assemblies, and attachments on attached sketches.

PROJECT MANUAL: PSU WILLARD HALL WATER HEATER REPLACEMENT: PITTSBURG, KS 66762 HENDERSON PROJECT #: 2150002327

PSU PROJECT #: A-014311

- C. RFI Forms: Software-generated form with substantially the same content as indicated above, acceptable to Engineer.
 - 1. Attachments shall be electronic files in PDF format.
- D. Engineer's Action: Engineer will review each RFI, determine action required, and respond. Allow seven days for Engineer's response for each RFI. RFIs received by engineer after 1:00 p.m. will be considered as received the following working day.
 - 1. The following Contractor-generated RFIs will be returned without action:
 - a. Requests for approval of submittals.
 - b. Requests for approval of substitutions.
 - c. Requests for approval of Contractor's means and methods.
 - d. Requests for coordination information already indicated in the Contract Documents.
 - e. Requests for adjustments in the Contract Time or the Contract Sum.
 - f. Requests for interpretation of Engineer's actions on submittals.
 - g. Incomplete RFIs or inaccurately prepared RFIs.
 - 2. Engineer's action may include a request for additional information, in which case Engineer's time for response will date from time of receipt by Engineer [of additional information.
 - 3. Engineer's action on RFIs that may result in a change to the Contract Time or the Contract Sum may be eligible for Contractor to submit Change Proposal according to Section 012600 "Contract Modification Procedures."
 - a. If Contractor believes the RFI response warrants change in the Contract Time or the Contract Sum, notify Engineer in writing within 5 days of receipt of the RFI response.
- E. RFI Log: Prepare, maintain, and submit a tabular log of RFIs organized by the RFI number. Submit log weekly. Software log with not less than the following:
 - 1. Project name.
 - 2. Name and address of Contractor.
 - 3. Name and address of Engineer's
 - 4. RFI number, including RFIs that were returned without action or withdrawn.
 - 5. RFI description.
 - 6. Date the RFI was submitted.
 - 7. Date Engineer's response was received.
 - 8. Identification of related Minor Change in the Work, Construction Change Directive, and Proposal Request, as appropriate.
 - 9. Identification of related Field Order, Work Change Directive, and Proposal Request, as.
- F. On receipt of Engineer's action, update the RFI log and immediately distribute the RFI response to affected parties. Review response and notify Engineer within seven days if Contractor disagrees with response.

1.8 PROJECT MEETINGS

- A. General: Schedule and conduct meetings and conferences at Project site unless otherwise indicated.
 - 1. Attendees: Inform participants and others involved, and individuals whose presence is required, of date and time of each meeting. Notify Owner and Engineer of scheduled meeting dates and times a minimum of seven days prior to meeting.
 - 2. Agenda: Prepare the meeting agenda. Distribute the agenda to all invited attendees.

- 3. Minutes: Entity responsible for conducting meeting will record significant discussions and agreements achieved. Distribute the meeting minutes to everyone concerned, including Owner and Engineer, within three days of the meeting.
- B. Preconstruction Conference: Schedule and conduct a preconstruction conference before starting construction, at a time convenient to Owner and Engineer, but no later than 15 days after execution of the Agreement.
 - 1. Attendees: Authorized representatives of Owner, Engineer, and their consultants; Contractor and its superintendent; major subcontractors; suppliers; and other concerned parties shall attend the conference. Participants at the conference shall be familiar with Project and authorized to conclude matters relating to the Work.
 - 2. Agenda: Discuss items of significance that could affect progress, including the following:
 - a. Responsibilities and personnel assignments.
 - b. Tentative construction schedule.
 - c. Phasing.
 - d. Critical work sequencing and long lead items.
 - e. Designation of key personnel and their duties.
 - f. Lines of communications.
 - g. Use of web-based Project software.
 - h. Procedures for processing field decisions and Change Orders.
 - i. Procedures for RFIs.
 - j. Procedures for testing and inspecting.
 - k. Procedures for processing Applications for Payment.
 - I. Distribution of the Contract Documents.
 - m. Submittal procedures.
 - n. Preparation of Record Documents.
 - o. Use of the premises and existing building.
 - p. Work restrictions.
 - q. Working hours.
 - r. Owner's occupancy requirements.
 - s. Responsibility for temporary facilities and controls.
 - t. Procedures for moisture and mold control.
 - u. Procedures for disruptions and shutdowns.
 - v. Construction waste management and recycling.
 - w. Parking availability.
 - x. Office, work, and storage areas.
 - y. Equipment deliveries and priorities.
 - z. First aid.
 - aa. Security.
 - bb. Progress cleaning.
 - 3. Minutes: Entity responsible for conducting meeting will record and distribute meeting minutes.
- C. Project Closeout Conference: Schedule and conduct a project closeout conference, at a time convenient to Owner and Engineer, but no later than 90 days prior to the scheduled date of Substantial Completion.

- 1. Conduct the conference to review requirements and responsibilities related to Project closeout.
- 2. Attendees: Authorized representatives of Owner, Engineer, and their consultants; Contractor and its superintendent; major subcontractors; suppliers; and other concerned parties shall attend the meeting. Participants at the meeting shall be familiar with Project and authorized to conclude matters relating to the Work.
- 3. Agenda: Discuss items of significance that could affect or delay Project closeout, including the following:
 - a. Preparation of Record Documents.
 - b. Procedures required prior to inspection for Substantial Completion and for final inspection for acceptance.
 - c. Procedures for completing and archiving web-based Project software site data files.
 - d. Submittal of written warranties.
 - e. Requirements for preparing operations and maintenance data.
 - f. Requirements for delivery of material samples, attic stock, and spare parts.
 - g. Requirements for demonstration and training.
 - h. Preparation of Contractor's punch list.
 - i. Procedures for processing Applications for Payment at Substantial Completion and for final payment.
 - j. Submittal procedures.
 - k. Coordination of separate contracts.
 - I. Owner's partial occupancy requirements.
 - m. Installation of Owner's furniture, fixtures, and equipment.
 - n. Responsibility for removing temporary facilities and controls.
- 4. Minutes: Entity conducting meeting will record and distribute meeting minutes.
- D. Progress Meetings: Conduct progress meetings at regular intervals.
 - 1. Coordinate dates of meetings with preparation of payment requests.
 - 2. Attendees: In addition to representatives of Owner and Engineer, each contractor, subcontractor, supplier, and other entity concerned with current progress or involved in planning, coordination, or performance of future activities shall be represented at these meetings. All participants at the meeting shall be familiar with Project and authorized to conclude matters relating to the Work.
 - 3. Agenda: Review and correct or approve minutes of previous progress meeting. Review other items of significance that could affect progress. Include topics for discussion as appropriate to status of Project.
 - a. Contractor's Construction Schedule: Review progress since the last meeting. Determine whether each activity is on time, ahead of schedule, or behind schedule, in relation to Contractor's construction schedule. Determine how construction behind schedule will be expedited; secure commitments from parties involved to do so. Discuss whether schedule revisions are required to ensure that current and subsequent activities will be completed within the Contract Time.
 - 1) Review schedule for next period.
 - b. Review present and future needs of each entity present, including the following:
 - 1) Interface requirements.
 - 2) Sequence of operations.
 - 3) Resolution of BIM component conflicts.
 - 4) Status of submittals.

- 5) Deliveries.
- 6) Off-site fabrication.
- 7) Access.
- 8) Site use.
- 9) Temporary facilities and controls.
- 10) Progress cleaning.
- 11) Quality and work standards.
- 12) Status of correction of deficient items.
- 13) Field observations.
- 14) Status of RFIs.
- 15) Status of Proposal Requests.
- 16) Pending changes.
- 17) Status of Change Orders.
- 18) Pending claims and disputes.
- 19) Documentation of information for payment requests.
- 4. Minutes: Entity responsible for conducting the meeting will record and distribute the meeting minutes to each party present and to parties requiring information.
 - a. Schedule Updating: Revise Contractor's construction schedule after each progress meeting, where revisions to the schedule have been made or recognized. Issue revised schedule concurrently with the report of each meeting.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

END OF SECTION 013100

SECTION 013300

SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and other Division 01 Specification Sections, apply to this Section.

1.2 SUMMARY

- A. Section Includes:
 - 1. Submittal schedule requirements.
 - 2. Administrative and procedural requirements for submittals.
- B. Related Requirements:
 - 1. Section 013100 "Project Management and Coordination" for submitting coordination drawings and subcontract list and for requirements for web-based Project software.
 - 2. Section 017700 "Closeout Procedures" for submitting closeout submittals and maintenance material submittals.
 - 3. Section 017823 "Operation and Maintenance Data" for submitting operation and maintenance manuals.
 - 4. Section 017839 "Project Record Documents" for submitting record Drawings, record Specifications, and record Product Data.
 - 5. Section 017900 "Demonstration and Training" for submitting video recordings of demonstration of equipment and training of Owner's personnel.

1.3 DEFINITIONS

- A. Action Submittals: Written and graphic information and physical samples that require Engineer's responsive action. Action submittals are those submittals indicated in individual Specification Sections as "action submittals."
- B. Informational Submittals: Written and graphic information and physical samples that do not require Engineer's responsive action. Submittals may be rejected for not complying with requirements. Informational submittals are those submittals indicated in individual Specification Sections as "informational submittals."

1.4 SUBMITTAL SCHEDULE

- A. Submittal Schedule: Submit, as an action submittal, a list of submittals, arranged in chronological order by dates required by construction schedule. Include time required for review, ordering, manufacturing, fabrication, and delivery when establishing dates. Include additional time required for making corrections or revisions to submittals noted by Engineer and additional time for handling and reviewing submittals required by those corrections.
 - 1. Coordinate submittal schedule with list of subcontracts, the schedule of values, and Contractor's construction schedule.
 - 2. Initial Submittal Schedule: Submit concurrently with startup construction schedule. Include submittals required during the first 60 days of construction. List those submittals required to maintain orderly progress of the Work and those required early because of long lead time for manufacture or fabrication.
 - 3. Final Submittal Schedule: Submit concurrently with the first complete submittal of Contractor's construction schedule.

- a. Submit revised submittal schedule as required to reflect changes in current status and timing for submittals.
- 4. Format: Arrange the following information in a tabular format:
 - a. Scheduled date for first submittal.
 - b. Specification Section number and title.
 - c. Submittal Category: Action; informational.
 - d. Name of subcontractor.
 - e. Description of the Work covered.
 - f. Scheduled date for Engineer's final release or approval.
 - g. Scheduled dates for purchasing.
 - h. Scheduled date of fabrication.
 - i. Scheduled dates for installation.
 - j. Activity or event number.

1.5 SUBMITTAL FORMATS

- A. Submittal Information: Include the following information in each submittal:
 - 1. Project name.
 - 2. Date.
 - 3. Name of Engineer.
 - 4. Name of Contractor.
 - 5. Name of firm or entity that prepared submittal.
 - 6. Names of subcontractor, manufacturer, and supplier.
 - 7. Unique submittal number, including revision identifier. Include Specification Section number with sequential alphanumeric identifier and alphanumeric suffix for resubmittals.
 - 8. Category and type of submittal.
 - 9. Submittal purpose and description.
 - 10. Number and title of Specification Section, with paragraph number and generic name for each of multiple items.
 - 11. Drawing number and detail references, as appropriate.
 - 12. Indication of full or partial submittal.
 - 13. Location(s) where product is to be installed, as appropriate.
 - 14. Other necessary identification.
 - 15. Remarks.
 - 16. Signature of transmitter.
- B. Options: Identify options requiring selection by Engineer.
- C. Deviations and Additional Information: On each submittal, clearly indicate deviations from requirements in the Contract Documents, including minor variations and limitations; include relevant additional information and revisions, other than those requested by Engineer on previous submittals. Indicate by highlighting on each submittal or noting on attached separate sheet.
- D. Electronic Submittals: Prepare submittals as PDF package, incorporating complete information into each PDF file. Name PDF file with submittal number.
- E. Submittals Utilizing Web-Based Project Software: Prepare submittals as PDF files or other format indicated by Project management software.

1.6 SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES

- A. Prepare and submit submittals required by individual Specification Sections. Types of submittals are indicated in individual Specification Sections.
 - 1. Email: Prepare submittals as PDF package and transmit to Engineer by sending via email. Include PDF transmittal form. Include information in email subject line as requested by Engineer.
 - a. Engineer will return annotated file. Annotate and retain one copy of file as a digital Project Record Document file.
 - 2. Web-Based Project Management Software: Prepare submittals in PDF form, and upload to web-based Project management software website. Enter required data in web-based software site to fully identify submittal.
- B. Coordination: Coordinate preparation and processing of submittals with performance of construction activities.
 - 1. Coordinate each submittal with fabrication, purchasing, testing, delivery, other submittals, and related activities that require sequential activity.
 - 2. Submit all submittal items required for each Specification Section concurrently unless partial submittals for portions of the Work are indicated on approved submittal schedule.
 - 3. Submit action submittals and informational submittals required by the same Specification Section as separate packages under separate transmittals.
 - 4. Coordinate transmittal of submittals for related parts of the Work specified in different Sections, so processing will not be delayed because of need to review submittals concurrently for coordination.
 - a. Engineer reserves the right to withhold action on a submittal requiring coordination with other submittals until related submittals are received.
- C. Processing Time: Allow time for submittal review, including time for resubmittals, as follows. Time for review shall commence on Engineer's receipt of submittal. No extension of the Contract Time will be authorized because of failure to transmit submittals enough in advance of the Work to permit processing, including resubmittals.
 - 1. Initial Review: Allow 10 days for initial review of each submittal. Allow additional time if coordination with subsequent submittals is required. Engineer will advise Contractor when a submittal being processed must be delayed for coordination.
 - 2. Intermediate Review: If intermediate submittal is necessary, process it in same manner as initial submittal.
 - 3. Resubmittal Review: Allow 10 days for review of each resubmittal.
- D. Resubmittals: Make resubmittals in same form and number of copies as initial submittal.
 - 1. Note date and content of previous submittal.
 - 2. Note date and content of revision in label or title block, and clearly indicate extent of revision.
 - 3. Resubmit submittals until they are marked with approval notation from Engineer's action stamp.
- E. Distribution: Furnish copies of final submittals to manufacturers, subcontractors, suppliers, fabricators, installers, authorities having jurisdiction, and others as necessary for performance of construction activities. Show distribution on transmittal forms.
- F. Use for Construction: Retain complete copies of submittals on Project site. Use only final action submittals that are marked with approval notation from Engineer's action stamp.

1.7 SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

- A. Product Data: Collect information into a single submittal for each element of construction and type of product or equipment.
 - 1. If information must be specially prepared for submittal because standard published data are unsuitable for use, submit as Shop Drawings, not as Product Data.
 - 2. Mark each copy of each submittal to show which products and options are applicable.
 - 3. Include the following information, as applicable:
 - a. Manufacturer's catalog cuts.
 - b. Manufacturer's product specifications.
 - c. Standard color charts.
 - d. Statement of compliance with specified referenced standards.
 - e. Testing by recognized testing agency.
 - f. Application of testing agency labels and seals.
 - g. Notation of coordination requirements.
 - h. Availability and delivery time information.
 - 4. For equipment, include the following in addition to the above, as applicable:
 - a. Wiring diagrams that show factory-installed wiring.
 - b. Printed performance curves.
 - c. Operational range diagrams.
 - d. Clearances required to other construction, if not indicated on accompanying Shop Drawings.
 - 5. Submit Product Data before Shop Drawings, and before or concurrently with Samples.
- B. Shop Drawings: Prepare Project-specific information, drawn accurately to scale. Do not base Shop Drawings on reproductions of the Contract Documents or standard printed data.
 - 1. Preparation: Fully illustrate requirements in the Contract Documents. Include the following information, as applicable:
 - a. Identification of products.
 - b. Schedules.
 - c. Compliance with specified standards.
 - d. Notation of coordination requirements.
 - e. Notation of dimensions established by field measurement.
 - f. Relationship and attachment to adjoining construction clearly indicated.
 - g. Seal and signature of professional engineer if specified.
- C. Product Schedule: As required in individual Specification Sections, prepare a written summary indicating types of products required for the Work and their intended location. Include the following information in tabular form:
 - 1. Type of product. Include unique identifier for each product indicated in the Contract Documents or assigned by Contractor if none is indicated.
 - 2. Manufacturer and product name, and model number if applicable.
 - 3. Number and name of room or space.
 - 4. Location within room or space.
- D. Certificates:
 - 1. Certificates and Certifications Submittals: Submit a statement that includes signature of entity responsible for preparing certification. Certificates and certifications shall be signed

by an officer or other individual authorized to sign documents on behalf of that entity. Provide a notarized signature where indicated.

- 2. Installer Certificates: Submit written statements on manufacturer's letterhead, certifying that Installer complies with requirements in the Contract Documents and, where required, is authorized by manufacturer for this specific Project.
- 3. Manufacturer Certificates: Submit written statements on manufacturer's letterhead, certifying that manufacturer complies with requirements in the Contract Documents. Include evidence of manufacturing experience where required.
- 4. Material Certificates: Submit written statements on manufacturer's letterhead, certifying that material complies with requirements in the Contract Documents.
- 5. Product Certificates: Submit written statements on manufacturer's letterhead, certifying that product complies with requirements in the Contract Documents.
- 6. Welding Certificates: Prepare written certification that welding procedures and personnel comply with requirements in the Contract Documents. Submit record of AWS B2.1/B2.1M on AWS forms. Include names of firms and personnel certified.
- E. Test and Research Reports:

1.8 DELEGATED-DESIGN SERVICES

- A. Performance and Design Criteria: Where professional design services or certifications by a design professional are specifically required of Contractor by the Contract Documents, provide products and systems complying with specific performance and design criteria indicated.
 - 1. If criteria indicated are insufficient to perform services or certification required, submit a written request for additional information to Engineer.
- B. Delegated-Design Services Certification: In addition to Shop Drawings, Product Data, and other required submittals, submit digitally signed PDF file copies of certificate, signed and sealed by the responsible design professional, for each product and system specifically assigned to Contractor to be designed or certified by a design professional.
 - 1. Indicate that products and systems comply with performance and design criteria in the Contract Documents. Include list of codes, loads, and other factors used in performing these services.
- 1.9 CONTRACTOR'S REVIEW
 - A. Action Submittals and Informational Submittals: Review each submittal and check for coordination with other Work of the Contract and for compliance with the Contract Documents. Note corrections and field dimensions. Mark with approval stamp before submitting to Engineer.
 - B. Contractor's Approval: Indicate Contractor's approval for each submittal with a uniform approval stamp. Include name of reviewer, date of Contractor's approval, and statement certifying that submittal has been reviewed, checked, and approved for compliance with the Contract Documents.
 - 1. Engineer will not review submittals received from Contractor that do not have Contractor's review and approval.

1.10 ENGINEER'S REVIEW

- A. Action Submittals: Engineer will review each submittal, indicate corrections or revisions required, and return.
 - 1. PDF Submittals: Engineer will indicate, via markup on each submittal, the appropriate action.
- B. Informational Submittals: Engineer will review each submittal and will not return it, or will return it if it does not comply with requirements. Engineer will forward each submittal to appropriate party.

- C. Partial submittals prepared for a portion of the Work will be reviewed when use of partial submittals has received prior approval from Engineer.
- D. Incomplete submittals are unacceptable, will be considered nonresponsive, and will be returned for resubmittal without review.
- E. Engineer will return without review submittals received from sources other than Contractor.
- F. Submittals not required by the Contract Documents will be returned by Engineer without action.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

END OF SECTION 013300

SECTION 016000

PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and other Division 01 Specification Sections, apply to this Section.

1.2 SUMMARY

- A. Section includes administrative and procedural requirements for selection of products for use in Project; product delivery, storage, and handling; manufacturers' standard warranties on products; special warranties; and comparable products.
- B. Related Requirements:
 - 1. Section 011000 "Summary" for Contractor requirements related to Owner-furnished products.
 - 2. Section 012500 "Substitution Procedures" for requests for substitutions.
 - 3. Section 014200 "References" for applicable industry standards for products specified.
 - 4. Section 01770 "Closeout Procedures" for submitting warranties.
- 1.3 DEFINITIONS
 - A. Products: Items obtained for incorporating into the Work, whether purchased for Project or taken from previously purchased stock. The term "product" includes the terms "material," "equipment," "system," and terms of similar intent.
 - 1. Named Products: Items identified by manufacturer's product name, including make or model number or other designation shown or listed in manufacturer's published product literature that is current as of date of the Contract Documents.
 - 2. New Products: Items that have not previously been incorporated into another project or facility. Salvaged items or items reused from other projects are not considered new products. Items that are manufactured or fabricated to include recycled content materials are considered new products, unless indicated otherwise.
 - 3. Comparable Product: Product by named manufacturer that is demonstrated and approved through the comparable product submittal process described in Part 2 "Comparable Products" Article, to have the indicated qualities related to type, function, dimension, inservice performance, physical properties, appearance, and other characteristics that equal or exceed those of specified product.
 - B. Basis-of-Design Product Specification: A specification in which a single manufacturer's product is named and accompanied by the words "basis-of-design product," including make or model number or other designation. Published attributes and characteristics of basis-of-design product establish salient characteristics of products.
 - 1. Evaluation of Comparable Products: In addition to the basis-of-design product description, product attributes and characteristics may be listed to establish the significant qualities related to type, function, in-service performance and physical properties, weight, dimension, durability, visual characteristics, and other special features and requirements for purposes of evaluating comparable products of additional manufacturers named in the specification. Manufacturer's published attributes and characteristics of basis-of-design product also establish salient characteristics of products for purposes of evaluating comparable products.
 - C. Subject to Compliance with Requirements: Where the phrase "Subject to compliance with requirements" introduces a product selection procedure in an individual Specification Section,

provide products qualified under the specified product procedure. In the event that a named product or product by a named manufacturer does not meet the other requirements of the specifications, select another named product or product from another named manufacturer that does meet the requirements of the specifications; submit a comparable product request or substitution request, if applicable.

- D. Comparable Product Request Submittal: An action submittal requesting consideration of a comparable product, including the following information:
 - 1. Identification of basis-of-design product or fabrication or installation method to be replaced, including Specification Section number and title and Drawing numbers and titles.
 - 2. Data indicating compliance with the requirements specified in Part 2 "Comparable Products" Article.
- E. Basis-of-Design Product Specification Submittal: An action submittal complying with requirements in Section 013300 "Submittal Procedures."
- F. Substitution: Refer to Section 012500 "Substitution Procedures" for definition and limitations on substitutions.

1.4 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Compatibility of Options: If Contractor is given option of selecting between two or more products for use on Project, select product compatible with products previously selected, even if previously selected products were also options.
 - 1. Resolution of Compatibility Disputes between Multiple Contractors:
 - a. Contractors are responsible for providing products and construction methods compatible with products and construction methods of other contractors.
 - b. If a dispute arises between the multiple contractors over concurrently selectable but incompatible products, Engineer will determine which products shall be used.
- B. Identification of Products: Except for required labels and operating data, do not attach or imprint manufacturer or product names or trademarks on exposed surfaces of products or equipment that will be exposed to view in occupied spaces or on the exterior.
 - 1. Labels: Locate required product labels and stamps on a concealed surface, or, where required for observation following installation, on a visually accessible surface that is not conspicuous.
 - 2. Equipment Nameplates: Provide a permanent nameplate on each item of service- or power-operated equipment. Locate on a visually accessible but inconspicuous surface. Include information essential for operation, including the following:
 - a. Name of product and manufacturer.
 - b. Model and serial number.
 - c. Capacity.
 - d. Speed.
 - e. Ratings.
 - 3. See individual identification Sections in Divisions 21, 22, 23, and 26 for additional equipment identification requirements.

1.5 COORDINATION

- A. Modify or adjust affected work as necessary to integrate work of approved comparable products and approved substitutions.
- 1.6 PRODUCT DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING
 - A. Deliver, store, and handle products, using means and methods that will prevent damage, deterioration, and loss, including theft and vandalism. Comply with manufacturer's written instructions.
 - B. Delivery and Handling:

- 1. Schedule delivery to minimize long-term storage at Project site and to prevent overcrowding of construction spaces.
- 2. Coordinate delivery with installation time to ensure minimum holding time for items that are flammable, hazardous, easily damaged, or sensitive to deterioration, theft, and other losses.
- 3. Deliver products to Project site in an undamaged condition in manufacturer's original sealed container or other packaging system, complete with labels and instructions for handling, storing, unpacking, protecting, and installing.
- 4. Inspect products on delivery to determine compliance with the Contract Documents and that products are undamaged and properly protected.
- C. Storage:
 - 1. Provide a secure location and enclosure at Project site for storage of materials and equipment.
 - 2. Store products to allow for inspection and measurement of quantity or counting of units.
 - 3. Store materials in a manner that will not endanger Project structure.
 - 4. Store products that are subject to damage by the elements under cover in a weathertight enclosure above ground, with ventilation adequate to prevent condensation and with adequate protection from wind.
 - 5. Protect foam plastic from exposure to sunlight, except to extent necessary for period of installation and concealment.
 - 6. Comply with product manufacturer's written instructions for temperature, humidity, ventilation, and weather-protection requirements for storage.
 - 7. Protect stored products from damage and liquids from freezing.
 - 8. Provide a secure location and enclosure at Project site for storage of materials and equipment by Owner's construction forces. Coordinate location with Owner.

1.7 PRODUCT WARRANTIES

- A. Warranties specified in other Sections shall be in addition to, and run concurrent with, other warranties required by the Contract Documents. Manufacturer's disclaimers and limitations on product warranties do not relieve Contractor of obligations under requirements of the Contract Documents.
 - 1. Manufacturer's Warranty: Written standard warranty form furnished by individual manufacturer for a particular product and issued in the name of the Owner or endorsed by manufacturer to Owner.
 - 2. Special Warranty: Written warranty required by the Contract Documents to provide specific rights for Owner and issued in the name of the Owner or endorsed by manufacturer to Owner.
- B. Special Warranties: Prepare a written document that contains appropriate terms and identification, ready for execution.
 - 1. Manufacturer's Standard Form: Modified to include Project-specific information and properly executed.
 - 2. Specified Form: When specified forms are included in the Project Manual, prepare a written document, using indicated form properly executed.
 - 3. See other Sections for specific content requirements and particular requirements for submitting special warranties.
- C. Submittal Time: Comply with requirements in Section 017700 "Closeout Procedures."

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

- A. PRODUCT SELECTION PROCEDURES
 - 1. General Product Requirements: Provide products that comply with the Contract Documents, are undamaged and, unless otherwise indicated, are new at time of installation.
 - a. Provide products complete with accessories, trim, finish, fasteners, and other items needed for a complete installation and indicated use and effect.
 - b. Standard Products: If available, and unless custom products or nonstandard options are specified, provide standard products of types that have been produced and used successfully in similar situations on other projects.
 - c. Owner reserves the right to limit selection to products with warranties meeting requirements of the Contract Documents.
 - d. Where products are accompanied by the term "as selected," Engineer will make selection.
 - e. Descriptive, performance, and reference standard requirements in the Specifications establish salient characteristics of products.
 - f. Or Equal: For products specified by name and accompanied by the term "or equal," "or approved equal," or "or approved," comply with requirements in "Comparable Products" Article to obtain approval for use of an unnamed product.
 - Submit additional documentation required by Engineer in order to establish equivalency of proposed products. Unless otherwise indicated, evaluation of "or equal" product status is by the Engineer, whose determination is final.
 - 2. Product Selection Procedures:
 - a. Sole Product: Where Specifications name a single manufacturer and product, provide the named product that complies with requirements. Comparable products or substitutions for Contractor's convenience will not be considered.
 - 1) Sole product may be indicated by the phrase "Subject to compliance with requirements, provide the following."
 - b. Sole Manufacturer/Source: Where Specifications name a single manufacturer or source, provide a product by the named manufacturer or source that complies with requirements. Comparable products or substitutions for Contractor's convenience will not be considered.
 - 1) Sole manufacturer/source may be indicated by the phrase "Subject to compliance with requirements, provide products by the following."
 - c. Limited List of Products: Where Specifications include a list of names of both manufacturers and products, provide one of the products listed that complies with requirements. Comparable products or substitutions for Contractor's convenience will **not** be considered **unless otherwise indicated**.
 - 1) Limited list of products may be indicated by the phrase "Subject to compliance with requirements, provide one of the following."
 - d. Non-Limited List of Products: Where Specifications include a list of names of both available manufacturers and products, provide one of the products listed or an unnamed product that complies with requirements.
 - 1) Non-limited list of products is indicated by the phrase "Subject to compliance with requirements, available products that may be incorporated in the Work include, but are not limited to, the following."
 - 2) Provision of an unnamed product is not considered a substitution, if the product complies with requirements.

- e. Limited List of Manufacturers: Where Specifications include a list of manufacturers' names, provide a product by one of the manufacturers listed that complies with requirements. Comparable products or substitutions for Contractor's convenience will **not** be considered **unless otherwise indicated**.
 - 1) Limited list of manufacturers is indicated by the phrase "Subject to compliance with requirements, provide products by one of the following."
- f. Non-Limited List of Manufacturers: Where Specifications include a list of available manufacturers, provide a product by one of the manufacturers listed or a product by an unnamed manufacturer that complies with requirements.
 - 1) Non-limited list of manufacturers is indicated by the phrase "Subject to compliance with requirements, available manufacturers whose products may be incorporated in the Work include, but are not limited to, the following."
 - 2) Provision of products of an unnamed manufacturer is not considered a substitution, if the product complies with requirements.
- g. Basis-of-Design Product: Where Specifications name a product, or refer to a product indicated on Drawings, and include a list of manufacturers, provide the specified or indicated product or a comparable product by one of the other named manufacturers. Drawings and Specifications may additionally indicate sizes, profiles, dimensions, and other characteristics that are based on the product named. Comply with requirements in "Comparable Products" Article for consideration of an unnamed product by one of the other named manufacturers.
- h. For approval of products by unnamed manufacturers, comply with requirements in Section 012500 "Substitution Procedures" for substitutions for convenience.

2.2 COMPARABLE PRODUCTS

- A. Conditions for Consideration of Comparable Products: Engineer will consider Contractor's request for comparable product when the following conditions are satisfied. If the following conditions are not satisfied, Engineer may return requests without action, except to record noncompliance with the following requirements:
 - 1. Evidence that proposed product does not require revisions to the Contract Documents, is consistent with the Contract Documents, will produce the indicated results, and is compatible with other portions of the Work.
 - 2. Detailed comparison of significant qualities of proposed product with those of the named basis-of-design product. Significant product qualities include attributes, such as type, function, in-service performance and physical properties, weight, dimension, durability, visual characteristics, and other specific features and requirements.
 - 3. Evidence that proposed product provides specified warranty.
 - 4. List of similar installations for completed projects, with project names and addresses and names and addresses of Engineer sand owners, if requested.
 - 5. Samples, if requested.
- B. Engineers Action on Comparable Products Submittal: If necessary, Engineer will request additional information or documentation for evaluation, as specified in Section 013300 "Submittal Procedures."
 - 1. Form of Approval of Submittal: As specified in Section 013300 "Submittal Procedures."
 - 2. Use product specified if Engineer does not issue a decision on use of a comparable product request within time allocated.
- C. Submittal Requirements, Two-Step Process: Approval by the Engineer of Contractor's request for use of comparable product is not intended to satisfy other submittal requirements. Comply with specified submittal requirements.

D. Submittal Requirements, Single-Step Process: When acceptable to Engineer, incorporate specified submittal requirements of individual Specification Section in combined submittal for comparable products. Approval by the Engineer of Contractor's request for use of comparable product and of individual submittal requirements will also satisfy other submittal requirements.

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

END OF SECTION 016000

SECTION 017300

EXECUTION

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and other Division 01 Specification Sections, apply to this Section.

1.2 SUMMARY

- A. Section includes general administrative and procedural requirements governing execution of the Work, including, but not limited to, the following:
 - 1. Construction layout.
 - 2. Field engineering and surveying.
 - 3. Installation of the Work.
 - 4. Cutting and patching.
 - 5. Coordination of Owner's portion of the Work.
 - 6. Coordination of Owner-installed products.
 - 7. Progress cleaning.
 - 8. Starting and adjusting.
 - 9. Protection of installed construction.
- 1.3 DEFINITIONS
 - A. Cutting: Removal of in-place construction necessary to permit installation or performance of subsequent work.
 - B. Patching: Fitting and repair work required to restore construction to original conditions after installation of subsequent work.

1.4 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. Professional Engineer Qualifications: Refer to Section 014000 "Quality Requirements."
- B. Cutting and Patching: Comply with requirements for and limitations on cutting and patching of construction elements.
 - 1. Structural Elements: When cutting and patching structural elements, or when encountering the need for cutting and patching of elements whose structural function is not known, notify Engineer of locations and details of cutting and await directions from Engineer before proceeding. Shore, brace, and support structural elements during cutting and patching. Do not cut and patch structural elements in a manner that could change their load-carrying capacity or increase deflection.
 - 2. Operational Elements: Do not cut and patch operating elements and related components in a manner that results in reducing their capacity to perform as intended or that results in increased maintenance or decreased operational life or safety. Operational elements include the following:
 - a. Primary operational systems and equipment.
 - b. Fire separation assemblies.
 - c. Air or smoke barriers.
 - d. Fire-suppression systems.
 - e. Plumbing piping systems.
 - f. Mechanical systems piping and ducts.

- g. Control systems.
- h. Communication systems.
- i. Fire-detection and -alarm systems.
- j. Conveying systems.
- k. Electrical wiring systems.
- I. Operating systems of special construction.
- 3. Other Construction Elements: Do not cut and patch other construction elements or components in a manner that could change their load-carrying capacity, that results in reducing their capacity to perform as intended, or that results in increased maintenance or decreased operational life or safety. Other construction elements include but are not limited to the following:
 - a. Water, moisture, or vapor barriers.
 - b. Membranes and flashings.
 - c. Exterior curtain-wall construction.
 - d. Sprayed fire-resistive material.
 - e. Equipment supports.
 - f. Piping, ductwork, vessels, and equipment.
 - g. Noise- and vibration-control elements and systems.
- 4. Visual Elements: Do not cut and patch construction in a manner that results in visual evidence of cutting and patching. Do not cut and patch exposed construction in a manner that would, in Engineer's opinion, reduce the building's aesthetic qualities. Remove and replace construction that has been cut and patched in a visually unsatisfactory manner.
- C. Manufacturer's Installation Instructions: Obtain and maintain on-site manufacturer's written recommendations and instructions for installation of specified products and equipment.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.1 MATERIALS

- A. Comply with requirements specified in other Sections.
 - 1. For projects requiring compliance with sustainable design and construction practices and procedures, use products for patching that comply with sustainable design requirements.
- B. In-Place Materials: Use materials for patching identical to in-place materials. For exposed surfaces, use materials that visually match in-place adjacent surfaces to the fullest extent possible.
 - 1. If identical materials are unavailable or cannot be used, use materials that, when installed, will provide a match acceptable to Engineer for the visual and functional performance of inplace materials. Use materials that are not considered hazardous.
- C. Cleaning Agents: Use cleaning materials and agents recommended by manufacturer or fabricator of the surface to be cleaned. Do not use cleaning agents that are potentially hazardous to health or property or that might damage finished surfaces.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.1 EXAMINATION

A. Existing Conditions: The existence and location of underground and other utilities and construction indicated as existing are not guaranteed. Before beginning sitework, investigate

and verify the existence and location of underground utilities, mechanical and electrical systems, and other construction affecting the Work.

- 1. Before construction, verify the location and invert elevation at points of connection of sanitary sewer, storm sewer, gas service piping, and water-service piping; underground electrical services; and other utilities.
- 2. Furnish location data for work related to Project that must be performed by public utilities serving Project site.
- B. Examination and Acceptance of Conditions: Before proceeding with each component of the Work, examine substrates, areas, and conditions, with Installer or Applicator present where indicated, for compliance with requirements for installation tolerances and other conditions affecting performance. Record observations.
 - 1. Examine roughing-in for mechanical and electrical systems to verify actual locations of connections before equipment and fixture installation.
 - 2. Examine walls, floors, and roofs for suitable conditions where products and systems are to be installed.
 - 3. Verify compatibility with and suitability of substrates, including compatibility with existing finishes or primers.
- C. Written Report: Where a written report listing conditions detrimental to performance of the Work is required by other Sections, include the following:
 - 1. Description of the Work, including Specification Section number and paragraph, and Drawing sheet number and detail, where applicable.
 - 2. List of detrimental conditions, including substrates.
 - 3. List of unacceptable installation tolerances.
 - 4. Recommended corrections.
- D. Proceed with installation only after unsatisfactory conditions have been corrected. Proceeding with the Work indicates acceptance of surfaces and conditions.

3.2 PREPARATION

- A. Existing Utility Information: Furnish information to local utility and Owner that is necessary to adjust, move, or relocate existing utility structures, utility poles, lines, services, or other utility appurtenances located in or affected by construction. Coordinate with authorities having jurisdiction.
- B. Field Measurements: Take field measurements as required to fit the Work properly. Recheck measurements before installing each product. Where portions of the Work are indicated to fit to other construction, verify dimensions of other construction by field measurements before fabrication. Coordinate fabrication schedule with construction progress to avoid delaying the Work.
- C. Space Requirements: Verify space requirements and dimensions of items shown diagrammatically on Drawings.
- D. Review of Contract Documents and Field Conditions: Immediately on discovery of the need for clarification of the Contract Documents, submit a request for information to Engineer in accordance with requirements in Section 013100 "Project Management and Coordination."

3.3 CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT

- A. Verification: Before proceeding to lay out the Work, verify layout information shown on Drawings, in relation to the property survey and existing benchmarks and existing conditions. If discrepancies are discovered, notify Engineer promptly.
- 3.4 INSTALLATION
 - A. Locate the Work and components of the Work accurately, in correct alignment and elevation, as indicated.
- 1. Make vertical work plumb, and make horizontal work level.
- 2. Where space is limited, install components to maximize space available for maintenance and ease of removal for replacement.
- 3. Conceal pipes, ducts, and wiring in finished areas unless otherwise indicated.
- 4. Maintain maximum headroom where possible. Minimum headroom clearance of 96 inches (2440 mm)] in occupied spaces and 90 inches (2300 mm) in unoccupied spaces, unless otherwise indicated on Drawings.
- B. Comply with manufacturer's written instructions and recommendations for installing products in applications indicated.
- C. Install products at the time and under conditions that will ensure satisfactory results as judged by Engineer. Maintain conditions required for product performance until Substantial Completion.
- D. Conduct construction operations, so no part of the Work is subjected to damaging operations or loading in excess of that expected during normal conditions of occupancy of type expected for Project.
- E. Sequence the Work and allow adequate clearances to accommodate movement of construction items on-site and placement in permanent locations.
- F. Tools and Equipment: Select tools or equipment that minimize production of excessive noise levels.
- G. Templates: Obtain and distribute to the parties involved templates for Work specified to be factory prepared and field installed. Check Shop Drawings of other portions of the Work to confirm that adequate provisions are made for locating and installing products to comply with indicated requirements.
- H. Attachment: Provide blocking and attachment plates and anchors and fasteners of adequate size and number to securely anchor each component in place, accurately located and aligned with other portions of the Work. Where size and type of attachments are not indicated, verify size and type required for load conditions with manufacturer.
 - 1. Mounting Heights: Where mounting heights are not indicated, mount components at heights directed by Engineer.
 - 2. Allow for building movement, including thermal expansion and contraction.
 - 3. Coordinate installation of anchorages. Furnish setting drawings, templates, and directions for installing anchorages, including sleeves, concrete inserts, anchor bolts, and items with integral anchors, that are to be embedded in concrete or masonry. Deliver such items to Project site in time for installation.
- I. Joints: Make joints of uniform width. Where joint locations in exposed Work are not indicated, arrange joints for the best visual effect, as judged by Engineer. Fit exposed connections together to form hairline joints.
- J. Repair or remove and replace damaged, defective, or nonconforming Work.
 - 1. Comply with Section 017700 "Closeout Procedures" for repairing or removing and replacing defective Work.

3.5 CUTTING AND PATCHING

- A. General: Employ skilled workers to perform cutting and patching. Proceed with cutting and patching at the earliest feasible time, and complete without delay.
 - 1. Cut in-place construction to provide for installation of other components or performance of other construction, and subsequently patch as required to restore surfaces to their original condition.
- B. Existing Warranties: Remove, replace, patch, and repair materials and surfaces cut or damaged during installation or cutting and patching operations, by methods and with materials so as not to void existing warranties.
- C. Temporary Support: Provide temporary support of Work to be cut.

- D. Protection: Protect in-place construction during cutting and patching to prevent damage. Provide protection from adverse weather conditions for portions of Project that might be exposed during cutting and patching operations.
- E. Adjacent Occupied Areas: Where interference with use of adjoining areas or interruption of free passage to adjoining areas is unavoidable, coordinate cutting and patching in accordance with requirements in Section 011000 "Summary."
- F. Existing Utility Services and Mechanical/Electrical Systems: Where existing services/systems are required to be removed, relocated, or abandoned, bypass such services/systems before cutting to minimize interruption to occupied areas.
- G. Cutting: Cut in-place construction by sawing, drilling, breaking, chipping, grinding, and similar operations, including excavation, using methods least likely to damage elements retained or adjoining construction. If possible, review proposed procedures with original Installer; comply with original Installer's written recommendations.
 - 1. In general, use hand or small power tools designed for sawing and grinding, not hammering and chopping. Cut holes and slots neatly to minimum size required, and with minimum disturbance of adjacent surfaces. Temporarily cover openings when not in use.
 - 2. Finished Surfaces: Cut or drill from the exposed or finished side into concealed surfaces.
 - 3. Concrete and Masonry: Cut using a cutting machine, such as an abrasive saw or a diamond-core drill.
 - 4. Excavating and Backfilling: Comply with requirements in applicable Sections where required by cutting and patching operations.
 - 5. Mechanical and Electrical Services: Cut off pipe or conduit in walls or partitions to be removed. Cap, valve, or plug and seal remaining portion of pipe or conduit to prevent entrance of moisture or other foreign matter after cutting.
 - 6. Proceed with patching after construction operations requiring cutting are complete.
- H. Patching: Patch construction by filling, repairing, refinishing, closing up, and similar operations following performance of other Work. Patch with durable seams that are as invisible as practicable, as judged by Engineer. Provide materials and comply with installation requirements specified in other Sections, where applicable.
 - 1. Inspection: Where feasible, test and inspect patched areas after completion to demonstrate physical integrity of installation.
 - 2. Exposed Finishes: Restore exposed finishes of patched areas and extend finish restoration into retained adjoining construction in a manner that will eliminate evidence of patching and refinishing.
 - a. Clean piping, conduit, and similar features before applying paint or other finishing materials.
 - b. Restore damaged pipe covering to its original condition.
 - 3. Insert specific refinishing requirements for floors, walls, and ceilings. Revise "Floors and Walls" Subparagraph below to suit Project.
 - 4. Floors and Walls: Where walls or partitions that are removed extend one finished area into another, patch and repair floor and wall surfaces in the new space. Provide an even surface of uniform finish, color, texture, and appearance. Remove in-place floor and wall coverings and replace with new materials, if necessary, to achieve uniform color and appearance.
 - a. Where patching occurs in a painted surface, prepare substrate and apply primer and intermediate paint coats appropriate for substrate over the patch, and apply final paint coat over entire unbroken surface containing the patch, corner to corner of wall and edge to edge of ceiling. Provide additional coats until patch blends with adjacent surfaces.

- 5. Revise "Ceilings" Subparagraph below to suit Project or delete.
- 6. Ceilings: Patch, repair, or rehang in-place ceilings as necessary to provide an even-plane surface of uniform appearance.
- 7. Exterior Building Enclosure: Patch components in a manner that restores enclosure to a weathertight condition and ensures thermal and moisture integrity of building enclosure.
- I. Cleaning: Clean areas and spaces where cutting and patching are performed. Remove paint, mortar, oils, putty, and similar materials from adjacent finished surfaces.

3.6 COORDINATION OF OWNER'S PORTION OF THE WORK

- A. Site Access: Provide access to Project site for Owner's construction personnel and Owner's separate contractors.
- B. Coordination: Coordinate construction and operations of the Work with work performed by Owner's construction personnel and Owner's separate contractors.
 - 1. Construction Schedule: Inform Owner of Contractor's preferred construction schedule for Owner's portion of the Work. Adjust construction schedule based on a mutually agreeable timetable. Notify Owner if changes to schedule are required due to differences in actual construction progress.
 - 2. Preinstallation Conferences: Include Owner's construction personnel and Owner's separate contractors at preinstallation conferences covering portions of the Work that are to receive Owner's work. Attend preinstallation conferences conducted by Owner's construction personnel if portions of the Work depend on Owner's construction.

3.7 PROGRESS CLEANING

- A. Clean Project site and work areas daily, including common areas. Enforce requirements strictly. Dispose of materials lawfully.
 - 1. Comply with requirements in NFPA 241 for removal of combustible waste materials and debris.
 - 2. Do not hold waste materials more than seven days during normal weather or three days if the temperature is expected to rise above 80 deg F (27 deg C).
 - 3. Containerize hazardous and unsanitary waste materials separately from other waste. Mark containers appropriately and dispose of legally, according to regulations.
 - a. Use containers intended for holding waste materials of type to be stored.
 - 4. Retain subparagraph below for projects involving multiple contracts.
 - 5. Coordinate progress cleaning for joint-use areas where Contractor and other contractors are working concurrently.
- B. Site: Maintain Project site free of waste materials and debris.
- C. Work Areas: Clean areas where Work is in progress to the level of cleanliness necessary for proper execution of the Work.
 - 1. Remove liquid spills promptly.
 - 2. Where dust would impair proper execution of the Work, broom-clean or vacuum the entire work area, as appropriate.
- D. Installed Work: Keep installed work clean. Clean installed surfaces according to written instructions of manufacturer or fabricator of product installed, using only cleaning materials specifically recommended. If specific cleaning materials are not recommended, use cleaning materials that are not hazardous to health or property and that will not damage exposed surfaces.
- E. Concealed Spaces: Remove debris from concealed spaces before enclosing the space.
- F. Exposed Surfaces: Clean exposed surfaces and protect as necessary to ensure freedom from damage and deterioration at time of Substantial Completion.

- G. Waste Disposal: Do not bury or burn waste materials on-site. Do not wash waste materials down sewers or into waterways. Comply with waste disposal requirements in Section 015000 "Temporary Facilities and Controls." And Section 017419 "Construction Waste Management and Disposal."
- H. Three paragraphs below reduce or eliminate the need for similar provisions in other Sections. Insert other provisions needed because of unusual Project conditions. Specify unusual provisions for specific work in the individual Section.
- I. During handling and installation, clean and protect construction in progress and adjoining materials already in place. Apply protective covering where required to ensure protection from damage or deterioration at Substantial Completion.
- J. Clean and provide maintenance on completed construction as frequently as necessary through the remainder of the construction period. Adjust and lubricate operable components to ensure operability without damaging effects.
- K. If necessary, revise "Limiting Exposures" Paragraph below by inserting a list of exposures. See the Evaluations.
- L. Limiting Exposures: Supervise construction operations to ensure that no part of the construction, completed or in progress, is subject to harmful, dangerous, damaging, or otherwise deleterious exposure during the construction period.

3.8 STARTING AND ADJUSTING

- A. Start equipment and operating components to confirm proper operation. Remove malfunctioning units, replace with new units, and retest.
- B. Adjust equipment for proper operation. Adjust operating components for proper operation without binding.
- C. Test each piece of equipment to verify proper operation. Test and adjust controls and safeties. Replace damaged and malfunctioning controls and equipment.
- D. Manufacturer's Field Service: Comply with qualification requirements in Section 014000 "Quality Requirements."

3.9 PROTECTION AND REPAIR OF INSTALLED CONSTRUCTION

- A. Provide final protection and maintain conditions that ensure installed Work is without damage or deterioration at time of Substantial Completion.
- B. Repair Work previously completed and subsequently damaged during construction period. Repair to like-new condition.
- C. Protection of Existing Items: Provide protection and ensure that existing items to remain undisturbed by construction are maintained in condition that existed at commencement of the Work.
- D. Comply with manufacturer's written instructions for temperature and relative humidity.

END OF SECTION 017300

SECTION 017700

CLOSEOUT PROCEDURES

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and other Division 01 Specification Sections, apply to this Section.

1.2 SUMMARY

- A. Section includes administrative and procedural requirements for Contract closeout, including, but not limited to, the following:
 - 1. Substantial Completion procedures.
 - 2. Final completion procedures.
 - 3. Warranties.
 - 4. Final cleaning.
- B. Related Requirements:
 - 1. Section 017823 "Operation and Maintenance Data" for additional operation and maintenance manual requirements.
 - 2. Section 017839 "Project Record Documents" for submitting Record Drawings, Record Specifications, and Record Product Data.
 - 3. Section 017900 "Demonstration and Training" for requirements to train the Owner's maintenance personnel to adjust, operate, and maintain products, equipment, and systems.
- 1.3 DEFINITIONS
 - A. List of Incomplete Items: Contractor-prepared list of items to be completed or corrected, prepared for the Engineer's use prior to Engineer's inspection, to determine if the Work is substantially complete.
- 1.4 ACTION SUBMITTALS
 - A. Product Data: For each type of cleaning agent.
 - B. Contractor's List of Incomplete Items: Initial submittal at Substantial Completion.
 - C. Certified List of Incomplete Items: Final submittal at Final Completion.
- 1.5 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS
 - A. Certificates of Release: From authorities having jurisdiction.
 - B. Certificate of Insurance: For continuing coverage.
 - C. Field Report: For pest-control inspection.
- 1.6 MAINTENANCE MATERIAL SUBMITTALS
 - A. Schedule of Maintenance Material Items: For maintenance material submittal items required by other Sections.
- 1.7 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION PROCEDURES
 - A. Contractor's List of Incomplete Items: Prepare and submit a list of items to be completed and corrected (Contractor's "punch list"), indicating the value of each item on the list and reasons why the Work is incomplete.
 - B. Submittals Prior to Substantial Completion: Complete the following a minimum of 10 days prior to requesting inspection for determining date of Substantial Completion. List items below that are incomplete at time of request.

- 1. Certificates of Release: Obtain and submit releases from authorities having jurisdiction, permitting Owner unrestricted use of the Work and access to services and utilities. Include occupancy permits, operating certificates, and similar releases.
- 2. Submit closeout submittals specified in other Division 01 Sections, including Project Record Documents, operation and maintenance manuals, damage or settlement surveys, property surveys, and similar final record information.
- 3. Submit closeout submittals specified in individual Sections, including specific warranties, workmanship bonds, maintenance service agreements, final certifications, and similar documents.
- 4. Submit maintenance material submittals specified in individual Sections, including tools, spare parts, extra materials, and similar items, and deliver to location designated by Engineer. Label with manufacturer's name and model number.
 - a. Schedule of Maintenance Material Items: Prepare and submit schedule of maintenance material submittal items, including name and quantity of each item and name and number of related Specification Section. Obtain Engineer's and Owner's signature for receipt of submittals.
- 5. Submit testing, adjusting, and balancing records.
- 6. Submit sustainable design submittals not previously submitted.
- 7. Submit changeover information related to Owner's occupancy, use, operation, and maintenance.
- C. Procedures Prior to Substantial Completion: Complete the following a minimum of 10 days prior to requesting inspection for determining date of Substantial Completion. List items below that are incomplete at time of request.
 - 1. Advise Owner of pending insurance changeover requirements.
 - 2. Make final changeover of permanent locks and deliver keys to Owner. Advise Owner's personnel of changeover in security provisions.
 - 3. Complete startup and testing of systems and equipment.
 - 4. Perform preventive maintenance on equipment used prior to Substantial Completion.
 - 5. Instruct Owner's personnel in operation, adjustment, and maintenance of products, equipment, and systems. Submit demonstration and training video recordings specified in Section 017900 "Demonstration and Training."
 - 6. Advise Owner of changeover in utility services.
 - 7. Participate with Owner in conducting inspection and walkthrough with local emergency responders.
 - 8. Terminate and remove temporary facilities from Project site, along with mockups, construction tools, and similar elements.
 - 9. Complete final cleaning requirements.
 - 10. Touch up paint and otherwise repair and restore marred exposed finishes to eliminate visual defects.
- D. Inspection: Submit a written request for inspection to determine Substantial Completion a minimum of [0 days prior to date the Work will be completed and ready for final inspection and tests. On receipt of request, Engineer will either proceed with inspection or notify Contractor of unfulfilled requirements. Engineer will prepare the Certificate of Substantial Completion after inspection or will notify Contractor of items, either on Contractor's list or additional items identified by Engineer, that must be completed or corrected before certificate will be issued.
 - 1. Request reinspection when the Work identified in previous inspections as incomplete is completed or corrected.
 - 2. Results of completed inspection will form the basis of requirements for Final Completion.

1.8 FINAL COMPLETION PROCEDURES

- A. Submittals Prior to Final Completion: Before requesting final inspection for determining Final Completion, complete the following:
 - 1. Submit a final Application for Payment in accordance with Section 012900 "Payment Procedures."
 - 2. Certified List of Incomplete Items: Submit certified copy of Engineer's Substantial Completion inspection list of items to be completed or corrected (punch list), endorsed and dated by Engineer. Certified copy of the list shall state that each item has been completed or otherwise resolved for acceptance.
 - 3. Certificate of Insurance: Submit evidence of final, continuing insurance coverage complying with insurance requirements.
 - 4. Submit pest-control final inspection report.
 - 5. Submit Final Completion photographic documentation.
- B. Inspection: Submit a written request for final inspection to determine acceptance a minimum of 10 days prior to date the Work will be completed and ready for final inspection and tests. On receipt of request, Engineerwill either proceed with inspection or notify Contractor of unfulfilled requirements. Engineer will prepare a final Certificate for Payment after inspection or will notify Contractor of construction that must be completed or corrected before certificate will be issued.
 - 1. Request reinspection when the Work identified in previous inspections as incomplete is completed or corrected.

1.9 LIST OF INCOMPLETE ITEMS

- A. Organization of List: Include name and identification of each space and area affected by construction operations for incomplete items and items needing correction including, if necessary, areas disturbed by Contractor that are outside the limits of construction.
 - 1. Organize list of spaces in sequential order, starting with exterior areas first and proceeding from lowest floor to highest floor, listed by room or space number.
 - 2. Organize items applying to each space by major element, including categories for ceilings, individual walls, floors, equipment, and building systems.
 - 3. Include the following information at the top of each page:
 - a. Project name.
 - b. Date.
 - c. Name of Engineer
 - d. Name of Contractor.
 - e. Page number.
 - 4. Submit list of incomplete items in the following format:
 - a. MS Excel Electronic File: Engineer will return annotated file.
 - b. PDF Electronic File: Engineer will return annotated file.

1.10 SUBMITTAL OF PROJECT WARRANTIES

- A. Time of Submittal: Submit written warranties on request of Engineer for designated portions of the Work where warranties are indicated to commence on dates other than date of Substantial Completion, or when delay in submittal of warranties might limit Owner's rights under warranty.
- B. Partial Occupancy: Submit properly executed warranties within 15 days of completion of designated portions of the Work that are completed and occupied or used by Owner during construction period by separate agreement with Contractor.
- C. Organize warranty documents into an orderly sequence based on the table of contents of Project Manual.

- D. Warranty Electronic File: Provide warranties and bonds in PDF format. Assemble complete warranty and bond submittal package into a single electronic PDF file with bookmarks enabling navigation to each item. Provide bookmarked table of contents at beginning of document.
 - 1. Submit on digital media acceptable to Engineer
- E. Provide additional copies of each warranty to include in operation and maintenance manuals.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

2.1 MATERIALS

- A. Cleaning Agents: Use cleaning materials and agents recommended by manufacturer or fabricator of the surface to be cleaned. Do not use cleaning agents that are potentially hazardous to health or property or that might damage finished surfaces.
 - a. Use cleaning products that comply with Green Seal's GS-37, or if GS-37 is not applicable, use products that comply with the California Code of Regulations maximum allowable VOC levels.

PART 3 - EXECUTION

3.1 FINAL CLEANING

- A. General: Perform final cleaning. Conduct cleaning and waste-removal operations to comply with local laws and ordinances and Federal and local environmental and antipollution regulations.
- B. Cleaning: Employ experienced workers or professional cleaners for final cleaning. Clean each surface or unit to condition expected in an average commercial building cleaning and maintenance program. Comply with manufacturer's written instructions.
 - 1. Complete the following cleaning operations before requesting inspection for certification of Substantial Completion for entire Project or for a designated portion of Project:
 - a. Clean Project site of rubbish, waste material, litter, and other foreign substances.
 - b. Sweep paved areas broom clean. Remove petrochemical spills, stains, and other foreign deposits.
 - c. Rake grounds that are not planted, mulched, or paved to a smooth, even-textured surface.
 - d. Remove tools, construction equipment, machinery, and surplus material from Project site.
 - e. Remove snow and ice to provide safe access to building.
 - f. Clean exposed exterior and interior hard-surfaced finishes to a dirt-free condition, free of stains, films, and similar foreign substances. Avoid disturbing natural weathering of exterior surfaces. Restore reflective surfaces to their original condition.
 - g. Remove debris and surface dust from limited-access spaces, including roofs, plenums, shafts, trenches, equipment vaults, manholes, attics, and similar spaces.
 - h. Clean flooring, removing debris, dirt, and staining; clean according to manufacturer's recommendations.
 - i. Vacuum and mop concrete.
 - j. Vacuum carpet and similar soft surfaces, removing debris and excess nap; clean according to manufacturer's recommendations if visible soil or stains remain.
 - k. Clean transparent materials, including mirrors and glass in doors and windows. Remove glazing compounds and other noticeable, vision-obscuring materials. Polish mirrors and glass, taking care not to scratch surfaces.
 - I. Remove labels that are not permanent.

HENDERSON ENGINEERS

- m. Wipe surfaces of mechanical and electrical equipment and similar equipment. Remove excess lubrication, paint and mortar droppings, and other foreign substances.
- n. Clean plumbing fixtures to a sanitary condition, free of stains, including stains resulting from water exposure.
- o. Replace disposable air filters and clean permanent air filters. Clean exposed surfaces of diffusers, registers, and grills.
- p. Clean ducts, blowers, and coils if units were operated without filters during construction or that display contamination with particulate matter on inspection.
 - 1) Clean HVAC system in compliance with NADCA ACR. Provide written report on completion of cleaning.
- q. Clean luminaires, lamps, globes, and reflectors to function with full efficiency.

Leave Project clean and ready for occupancy.

- Construction Waste Disposal: Comply with waste-disposal requirements in Section 015000 "Temporary Facilities and Controls." and Section 017419 "Construction Waste Management and Disposal."
- 3.2 REPAIR OF THE WORK
 - 1. Complete repair and restoration operations required by Section 017300 "Execution" before requesting inspection for determination of Substantial Completion.

END OF SECTION 017700

SECTION 017823

OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE DATA

PART 1 - GENERAL

- 1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS
 - A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and other Division 01 Specification Sections, apply to this Section.

1.2 SUMMARY

- A. Section includes administrative and procedural requirements for preparing operation and maintenance manuals, including the following:
 - 1. Operation and maintenance documentation directory manuals.
 - 2. Emergency manuals.
 - 3. Systems and equipment operation manuals.
 - 4. Systems and equipment maintenance manuals.
 - 5. Product maintenance manuals.
- B. Related Requirements:
 - 1. Section 011200 "Multiple Contract Summary" for coordinating operation and maintenance manuals covering the Work of multiple contracts.
 - 2. Section 013300 "Submittal Procedures" for submitting copies of submittals for operation and maintenance manuals.
- 1.3 DEFINITIONS
 - A. System: An organized collection of parts, equipment, or subsystems united by regular interaction.
 - B. Subsystem: A portion of a system with characteristics similar to a system.

1.4 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS

- A. Submit operation and maintenance manuals indicated. Provide content for each manual as specified in individual Specification Sections, and as reviewed and approved at the time of Section submittals. Submit reviewed manual content formatted and organized as required by this Section.
 - 1. Engineer will comment on whether content of operation and maintenance submittals is acceptable.
 - 2. Where applicable, clarify and update reviewed manual content to correspond to revisions and field conditions.
- B. Format: Submit operation and maintenance manuals in the following format:
 - 1. Submit **on digital media acceptable to Engineer**. Enable reviewer comments on draft submittals.
- C. Initial Manual Submittal: Submit draft copy of each manual at least **30** days before commencing demonstration and training. Engineer will comment on whether general scope and content of manual are acceptable.

- D. Final Manual Submittal: Submit each manual in final form prior to requesting inspection for Substantial Completion and at least **15** days before commencing demonstration and training. Engineer will return copy with comments.
 - 1. Correct or revise each manual to comply with Engineer's comments. Submit copies of each corrected manual within **15** days of receipt of Engineer's comments and prior to commencing demonstration and training.
- E. Comply with Section 017700 "Closeout Procedures" for schedule for submitting operation and maintenance documentation.
- 1.5 FORMAT OF OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE MANUALS
 - A. Manuals, Electronic Files: Submit manuals in the form of a multiple file composite electronic PDF file for each manual type required.
 - 1. Electronic Files: Use electronic files prepared by manufacturer where available. Where scanning of paper documents is required, configure scanned file for minimum readable file size.
 - 2. File Names and Bookmarks: Bookmark individual documents based on file names. Name document files to correspond to system, subsystem, and equipment names used in manual directory and table of contents. Group documents for each system and subsystem into individual composite bookmarked files, then create composite manual, so that resulting bookmarks reflect the system, subsystem, and equipment names in a readily navigated file tree. Configure electronic manual to display bookmark panel on opening file.

1.6 REQUIREMENTS FOR EMERGENCY, OPERATION, AND MAINTENANCE MANUALS

- A. Organization of Manuals: Unless otherwise indicated, organize each manual into a separate section for each system and subsystem, and a separate section for each piece of equipment not part of a system. Each manual shall contain the following materials, in the order listed:
 - 1. Title page.
 - 2. Table of contents.
 - 3. Manual contents.
- B. Title Page: Include the following information:
 - 1. Subject matter included in manual.
 - 2. Name and address of Project.
 - 3. Name and address of Owner.
 - 4. Date of submittal.
 - 5. Name and contact information for Contractor.
 - 6. Name and contact information for Construction Manager.
 - 7. Name and contact information for Engineer.
 - 8. Name and contact information for Commissioning Authority.
 - 9. Names and contact information for major consultants to the Engineer that designed the systems contained in the manuals.
 - 10. Cross-reference to related systems in other operation and maintenance manuals.
- C. Table of Contents: List each product included in manual, identified by product name, indexed to the content of the volume, and cross-referenced to Specification Section number in Project Manual.

- 1. If operation or maintenance documentation requires more than one volume to accommodate data, include comprehensive table of contents for all volumes in each volume of the set.
- D. Manual Contents: Organize into sets of manageable size. Arrange contents alphabetically by system, subsystem, and equipment. If possible, assemble instructions for subsystems, equipment, and components of one system into a single binder.
- E. Identification: In the documentation directory and in each operation and maintenance manual, identify each system, subsystem, and piece of equipment with same designation used in the Contract Documents. If no designation exists, assign a designation according to ASHRAE Guideline 4, "Preparation of Operating and Maintenance Documentation for Building Systems."

1.7 OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE DOCUMENTATION DIRECTORY MANUAL

- A. Operation and Maintenance Documentation Directory: Prepare a separate manual that provides an organized reference to emergency, operation, and maintenance manuals. List items and their location to facilitate ready access to desired information. Include the following:
 - 1. List of Systems and Subsystems: List systems alphabetically. Include references to operation and maintenance manuals that contain information about each system.
 - 2. List of Equipment: List equipment for each system, organized alphabetically by system. For pieces of equipment not part of system, list alphabetically in separate list.
 - 3. Tables of Contents: Include a table of contents for each emergency, operation, and maintenance manual.

1.8 SYSTEMS AND EQUIPMENT OPERATION MANUALS

- A. Systems and Equipment Operation Manual: Assemble a complete set of data indicating operation of each system, subsystem, and piece of equipment not part of a system. Include information required for daily operation and management, operating standards, and routine and special operating procedures.
 - 1. Engage a factory-authorized service representative to assemble and prepare information for each system, subsystem, and piece of equipment not part of a system.
 - 2. Prepare a separate manual for each system and subsystem, in the form of an instructional manual for use by Owner's operating personnel.
- B. Content: In addition to requirements in this Section, include operation data required in individual Specification Sections and the following information:
 - 1. System, subsystem, and equipment descriptions. Use designations for systems and equipment indicated on Contract Documents.
 - 2. Performance and design criteria if Contractor has delegated design responsibility.
 - 3. Operating standards.
 - 4. Operating procedures.
 - 5. Operating logs.
 - 6. Wiring diagrams.
 - 7. Control diagrams.
 - 8. Piped system diagrams.
 - 9. Precautions against improper use.
 - 10. License requirements including inspection and renewal dates.

HENDERSON ENGINEERS

- C. Descriptions: Include the following:
 - 1. Product name and model number. Use designations for products indicated on Contract Documents.
 - 2. Manufacturer's name.
 - 3. Equipment identification with serial number of each component.
 - 4. Equipment function.
 - 5. Operating characteristics.
 - 6. Limiting conditions.
 - 7. Performance curves.
 - 8. Engineering data and tests.
 - 9. Complete nomenclature and number of replacement parts.
- D. Operating Procedures: Include the following, as applicable:
 - 1. Startup procedures.
 - 2. Equipment or system break-in procedures.
 - 3. Routine and normal operating instructions.
 - 4. Regulation and control procedures.
 - 5. Instructions on stopping.
 - 6. Normal shutdown instructions.
 - 7. Seasonal and weekend operating instructions.
 - 8. Required sequences for electric or electronic systems.
 - 9. Special operating instructions and procedures.
- E. Systems and Equipment Controls: Describe the sequence of operation, and diagram controls as installed.
- F. Piped Systems: Diagram piping as installed, and identify color coding where required for identification.
- 1.9 SYSTEMS AND EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE MANUALS
 - A. Systems and Equipment Maintenance Manuals: Assemble a complete set of data indicating maintenance of each system, subsystem, and piece of equipment not part of a system. Include manufacturers' maintenance documentation, preventive maintenance procedures and frequency, repair procedures, wiring and systems diagrams, lists of spare parts, and warranty information.
 - 1. Engage a factory-authorized service representative to assemble and prepare information for each system, subsystem, and piece of equipment not part of a system.
 - 2. Prepare a separate manual for each system and subsystem, in the form of an instructional manual for use by Owner's operating personnel.
 - B. Content: For each system, subsystem, and piece of equipment not part of a system, include source information, manufacturers' maintenance documentation, maintenance procedures, maintenance and service schedules, spare parts list and source information, maintenance service contracts, and warranties and bonds as described below.

- C. Source Information: List each system, subsystem, and piece of equipment included in manual, identified by product name and arranged to match manual's table of contents. For each product, list name, address, and telephone number of Installer or supplier and maintenance service agent, and cross-reference Specification Section number and title in Project Manual and drawing or schedule designation or identifier where applicable.
- D. Manufacturers' Maintenance Documentation: Include the following information for each component part or piece of equipment:
 - 1. Standard maintenance instructions and bulletins; include only sheets pertinent to product or component installed. Mark each sheet to identify each product or component incorporated into the Work. If data include more than one item in a tabular format, identify each item using appropriate references from the Contract Documents. Identify data applicable to the Work and delete references to information not applicable.
 - a. Prepare supplementary text if manufacturers' standard printed data are not available and where the information is necessary for proper operation and maintenance of equipment or systems.
 - 2. Drawings, diagrams, and instructions required for maintenance, including disassembly and component removal, replacement, and assembly.
 - 3. Identification and nomenclature of parts and components.
 - 4. List of items recommended to be stocked as spare parts.
- E. Maintenance Procedures: Include the following information and items that detail essential maintenance procedures:
 - 1. Test and inspection instructions.
 - 2. Troubleshooting guide.
 - 3. Precautions against improper maintenance.
 - 4. Disassembly; component removal, repair, and replacement; and reassembly instructions.
 - 5. Aligning, adjusting, and checking instructions.
 - 6. Demonstration and training video recording, if available.
- F. Maintenance and Service Schedules: Include service and lubrication requirements, list of required lubricants for equipment, and separate schedules for preventive and routine maintenance and service with standard time allotment.
 - 1. Scheduled Maintenance and Service: Tabulate actions for daily, weekly, monthly, quarterly, semiannual, and annual frequencies.
 - 2. Maintenance and Service Record: Include manufacturers' forms for recording maintenance.
- G. Spare Parts List and Source Information: Include lists of replacement and repair parts, with parts identified and cross-referenced to manufacturers' maintenance documentation and local sources of maintenance materials and related services.
- H. Maintenance Service Contracts: Include copies of maintenance agreements with name and telephone number of service agent.
- I. Warranties and Bonds: Include copies of warranties and bonds and lists of circumstances and conditions that would affect validity of warranties or bonds.
 - 1. Include procedures to follow and required notifications for warranty claims.

- J. Drawings: Prepare drawings supplementing manufacturers' printed data to illustrate the relationship of component parts of equipment and systems and to illustrate control sequence and flow diagrams. Coordinate these drawings with information contained in record Drawings to ensure correct illustration of completed installation.
 - 1. Do not use original project record documents as part of maintenance manuals.

1.10 PRODUCT MAINTENANCE MANUALS

- A. Product Maintenance Manual: Assemble a complete set of maintenance data indicating care and maintenance of each product, material, and finish incorporated into the Work.
- B. Content: Organize manual into a separate section for each product, material, and finish. Include source information, product information, maintenance procedures, repair materials and sources, and warranties and bonds, as described below.
- C. Source Information: List each product included in manual, identified by product name and arranged to match manual's table of contents. For each product, list name, address, and telephone number of Installer or supplier and maintenance service agent, and cross-reference Specification Section number and title in Project Manual and drawing or schedule designation or identifier where applicable.
- D. Product Information: Include the following, as applicable:
 - 1. Product name and model number.
 - 2. Manufacturer's name.
 - 3. Color, pattern, and texture.
 - 4. Material and chemical composition.
 - 5. Reordering information for specially manufactured products.
- E. Maintenance Procedures: Include manufacturer's written recommendations and the following:
 - 1. Inspection procedures.
 - 2. Types of cleaning agents to be used and methods of cleaning.
 - 3. List of cleaning agents and methods of cleaning detrimental to product.
 - 4. Schedule for routine cleaning and maintenance.
 - 5. Repair instructions.
- F. Repair Materials and Sources: Include lists of materials and local sources of materials and related services.
- G. Warranties and Bonds: Include copies of warranties and bonds and lists of circumstances and conditions that would affect validity of warranties or bonds.
 - 1. Include procedures to follow and required notifications for warranty claims.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

END OF SECTION 017823

SECTION 017839

PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and other Division 01 Specification Sections, apply to this Section.

1.2 SUMMARY

- A. Section includes administrative and procedural requirements for Project Record Documents, including the following:
 - 1. Record Drawings.
 - 2. Record specifications.
 - 3. Record Product Data.
 - 4. Miscellaneous record submittals.
- 1.3 RELATED REQUIREMENTS:
 - A. Section 017700 "Closeout Procedures" for general closeout procedures.
 - B. Section 017823 "Operation and Maintenance Data" for operation and maintenance manual requirements.
- 1.4 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS
 - A. Record Drawings: Comply with the following:
 - 1. Number of Copies: Submit one set(s) of marked-up record prints.
 - 2. Number of Copies: Submit copies of Record Drawings as follows:
 - a. Initial Submittal:
 - 1) Submit PDF electronic files of scanned record prints and one set(s) of file prints.
 - 2) Submit Record Digital Data Files and one set(s) of plots.
 - 3) Engineer will indicate whether general scope of changes, additional information recorded, and quality of drafting are acceptable.
 - b. Final Submittal:
 - 1) Submit PDF electronic files of scanned Record Prints and three set(s) of file prints.
 - c. Final Submittal:
 - 1) Submit Record Digital Data Files and three set(s) of Record Digital Data File plots.
 - 2) Plot each drawing file, whether or not changes and additional information were recorded.
 - B. Record Specifications: Submit annotated PDF electronic files of Project's Specifications, including addenda and Contract modifications.
 - C. Record Product Data: Submit annotated PDF electronic files and directories of each submittal.
 - 1. Where record Product Data are required as part of operation and maintenance manuals, submit duplicate marked-up Product Data as a component of manual.
 - D. Miscellaneous Record Submittals: See other Specification Sections for miscellaneous recordkeeping requirements and submittals in connection with various construction activities. Submit annotated PDF electronic files and directories of each submittal.

PROJECT MANUAL: PSU WILLARD HALL WATER HEATER REPLACEMENT: PITTSBURG, KS 66762 HENDERSON PROJECT #: 2150002327

PSU PROJECT #: A-014311

E. Reports: Submit written report weekly indicating items incorporated into Project Record Documents concurrent with progress of the Work, including revisions, concealed conditions, field changes, product selections, and other notations incorporated.

1.5 RECORD DRAWINGS

- A. Record Prints: Maintain one set of marked-up paper copies of the Contract Drawings and Shop Drawings, incorporating new and revised drawings as modifications are issued.
 - 1. Preparation: Mark record prints to show the actual installation, where installation varies from that shown originally. Require individual or entity who obtained record data, whether individual or entity is Installer, subcontractor, or similar entity, to provide information for preparation of corresponding marked-up record prints.
 - a. Give particular attention to information on concealed elements that would be difficult to identify or measure and record later.
 - b. Accurately record information in an acceptable drawing technique.
 - c. Record data as soon as possible after obtaining it.
 - d. Record and check the markup before enclosing concealed installations.
 - e. Cross-reference record prints to corresponding photographic documentation.
 - 2. Content: Types of items requiring marking include, but are not limited to, the following:
 - a. Dimensional changes to Drawings.
 - b. Revisions to details shown on Drawings.
 - c. Depths of foundations.
 - d. Locations and depths of underground utilities.
 - e. Revisions to routing of piping and conduits.
 - f. Revisions to electrical circuitry.
 - g. Actual equipment locations.
 - h. Duct size and routing.
 - i. Locations of concealed internal utilities.
 - j. Changes made by Change Order or Construction or Work Change Directive.
 - k. Changes made following Engineer's written orders.
 - I. Details not on the original Contract Drawings.
 - m. Field records for variable and concealed conditions.
 - n. Record information on the Work that is shown only schematically.
 - 3. Mark the Contract Drawings and Shop Drawings completely and accurately. Use personnel proficient at recording graphic information in production of marked-up record prints.
 - 4. Mark record prints with erasable, red-colored pencil. Use other colors to distinguish between changes for different categories of the Work at same location.
 - 5. Mark important additional information that was either shown schematically or omitted from original Drawings.
 - 6. Note Construction Change Directive numbers, alternate numbers, Change Order numbers, and similar identification, where applicable.
- B. Format: Identify and date each Record Drawing; include the designation "PROJECT RECORD DRAWING" in a prominent location.
 - 1. Record Prints: Organize record prints into manageable sets. Bind each set with durable paper cover sheets. Include identification on cover sheets.
 - 2. Format: Annotated PDF electronic file with comment function enabled.

- 3. Record Digital Data Files: Organize digital data information into separate electronic files that correspond to each sheet of the Contract Drawings. Name each file with the sheet identification. Include identification in each digital data file.
- 4. Identification: As follows:
 - a. Project name.
 - b. Date.
 - c. Designation "PROJECT RECORD DRAWINGS."
 - d. Name of Engineer.
 - e. Name of Contractor.
- 1.6 RECORD SPECIFICATIONS
 - A. Preparation: Mark Specifications to indicate the actual product installation, where installation varies from that indicated in Specifications, addenda, and Contract modifications.
 - 1. Give particular attention to information on concealed products and installations that cannot be readily identified and recorded later.
 - 2. Mark copy with the proprietary name and model number of products, materials, and equipment furnished, including substitutions and product options selected.
 - 3. Record the name of manufacturer, supplier, Installer, and other information necessary to provide a record of selections made.
 - 4. For each principal product, indicate whether Record Product Data has been submitted in operation and maintenance manuals instead of submitted as Record Product Data.
 - 5. Note related Change Orders, Record Product Data, and Record Drawings where applicable.
 - B. Format: Submit record specifications as annotated PDF electronic file.
- 1.7 RECORD PRODUCT DATA
 - A. Recording: Maintain one copy of each submittal during the construction period for Project Record Document purposes. Post changes and revisions to Project Record Documents as they occur; do not wait until end of Project.
 - B. Preparation: Mark Product Data to indicate the actual product installation where installation varies substantially from that indicated in Product Data submittal.
 - 1. Give particular attention to information on concealed products and installations that cannot be readily identified and recorded later.
 - 2. Include significant changes in the product delivered to Project site and changes in manufacturer's written instructions for installation.
 - 3. Note related Change Orders, Record Specifications, and Record Drawings where applicable.
 - C. Format: Submit Record Product Data as annotated PDF electronic file.
 - 1. Include Record Product Data directory organized by Specification Section number and title, electronically linked to each item of Record Product Data.

1.8 MISCELLANEOUS RECORD SUBMITTALS

- A. Assemble miscellaneous records required by other Specification Sections for miscellaneous record keeping and submittal in connection with actual performance of the Work. Bind or file miscellaneous records and identify each, ready for continued use and reference.
- B. Format: Submit miscellaneous record submittals as PDF electronic file
 - 1. Include miscellaneous record submittals directory organized by Specification Section number and title, electronically linked to each item of miscellaneous record submittals.

1.9 MAINTENANCE OF RECORD DOCUMENTS

A. Maintenance of Record Documents: Store Record Documents in the field office apart from the Contract Documents used for construction. Do not use Project Record Documents for construction purposes. Maintain Record Documents in good order and in a clean, dry, legible condition, protected from deterioration and loss. Provide access to Project Record Documents for Engineer's reference during normal working hours.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 - EXECUTION (NOT USED)

END OF SECTION 017839

SECTION 017900

DEMONSTRATION AND TRAINING

PART 1 - GENERAL

1.1 RELATED DOCUMENTS

A. Drawings and general provisions of the Contract, including General and Supplementary Conditions and other Division 01 Specification Sections, apply to this Section.

1.2 SUMMARY

- A. Section includes administrative and procedural requirements for instructing Owner's personnel, including the following:
 - 1. Instruction in operation and maintenance of systems, subsystems, and equipment.

1.3 INFORMATIONAL SUBMITTALS

- A. Instruction Program: Submit outline of instructional program for demonstration and training, including a list of training modules and a schedule of proposed dates, times, length of instruction time, and instructors' names for each training module. Include learning objective and outline for each training module.
 - 1. Indicate proposed training modules using manufacturer-produced demonstration and training video recordings for systems, equipment, and products in lieu of video recording of live instructional module.
- B. Qualification Data: For **facilitator**.
- C. Attendance Record: For each training module, submit list of participants and length of instruction time.
- D. Evaluations: For each participant and for each training module, submit results and documentation of performance-based test.

1.4 CLOSEOUT SUBMITTALS

- A. Facilitator Qualifications: A firm or individual experienced in training or educating maintenance personnel in a training program similar in content and extent to that indicated for this Project, and whose work has resulted in training or education with a record of successful learning performance.
- 1.5 COORDINATION
 - A. Coordinate instruction schedule with Owner's operations. Adjust schedule as required to minimize disrupting Owner's operations and to ensure availability of Owner's personnel.
 - B. Coordinate instructors, including providing notification of dates, times, length of instruction time, and course content.
 - C. Coordinate content of training modules with content of approved emergency, operation, and maintenance manuals. Do not submit instruction program until operation and maintenance data have been reviewed and approved by Engineer.

- 1.6 PREPARATION
 - A. Assemble educational materials necessary for instruction, including documentation and training module. Assemble training modules into a training manual organized in coordination with requirements in Section 017823 "Operation and Maintenance Data."
 - B. Set up instructional equipment at instruction location.
- 1.7 INSTRUCTION
 - A. Facilitator: Engage a qualified facilitator to prepare instruction program and training modules, to coordinate instructors, and to coordinate between Contractor and Owner for number of participants, instruction times, and location.
 - B. Engage qualified instructors to instruct Owner's personnel to adjust, operate, and maintain systems, subsystems, and equipment not part of a system.
 - C. Owner will furnish Contractor with names and positions of participants.
 - D. Scheduling: Provide instruction at mutually agreed-on times. For equipment that requires seasonal operation, provide similar instruction at start of each season.
 - 1. Schedule training with Owner with at least **seven** days' advance notice.
 - E. Training Location and Reference Material: Conduct training on-site in the completed and fully operational facility using the actual equipment in-place. Conduct training using final operation and maintenance data submittals.
 - F. Evaluation: At conclusion of each training module, assess and document each participant's mastery of module by use of a performance-based test.
 - G. Cleanup: Collect used and leftover educational materials and **give to Owner**. Remove instructional equipment. Restore systems and equipment to condition existing before initial training use.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS

PART 3 - EXECUTION

END OF SECTION 017900

PITTSBURG STATE UNIVERSITY 1701 BROADWAY ST PITTSBURG, KS

WATER HEATER REPLACEMENT



WILLARD HALL

PROJECT NUMBERS A-014311 2150002327



GENERAL

G0.0

COVER SHEET

MECHANICAL

10.0	MECHANICAL COVER SHEET
10.1	MECHANICAL SPECIFICATIONS
11.1	MECHANICAL BASEMENT PLAN
12.1	MECHANICAL PIPING BASEMENT PLAN
13.1	MECHANICAL PIPING SCHEMATICS
14.1	MECHANICAL DETAILS AND SCHEDULES

E0. E0. ED1 E1.1

PO. **PO**. PO. PD P1.1 P1.2 P2. P3.





EMENT ACI MATER H ARD

WILL

ELECTRICAL

0	ELECTRICAL LEGEND AND NOTES
1	ELECTRICAL SPECIFICATIONS
1.1	POWER DEMO BASEMENT PLAN
	POWER BASEMENT PLAN

PLUMBING

.0	PLUMBING NOTES & LEGEND
.1	PLUMBING SPECIFICATIONS
.2	PLUMBING SPECIFICATIONS
1.1	PLUMBING DEMO BASEMENT PLAN
0	PLUMBING SITE PLAN
1	PLUMBING BASEMENT PLAN
2	GIBSON PLUMBING BASEMENT PLAN
.1	PLUMBING PIPING DIAGRAMS
.1	PLUMBING DETAILS AND SCHEDULES

COVER SHEET

A-014311

GO.O

100% BID and permit GENERAL DEMOLITION NOTES:

- 1. COORDINATE ALL DEMOLITION WITH WHAT IS SHOWN OTHER DISCIPLINE DEMOLITION PLANS. NOTIFY ENGINEER OF ANY DISCREPANCIES.
- 2. PRIOR TO SUBMITTING BID, VISIT THE JOB SITE AND BECOME FULLY ACQUAINTED WITH THE EXISTING CONDITIONS OF THE PROJECT. REVIEW GENERAL NOTES, SPECIFICATIONS AND OTHER DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS THAT MAY NOT BE SPECIFICALLY CALLED OUT IN THIS PORTION OF THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS. NOTIFY ENGINEER OR OWNER, AS DEFINED IN BID DOCUMENTS, OF CONFLICTS OR DISCREPANCIES PRIOR TO SUBMISSION OF BID.
- 3. OWNER RETAINS RIGHTS OF SALVAGE FOR EQUIPMENT AND FIXTURES TO BE REMOVED. COORDINATE WITH OWNER THE EQUIPMENT AND FIXTURES TO BE SALVAGED AND THE LOCATION FOR STORAGE. AVOID DAMAGE TO SALVAGED EQUIPMENT, FIXTURES AND DEVICES DURING DEMOLITION WORK AND DURING TRANSPORT TO OWNER'S DESIGNATED STORAGE LOCATION.
- REMOVE ITEMS SHOWN HEAVY-LINED DASHED, AND/OR NOTED TO BE REMOVED.
 AVOID DAMAGING EXISTING SURFACES AND EQUIPMENT TO REMAIN FOR NEW INSTALLATION. REPAIR DAMAGE CAUSED DURING WORK AT NO EXTRA COST TO THE
- OWNER.6. REMOVE HANGERS AND SUPPORTS WHERE DUCTWORK, PIPING AND/OR EQUIPMENT ARE REMOVED AND THE EXISTING HANGERS AND SUPPORTS ARE NOT USED FOR THE NEW INSTALLATION.
- 7. INSTALL PERMANENT CAPS WHERE DUCTWORK AND PIPING IS REMOVED AND THE EXISTING TAPS ARE NOT USED FOR THE NEW INSTALLATION. WHERE DUCTWORK AND PIPING ARE REMOVED AND THE EXISTING TAPS WILL BE USED FOR THE NEW INSTALLATION, INSTALL TEMPORARY CAPS TO PROTECT THE INTERIOR SURFACES UNTIL NEW DUCTWORK AND PIPING ARE INSTALLED.
- 8. INSPECT EXISTING EQUIPMENT TO REMAIN TO VERIFY THAT EQUIPMENT IS OPERATING PROPERLY. NOTIFY OWNER OF DAMAGED AND/OR MALFUNCTIONING COMPONENTS.
- 9. WHERE SHUTDOWN OF EXISTING SYSTEMS IS REQUIRED DURING DEMOLITION, COORDINATE SHUTDOWN TIME AND DURATION WITH OWNER TO MINIMIZE DOWNTIME. NOTIFY OWNER SEVEN (7) DAYS PRIOR TO INTERRUPTION OF SERVICE.
- 10. CEASE WORK AND IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE OWNER SHOULD ANY HAZARDOUS MATERIALS BE ENCOUNTERED DURING THE PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK.

GENERAL NEW NOTES:

- 1. PRIOR TO SUBMITTING BID, VISIT THE JOB SITE AND BECOME FULLY ACQUAINTED WITH THE EXISTING CONDITIONS OF THE PROJECT. REVIEW THE GENERAL NOTES, SPECIFICATIONS AND OTHER DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS WHICH MAY NOT BE SPECIFICALLY CALLED OUT IN THIS PORTION OF THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS. NOTIFY ENGINEER AND/OR OWNER OF CONFLICTS OR DISCREPANCIES PRIOR TO SUBMISSION OF BID.
- 2. EXISTING CONDITIONS WERE TAKEN FROM ORIGINAL DRAWINGS AND SITE VISITS AND MAY NOT REFLECT EXACT "AS-BUILT" CONDITIONS. FIELD VERIFY EXISTING CONDITIONS PRIOR TO SUBMITTING FINAL BIDS. COORDINATE NEW WORK AND DEMOLITION WITH OTHER DISCIPLINES AND EXISTING CONDITIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.
- 3. COORDINATE THE INSTALLATION OF THE MECHANICAL SYSTEMS WITH OTHER TRADES TO ENSURE A NEAT AND ORDERLY INSTALLATION. INSTALL DUCTWORK AND PIPING AS TIGHT TO STRUCTURE AS POSSIBLE. COORDINATE WITH OTHER TRADES TO AVOID CONFLICTS. COORDINATE INSTALLATION OF DUCTWORK AND PIPING TO AVOID CONFLICTS WITH ELECTRICAL PANELS, LIGHTING FIXTURES, ETC. ANY MODIFICATIONS REQUIRED DUE TO LACK OF COORDINATION WILL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR AT NO EXTRA COST TO THE OWNER.
- 4. WHERE SHUTDOWN OF EXISTING SYSTEMS IS REQUIRED DURING NEW WORK, COORDINATE SHUTDOWN TIME AND DURATION WITH THE OWNER TO MINIMIZE
- DOWNTIME. NOTIFY OWNER SEVEN (7) DAYS PRIOR TO INTERRUPTION OF SERVICE.
 5. DURING INSTALLATION OF NEW WORK, AVOID DAMAGING EXISTING SURFACES AND EQUIPMENT TO REMAIN. REPAIR DAMAGE CAUSED DURING CONSTRUCTION AT NO EXTRA COST TO THE OWNER.
- 6. PROVIDE TEMPORARY BARRIERS TO CONTAIN DUST AND DEBRIS RESULTING FROM THE PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK TO THE AREA WHERE WORK IS BEING PERFORMED.
- 7. ALL MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT SHOWN ON THE MECHANICAL PLANS SHALL BE PROVIDED BY DIVISION 23 UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
- 8. NEW MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT, DUCTWORK AND PIPING ARE SHOWN AT APPROXIMATE LOCATIONS. FIELD MEASURE FINAL DUCTWORK AND PIPING LOCATIONS PRIOR TO FABRICATION AND MAKE ADJUSTMENTS AS REQUIRED TO FIT THE DUCTWORK AND PIPING WITHIN THE AVAILABLE SPACE. VERIFY THAT FINAL EQUIPMENT LOCATIONS MEET MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS REGARDING SERVICE CLEARANCE AND PROPER AIRFLOW CLEARANCE AROUND EQUIPMENT.
- INSTALL DUCTWORK AND PIPING PARALLEL TO BUILDING COLUMN LINES UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN OR NOTED.
 OVERHEAD HANGERS AND SUPPORTS FOR EQUIPMENT, DUCTWORK AND PIPING
- SHALL BE FASTENED TO BUILDING JOISTS OR BEAMS. DO NOT ATTACH HANGERS AND SUPPORTS TO THE ABOVE FLOOR SLAB OR ROOF EXCEPT WHERE CONCRETE INSERTS IN CONCRETE SLABS ARE ALLOWED BY THE SPECIFICATIONS.
- 11. COORDINATE LOCATION OF EQUIPMENT SUPPORTS WITH LOCATION OF EQUIPMENT ACCESS PANELS/DOORS TO ENABLE SERVICE OF EQUIPMENT AND/OR FILTER REPLACEMENT.
- 12. FOR HYDRONIC, STEAM AND STEAM CONDENSATE PIPING TO EQUIPMENT, MINIMUM ACCEPTABLE SIZE FOR STEEL AND COPPER PIPE IS 3/4 INCH. USE THIS CRITERIA WHERE PIPE SIZES ARE NOT SHOWN ON PLAN.
- 13. DRAIN, FLUSH, AND REFILL ALL PIPING SYSTEMS NECESSARY TO PERFORM THE WORK. REFERENCE SPECIFICATIONS FOR FLUSHING PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS AND SUBMIT FLUSHING PLAN TO ENGINEER FOR REVIEW. PROVIDE CHEMICAL TREATMENT FOR ALL PIPING SYSTEMS AFTER FLUSHING AND REFILLING THE SYSTEM.
- 14. FIELD VERIFY THAT THE EXISTING EQUIPMENT INCLUDING ACCESSORIES BEING REUSED FOR THIS PROJECT IS NOT DAMAGED AND IS IN GOOD WORKING ORDER. REPORT ANY DEFICIENCIES TO THE OWNER OR ENGINEER. SUBMIT TO THE OWNER AND ENGINEER A WRITTEN REPORT DESCRIBING TESTS PERFORMED TO VERIFY OPERATION AND RESULTS OF THE TESTS.

ME	C⊦	IAN
THIS IS A	MASTE	r legeni MOUNT
THERMOS CONTROI	STATS (_S	USER ADJ
INSTALL I CONSTRU ELSEWHE THE DEVI CURREN	DEVICES JCTION ERE IN T CE UNC F ADA AI	S AT THE I DOCUMEI HE CONS). ALL DE' ND LOCAL
ANNOT	ATIO	N
$\langle 1 \rangle$		MECHAN
	$\begin{pmatrix} 0 \\ 1 \end{pmatrix}$	PROVIDE
\bullet	(1)	CONNEC
	M1	NUMBER
M1	×××	DEDICAT
		ACCESS
) /I A T I	ACCESS
ACC ACCU	AIR CC AIR CC	OLED CH
AFC AFF	ABOVE ABOVE	FINISHE
AHJ	AUTHO	RITY HAV
AHU Al	AIR HA ANALC	NDLING U G INPUT
AO AP	ANALO	G OUTPU
APD AWG B		CAN WIRE
BAS BB	BUILDI	NG AUTOI ONE
BD BD	BACKD	RAFT DAN
BFG	BELOW	/ FINISHEI / FINISHEI / FINISHEI
BFP BHP	BOILEF	R FEED PL
BI BO BOD	BINAR	Y INPUT Y OUTPUT
BOH BOS	BACK (BOTTO	DF HOUSE
BTU CFM	BRITIS CUBIC	H THERM/ FEET PEF
CH CHWS/R	CHILLE	R D WATER
CLG CP	COOLII	NG ENSATE P
CPT	CONTR	
	COMPL	JIER ROC TIONING U JTER ROC
CT CV	COOLII	
CWP CWS/R		ENSER WA
CU CHWP	CONDE	ENSING UI
DB DBA	DECIBE A-WEIC	ELS GHTED DE
DIC DISC	DIGITA	L INPUT
DN DS	DOWN DUCT S	SILENCER
DX (E) EA	DIREC EXISTII	F EXPANS NG IST AIR
EAT ED	ENTER	ING AIR T
EDB EF	ENTER EXHAU	ING DRY I ST FAN
EFF EMS ESP	ENERG	ENCY BY MANAG NAL STAT
ETR EWB	EXISTI	NG TO RE
EWT		ING WATE RATURE
FFA FFB	FROM	FLOOR AE
FF FOH	FINISH FRONT	
FPM GC	FEET P	
GEA GPM	GREAS GALLO	E EXHAU NS PER M

D AND NOT ALL S	YMBOLS OR	ABBREVIATIONS ARE USED.				
ING HEIGHT	5			WORK AND ACCESSORIES		
JUSTABLE)	5	46"				
		46"	ř – – ř	DUCTWORNEQUIPMENT TO BE REMOVED OR RELOCATED		
MOUNTING HEIGI NTS. MOUNTING	HTS SHOWN /	ABOVE UNO IN THE TED ABOVE OR		EXISTING DUCTWORK/EQUIPMENT TO REMAIN	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _ · · · _ · · · _ · _ · _ · _ · · · · · · · · · · · ·	THREE-WAY CONTROL VALVE
TRUCTION DOCU	MENTS ARE A	AFF OR AFG TO TOP OF I COMPLIANCE WITH	₽~	LINEAR SLOT DIFFUSER		SHUTOFF VALVE
REQUIREMENTS	S.		U U		N	CHECK VALVE
			~	INSULATED FLEXIBLE DUCT (MAX. 5'-0" LONG)	K	BALANCING VALVE WITH PRESSUR
				BRANCH DUCT WITH 45° RECTANGLE-ROUND BRANCH FITTING AND		TRIPLE DUTY VALVE WITH PRESSU
IICAL EQUIPMENT ED UNO)	DESIGNATIO	DN (CONTRACTOR				STRAINER
TION POINT OF N	IEW WORK TO	DEXISTING		ELBOW WITH TURNING VANES		STRAINER WITH BLOWOFF
REFERENCE UPPI	ER NUMBER I R INDICATES	NDICATES DETAIL SHEET NUMBER	ļļ	BRANCH DUCT WITH BELL-MOUTH FITTING & MANUAL VOLUME		RELIEF/SAFETY VALVE
I CUT DESIGNATI	ON			CONTROL DAMPER	ـــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ	
				EXHAUST, GREASE EXHAUST, OR SPECIAL EXHAUST AIR DUCT UP	&	
ED EQUIPMENT	ACCESS TILE			EXHAUST GREASE EXHAUST OR SPECIAL EXHAUST AIR DUCT DOWN		GAS PRESSURE REGULATOR
PANEL					——————————————————————————————————————	PIPE ANCHOR
			· ∤N IN	RETURN AIR DUCT UP		EXPANSION JOINT
NG	НОА	HAND-OFF-AUTOMATIC		RETURN AIR DUCT DOWN	_	PIPE GUIDE
ILLER NDENSING UNIT	HP HTG	HORSEPOWER HEATING			×	PIPING SUPPORT
D CEILING D FLOOR	HWP HWS/R	HEATING HOT WATER PUMP HEATING HOT WATER		SUPPLY AIR OR OUTSIDE AIR DUCT UP	&	F & T TRAP
D GRADE /ING	IN WC	SUPPLY/RETURN INCHES OF WATER COLUMN		SUPPLY AIR OR OUTSIDE AIR DUCT DOWN	ø	BUCKET TRAP
JNIT	LAT	LEAVING AIR TEMPERATURE		EQUIPMENT WITH FLEXIBLE DUCT CONNECTION	ø	THERMOSTATIC TRAP
т	LP	LOW PRESSURE	│			BACKFLOW PREVENTER
DROP E GAUGE	LWT	LEAVING WATER TEMPERATURE		10" (NECK SIZE) CSD-1 (TYPE)	φ	PRESSURE GAUGE
MATION SYSTEM	MAU MAX	MAKE-UP AIR UNIT MAXIMUM		300 CFM (CFM OF SUPPLY DIFFUSER OR REGISTER)	<u> </u> т	THERMOMETER
MPER	MBH MD	1000 BTU PER HOUR MOTORIZED DAMPER		24x24 (SIZE) CEG-1 (TYPE)		PRESSURE AND TEMPERATURE TE
D CEILING	MFR MIN	MANUFACTURER MINIMUM				
D FLOOR D GRADE	N/A N/C	NOT APPLICABLE NORMALLY CLOSED	│ ┌── ┟──┤ │ ╷		 个	VACUUM RELIEF VALVE
OWER	NOM	NORMALLY OPEN NOMINAL NOISE CRITERIA		SQUARE TO ROUND TRANSITION	₽ ^{AV}	
г Ст	NF	NON-FUSED NOT IN CONTRACT		DUCT MOUNTED SMOKE DETECTOR (SD=SUPPLY/RD=RETURN)	⊄• M∨	MANUAL AIR VENT
	OA PICV	OUTSIDE AIR PRESSURE INDEPENDENT	XX"Ø	ROUND DUCT TAG INDICATING DIAMETER	₽	PRESSURE / VACUUM SWITCH
AL UNIT R MINUTE	PROVIDE	CONTROL VALVE E FURNISH AND INSTALL	XX" x XX"	RECTANGULAR DUCT TAG INDICATING INTERNAL DUCT DIMENSIONS.		CLEANOUT
R SUPPLY/	QTY RA	QUANTITY RETURN AIR	XX" / XX"	FLAT OVAL DUCT TAG INDICATING INTERNAL DUCT DIMENSIONS		CAP
	RC RD	ROOM CRITERIA RETURN DUCT	(#)	RISER DESIGNATION	——ю	ELBOW UP
UMP ER	REA RF	RELIEF AIR RETURN FAN	(FD)	FIRE DAMPER	ен	ELBOW DOWN
	RH	RELATIVE HUMIDITY	(FSD)	FIRE SMOKE DAMPER		TEE UP
DM UNIT R	RPM RTU	REVOLUTIONS PER MINUTE ROOFTOP UNIT	(SD)	SMOKE DAMPER		TEE DOWN
E ATER PUMP	SA SCP	SUPPLY AIR STEAM CONDENSATE PUMP		VOLUME DAMPER	QQ	ELBOW UP WITH SHUT-OFF VALVE
ATER SUPPLY/	SD SD	SMOKE DUCT DETECTOR SUPPLY DUCT	(MD)			ELBOW DOWN WITH SHUT-OFF VA
NIT R PUMP	SF SH	SUPPLY FAN SENSIBLE HEAT CAPACITY	BD	BACKDRAFT DAMPER		
CIBELS	SOW SP	SCOPE OF WORK STATIC PRESSURE		NSIONS SHOWN ON DRAWINGS ARE INSIDE DIMENSIONS. REFER TO		
CONTROL	ST STM TRD	STEAM TRAP STEAM TO BE DETERMINED	HVAC CONT	ROL DEVICES		RECIRCULATION PUMP
	TC/C	TEMPERATURE CONTROLS	Э	HUMIDISTAT		P-TRAP
SION	TCP	TEMPERATURE CONTROL PANEL	T	THERMOSTAT		GAS COCK
EMPERATURE	TF TFA	TRANSFER FAN TO FLOOR ABOVE	со	CARBON MONOXIDE SENSOR		TOP BEAM CLAMP
BULB	TFB TH	TO FLOOR BELOW TOTAL HEAT CAPACITY	CO2	CARBON DIOXIDE SENSOR	++	TRAPEZE HANGER
	TSP TT	TOTAL STATIC PRESSURE TEMPERATURE TRANSMITTER	DP	DIFFERENTIAL PRESSURE SENSOR		FLEXIBLE CONNECTION
GEMENT SYSTEM	TYP U/F	TYPICAL UNDERFLOOR	FS	FLOW SWITCH		
MAIN BULB	U/G U/S	UNDERGROUND UNDERSLAB	HS	HUMIDITY SENSOR		
=K		UNIT REATER UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE VARIABLE AIR VOLUME	PS	PULL STATION		
BOVE	VAV VEL VED		RT	REMOTE TESTING STATION WITH INDICATING LIGHT		
	VRF	VARIABLE REFRIGERANT	SP	STATIC PRESSURE		
 TE	W/ W/O	WITH WITHOUT	TS	TEMPERATURE SENSOR		
RACTOR ST AIR	WB WC	WET BULB WATER COLUMN				
IINUTE	WPD XP	WATER PRESSURE DROP EXPLOSION-PROOF				

	V2.08 PIPING LINETYPES — — EXISTING PIPING TO BE REMOVED OR RELOCATED — EXISTING PIPING TO REMAIN — CD — CONDENSATE DRAIN (CD)	HENDERS ENGINEERS 8345 LENEXA DRIVE, SUITE 30 LENEXA, KS 66214 TEL 913.742.5000 FAX 913.742.5 www.HENDERSONENGINEERS. 2150002327 KS. CORPORATE NUMBER. E-3 12/31/21
EST PLUG E (SOV) NLVE (SOV) OV) E (SOV)	ACD ALXILLARY CONDENSATE DRAIN (ACD) NYRV NON POTABLE WATER (NPV) G G NATURAL GAS (G) NATURAL GAS (G) MEG MEDULA PRESSURE NATURAL GAS (MPG) MEG MEDULA PRESSURE NATURAL GAS (MPG) FOS FUEL OL SUPPLY (FOS) FOS FUEL OL SUPPLY (FOS) FOS FUEL OL VENT (FOV) LICOL RETURN (FOR) HER HIGH PRESSURE STEAM SUPPLY (JPS) CONDENSATE PUMP DISCHARGE (JPC) HIGH PRESSURE STEAM SUPPLY (HVS) HIGH PRESSURE SUPPLY (HVS) HIGH PRESSURE STEAM SUPPLY (HVS) HIGH PRESSURE STEAM SUPPLY (HVS) HIGH PRESSURE SUPPLY (HVS) HIGH PRESS	PITTSBURG STATE UNIVERSITY WILLARD WATER HEATER REPLACEMENT 1701 S BROADWAY ST PITTSBURG, KS DATE:06-25-2021
	ENLARGED PLAN CALLOUT	
	NOT IN SCOPE	
	THROUGHOUT THE DRAWINGS DIFFERENT LINE-TYPES ARE USED IN COMBINATION WITH THE SYMBOLS TO INDICATE THE STATUS OF ITEMS AS EXISTING, TO BE DEMOLISHED, TO BE INCLUDED AS PART OF NEW WORK AND/OR ITEMS WHICH ARE ANTICIPATED TO BE PROVIDED IN THE FUTURE. THE STATUS OF ITEMS USING THESE LINETYPES ARE RELATIVE TO THE VIEW IN WHICH THEY APPEAR. PHASING SHOWN IN DRAWINGS IS NOT INTENDED TO FULLY DESCRIBE ALL NECESSARY CONSTRUCTION PHASING, WHICH IS DETERMINED BY THE CONTRACTOR AS PART OF THEIR RESPONSIBILITIES. ANY SUCH PHASES DESCRIBED IN THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS ARE GENERAL AND ONLY INTENDED TO INDICATE A BROAD ORDER FOR THE SAKE OF DESCRIBING THE PROJECT. THE FOLLOWING LINETYPES MAY BE USED ON ANY DEVICE, EQUIPMENT, NOTE, LINE, SHAPE, ETC.	
	EXISTING NEW DEMOLISH FUTURE	



A-014311

MO.O

|--|

1. GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

A. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

All requirements under Division 01 and the general and supplementary conditions of these specifications apply to this section and division. Where the requirements of this section and division exceed those of Division 01, this section and division take precedence. Become thoroughly familiar with all its contents as to requirements that affect this division, section, or both. Work required under this division includes all material, equipment, appliances, transportation, services, and labor required to complete the entire system as required by the drawings and specifications, or reasonably inferred to be necessary to facilitate the function of each system as implied by the design and the equipment specified.

The specifications and drawings for the project are complementary, and any portion of work described in one shall be provided as if described in both. In the event of discrepancies, notify the Engineer and request clarification prior to proceeding with the work involved.

Drawings are graphic representations of the work upon which the contract is based. They show the materials and their relationship to one another, including sizes, shapes, locations, and connections. They convey the scope of work, indicating the intended general arrangement of the systems without showing all of the exact details as to elevations, offsets, control lines, and other installation requirements. Use the drawings as a guide when laying out the work and to verify that materials and equipment will fit into the designated spaces, and which when installed per manufacturers' requirements, will ensure a complete, coordinated, satisfactory, and properly operating system.

B. DEFINITIONS

Division: References contained in this specification follow the numbering system defined in the Construction Specifications Institute (CSI) MasterFormat 2004 Edition. Specification Divisions 01 through 13 provided with this project may reference the CSI MasterFormat 1995 Edition. The corresponding division references between the 2004 Edition and 1995 Edition are as follows:

	2004 Edition	1995 Ed
1.	Division 21 - Fire Suppression	Division
2.	Division 22 - Plumbing	Division
3.	Division 23 - HVAC	Division
4.	Division 26 - Electrical	Division
5.	Division 27 - Communications	Division
6.	Division 28 - Electronic Safety and SecurityDivisio	n 16

Furnish: "to supply and deliver to the project site, ready for unloading, unpacking, assembly, installation and similar operations."

AHJ: The local code and/or inspection agency (Authority) Having Jurisdiction over the work.

Install: "to perform all operations at the project site including, but not limited to, the actual unloading, unpacking, assembling, erecting, placing, anchoring, applying, working to dimension, finishing, curing, protecting, cleaning, testing, commissioning, starting up and similar operations, complete, and ready for the intended use."

Provide: "to furnish and install."

Furnished by Owner (or Owner-Furnished) or Furnished by Others: "an item furnished by the Owner or under other divisions or contracts, and installed under the requirements of this division, complete and ready for intended use, including all items and services incidental to the work necessary for proper installation and operation. Include the installation under the warranty required by this division."

Engineer: Where referenced in this division, "Engineer" is the Engineer of Record and the Design Professional for the work under this division, as defined in the General and/or Supplementary Conditions. When used in this division, Engineer means increased involvement by and obligations to the Engineer.

NRTL: Nationally recognized testing laboratory, as defined and listed by OSHA in 29 CFR 1910.7 (e.g., UL, ETL, CSA), and acceptable to the AHJ over this project. Nationally recognized testing laboratories and standards listed are used only to represent the characteristics required and are not intended to restrict the use of other NRTLs that are acceptable to the AHJ and standards that meet the specified criteria.

Substitution: Changes in products, materials, equipment, and methods of construction from those required by the Contract Documents and proposed by Contractor. Substitutions include Value Engineering proposal

1. Substitutions for Cause: Changes proposed by Contractor that are required due to changed Project conditions, such as unavailability of product, regulatory changes, or unavailability of required warranty terms. 2. Substitutions for Convenience: Changes proposed by Contractor or Owner that are not required in order to meet other Project requirements but may offer advantage to Contractor or Owner.

The terms "approved equal", "equivalent", or "equal" are used synonymously and shall mean "accepted by or acceptable to the Engineer as equivalent to the item or manufacturer specified". The term "approved" shall mean labeled, listed, or both, by an NRTL, and acceptable to the AHJ over this project.

C. PREBID SITE VISIT

Prior to submitting bid, visit the site of the proposed work and become fully informed as to the conditions under which the work is to be done. Failure to comply with this requirement shall not be considered sufficient justification to request or obtain extra compensation over and above the contract price.

D. MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP

Provide new material, equipment, and apparatus under this contract unless otherwise stated herein, of best quality normally used for the purpose in good commercial practice, and free from defects. Install material and equipment in accordance with the manufacturer's installation instructions. Model numbers listed in the specifications or shown on the drawings are not necessarily intended to designate the required trim, written descriptions of the trim govern model numbers.

Pipe, pipe fittings, pipe specialties and valves shall be manufactured in plants located in the United States or certified to meet the specified ASTM and ANSI standards. Work performed under this contract shall provide a neat and "workmanlike" appearance when completed, to the satisfaction of the Engineer. Workmanship shall be the

finest possible by experienced mechanics. Installations shall comply with applicable codes and laws. The complete installation shall function as designed and intended with respect to efficiency, capacity, noise level, etc. Abnormal noise caused by rattling equipment, piping, ducts, air devices, and squeaks in rotating components shall not be acceptable. Materials and equipment shall be of commercial specification grade in quality. Light duty

and residential grade equipment shall not be accepted unless otherwise indicated. Remove from the premises waste material present as a result of work, including cartons, crating, paper, stickers, and/or excavation material not used in backfilling, etc. Clean equipment installed under this contract to present a neat and clean installation at the termination of the work.

enair or replace public and private property damaged as a result of work performed under this contract to the satisfaction of authorities and regulations having jurisdiction. Provide all safety lights, guards, and warning signs required for the performance of the work and for the safety of the public.

MANUFACTURERS

In other articles where lists of manufacturers are introduced, subject to compliance with requirements, provide products by one of the manufacturers specified.

Where a list is provided, manufacturers are listed alphabetically and not in accordance with any ranking or preference.

Where manufacturers are not listed, provide products subject to compliance with requirements from manufacturers that have been actively involved in manufacturing the specified product for no less than 5 years.

F. COORDINATION

Coordinate work with that of other trades so that the various components of the systems are installed at the proper time, will fit the available space, and will allow proper service access to those items requiring maintenance. Components which are installed without regard to the above shall be relocated at no additional cost to the Owner.

Unless otherwise indicated, the General Contractor shall provide chases and openings in building construction required for installation of the systems specified herein. Contractor shall furnish the General Contractor with information where chases and openings are required. Contractor shall keep informed as to the work of other trades engaged in the construction of the project and shall execute work in a manner as to not interfere with or delay the work of other trades.

Figured dimensions shall be taken in preference to scale dimensions. Contractor shall take his own measurements at the building, as variations may occur. Contractor shall be held responsible for errors that could have been avoided by proper checking and inspection.

Provide materials with trim that will properly fit the types of ceiling, wall, or floor finishes actually installed. Model numbers listed in the specifications or shown on the drawings are not intended to designate the required trim.

G. ORDINANCES AND CODES

Work performed under this contract shall, at a minimum, be in conformance with applicable national, state and local codes having jurisdiction. Equipment furnished and associated installation work performed under this contract shall be in strict compliance with current applicable codes adopted by the local AHJ, including any amendments and standards as set forth by the following

- National Electrical Code (NEC) 2. National Fire Protection Association (NFPA)
- 3. Underwriters Laboratories (UL)
- 4. Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) 5. American Society of Mechanical Engineers (ASME)
- 6. American Society of Heating, Refrigerating, and Air Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE)
- 7. American National Standards Institute (ANSI) American Society of Testing and Materials (ASTM)
- 9. Other national standards and codes where applicable.

Where the contract documents exceed the requirements of the referenced codes, standards, etc., the contract documents shall take precedence. Where conflicts between various codes, ordinances, rules, and regulations exist, comply with the most stringent.

resolution. Contractor will be held responsible for any violation of the law.

Procure and pay for permits and licenses required for the accomplishment of the work herein described. Where required, obtain, pay for, and furnish certificates of inspection to Owner.

Promptly bring all conflicts observed between codes, ordinances, rules, regulations, referenced standards, and these documents to the attention of the Engineer for final

H. PROTECTION OF EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS

Store and protect from damage equipment and materials delivered to job site. For materials and equipment susceptible to changing weather conditions, dampness, or temperature variations, store inside in conditioned spaces. For materials and equipment not susceptible to these conditions, cover with waterproof, tear-resistant, heavy tarp or polyethylene plastic as required to protect from plaster, dust, dirt, paint, water, or physical damage. Replace insulation that has become wet at any time during construction. Drying the insulation is not acceptable. Seal any tears or joints of internal fiberglass insulation. Equipment and material damaged by construction activities shall be rejected and Contractor shall furnish new equipment and material of a like kind at his own expense.

Keep premises broom clean of foreign material created during work performed under this contract. Piping, equipment, etc. shall have a neat and clean appearance at the termination of the work. Remove debris from ceiling/return air plenum, including dust.

Plug, seal, or cap open ends of ductwork and piping systems while stored and installed during construction when not in use to prevent the entrance of debris into the systems. Remove temporary protection prior to starting equipment and turning the system over to the owner

I. SUBSTITUTIONS

Materials, products, equipment, and systems described in the Bidding Documents establish a standard of required function, dimension, appearance and quality to be met by the proposed substitution. The base bid shall include only the products from manufacturers specifically named in the drawings and specifications. To request a substitution, request the Substitution Request Form from the Engineer. Complete and send the Substitution Request Form for each material, product, equipment, or system that is proposed to be substituted. The burden of proof of the merit of the proposed substitution is upon the proposer.

Unless stated otherwise in writing to the Engineer by the Contractor, Contractor warrants to the Engineer and Owner the following: 1. Proposed substitution has been fully investigated and determined to meet or exceed the specified Work in all respects unless stated otherwise in the substitution

- 2. Proposed substitution is consistent with the Contract Documents and will produce indicated results, including functional clearances, maintenance service, and sourcing of replacement parts.
- 3. Proposed substitution has received necessary approvals of authorities having jurisdiction. . Same warranty will be furnished for proposed substitution as for specified Work.
- 5. If accepted substitution fails to perform as required, Contractor shall replace substitute material or system with that originally specified and bear costs incurred

6. Coordination, installation and changes in the Work as necessary for accepted substitution will be complete in all respects.

receipt of bids.

J. SUBMITTALS

Assemble and submit for review shop drawings, material lists, manufacturer product literature for equipment to be furnished, and items requiring coordination between contractors under this contract. Provide submittals in sufficient detail so as to demonstrate compliance with these contract documents and the design concept. Prior to transmitting submittals, verify that the equipment submitted is mutually compatible and suitable for the intended use, will fit the available space, and maintain manufacturer recommended service clearances. If the size of equipment furnished makes necessary any change in location or configuration, submit a shop drawing showing the proposed layout

Transmit submittals as early as required to support the project schedule. Allow for two weeks Engineer review time plus a duplication of this time for resubmittal, if required. Only resubmit those sections requested for resubmittal.

Submittals shall contain the project name, applicable specification section, submittal date, equipment identification acronym as used on the drawings, and the Contractor's stamp. The stamp shall certify that the submittal has been checked by the Contractor, complies with the drawings and specifications, and is coordinated with other trades. Manufacturer product literature shall include shop drawings, product data, performance sheets, samples and other submittals required by this division. Highlight, mark, list, or indicate the materials, performance criteria, and accessories that are being proposed. General product catalog data not specifically noted to be part of the specified product will be rejected and returned without review.

Separate submittals according to individual specification sections. Illegible submittals will be rejected and returned without review. Catalog data shall be properly bound, identified, indexed and tabbed in a 3-ring binder. Each item or model number shall be clearly marked and accessories indicated. Label the catalog data with the equipment identification acronym or number as used on the drawings and include performance curves, capacities, sizes, weights, materials, finishes, wiring diagrams, electrical requirements and deviations from specified equipment or materials. For equipment with motor starters or VFDs, include short circuit current ratings. Mark out inapplicable items. Shop drawings will be returned without review if the above mentioned requirements are not met.

Provide the quantity of submittals required by Division 01. If not indicated and hard-copy sets are provided, submit a minimum of six (6) copies. Refer to Division 01 for acceptance of electronic submittals for this project. For electronic submittals, Contractor shall submit the documents in accordance with the procedures specified in Division 01. Contractor shall notify the Engineer that the submittals have been posted. If electronic submittal procedures are not defined in Division 01, Contractor shall include the website, user name, and password information needed to access the submittals. For submittals sent by e-mail, Contractor shall copy the designated representatives of the Engineer. Contractor shall allow for the Engineer review time as specified above in the construction schedule. Contractor shall submit only the documents required to purchase the materials and/or equipment in the electronic submittal.

drawings relative to each item.

K. ELECTRONIC DRAWING FILES

In preparation of shop drawings or record drawings, Contractor may, at his option, obtain electronic drawing files in AutoCAD or DXF format on CD-ROM disk, DVD disk, flash drive or direct download, as desired, from the Engineer for a shipping and handling fee of \$200 for a drawing set up to 12 sheets and \$15 per sheet for each additional sheet. Contact the Engineer for the necessary release agreement form and to specify shipping method and drawing format. In addition to payment, the written authorization from the Engineer must be received before electronic drawing files will be sent.

L. RECORD DRAWINGS (AS-BUILT DRAWINGS)

During progress of the work in this division, Contractor shall maintain an accurate record of all changes made during the installation of the system. Upon completion of the work, accurately transfer all record information to three identical sets of the approved shop drawings. Insert one set into each copy of the manual described below.

See Division 01 and General Conditions for additional information.

M. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE INSTRUCTIONS

During the course of construction, collect and compile a complete brochure of equipment furnished and installed on this project. Include operational and maintenance instructions, manufacturer's catalog sheets, wiring diagrams, parts lists, approved submittals and shop drawings, warranties, and descriptive literature as furnished by the equipment manufacturer. Include an inside cover sheet that lists the project name, date, Owner, Engineer, General Contractor, Sub-Contractor, and an index of contents.

itself for inclusion in this brochure. Include Record Drawings as described above.

N. SPARE PARTS

1. One set of spare filters of each type required for each unit. In addition to the spare set of filters, install new filters prior to testing, adjusting, and balancing work and

before turning system over to Owner. 2. Furnish one complete set of belts for each fan. 3. Furnish three operating keys for each type of air outlet and inlet that require them.

TRAINING

the operation and maintenance manuals

Submit a certification letter to the Engineer stating that the Owner's designated representative has been trained as specified herein. Letter shall include date, time, attendees and subject of training. The Contractor and the Owner's representative shall sign the certification letter indicating agreement that the training has been provided. Schedule training with Owner with at least 7 days advance notice.

P. WARRANTIES

Warranties shall include labor and material, including travel expenses. Make repairs or replacements without any additional costs to the Owner, and to the satisfaction of the Owner and Enginee

Perform the remedial work promptly, upon written notice from the Engineer or Owner. commencement date and term

2. GENERAL MATERIALS AND INSTALLATION

A. BUILDING OPERATION

Comply with the schedule of operations as directed by the university. Accomplish work requiring interruption of building operation at a time when the building is not in operation and only with written approval of university. Coordinate interruption of building operation with the university a minimum of seven (7) days in advance of work.

B. EXISTING EQUIPMENT REUSE AND REMOVAL

Remove all unused equipment, ductwork, piping, and associated supports. Cap ductwork and piping at mains and seal air and water tight.

Provide items of HVAC systems modification required because of building remodeling, as noted on the drawings or necessary for proper operation. Match existing materials and construction techniques when modifying existing systems unless specified otherwise. Coordinate additional requirements with General Contractor.

Seal airtight existing ductwork required to be abandoned in place or not in use at the termination of the work

Clean and rebalance existing ductwork, diffusers, registers, and grilles intended for reuse as required or as indicated on drawings.

Clean and refurbish existing HVAC equipment intended for reuse as required for proper operation including replacement of filters, belts, motors, remote controls, and safety interlocks

C. ROUGH-IN

D. CONCRETE BASES

Provide concrete bases (e.g., housekeeping pads) for equipment where indicated on the drawings and as specified herein. Concrete bases shall have chamfered edges. Size of base shall be a minimum of 4 inches greater than the footprint of the equipment that it is supporting and shall have a minimum height of 3-1/2 inches. Construct equipment bases of a minimum 28 day, 4000 psi concrete conforming to American Concrete Institute Standard Building Code for Reinforced Concrete (ACI 318-99) and the latest applicable recommendations of the ACI standard practice manual. Concrete shall be composed of cement conforming to ASTM C150 Type I,

aggregate conforming to ASTM C33, and potable water. Exposed exterior concrete shall contain 5 to 7 percent air entrainment.

non-structural elements.

No substitutions will be considered unless the Substitution Request Form is completed and attached with the appropriate substitution documentation. No substitution will be considered prior to receipt of bids unless written request for approval to bid has been received by the Engineer at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the date for

If the proposed substitution is approved prior to receipt of bids, such approval will be stated in an addendum. Bidders shall not rely upon approvals made in any other way. Verbal approval will not be given. No substitutions will be considered after the contract is awarded unless specifically provided in the contract documents.

Submittals and shop drawings shall not contain the firm name, logo, seal, or signature of the Engineer. They shall not be copies of the work product of the Engineer. If the Contractor desires to use elements of such product, refer to paragraph "Electronic Drawing Files" for procedures to be used.

The checking and subsequent acceptance of submittals by the Engineer shall not relieve the Contractor from responsibility for deviations from the drawings and specifications, errors in dimensions, details, size of members, or quantities, omissions of components or fittings; coordination of electrical requirements; and not coordinating items with actual building conditions and adjacent work. Proceed with the procurement and installation of equipment only after receiving approved shop

Submit three copies of literature bound in approved binders with index and tabs separating equipment types to the for Engineer's review, at the termination of the work. Paper clips, staples, rubber bands, loose-leaf binding, and mailing envelopes are not considered approved binders. Final approval of systems installed under this contract shall be withheld until this equipment brochure is received and deemed complete by the Engineer. Instruct workmen to save required literature shipped with the equipment

Refer to Division 01 for acceptance of electronic manuals for this project. For electronic manuals, refer to paragraph "Submittals" for requirements.

Furnish to Owner, with receipt, the following spare parts for the equipment furnished for this project:

At a time mutually agreed upon between the Owner and Contractor, provide the services of a factory trained and authorized representative to train Owner's designated personnel on the operation and maintenance of the equipment provided for this project.

Provide training to include, but not be limited to, an overview of the system and/or equipment as it relates to the facility as a whole; operation and maintenance procedures and schedules related to startup and shutdown, troubleshooting, servicing, preventive maintenance and appropriate operator intervention; and review of data included in

Warrant each system and each element thereof against all defects due to faulty workmanship, design, or material for a period of 12 months from date of Substantial Completion, unless specific items are noted to carry a longer warranty in the construction documents or manufacturer's standard warranty exceeds 12 months. Remedy all defects, occurring within the warranty period(s), as stated in the General Conditions and Division 01.

At the time of Substantial Completion, deliver to the Owner all warranties, in writing and properly executed, including term limits for warranties extending beyond the one year period and any actions the Owner must take in order to maintain warranty status. Each warranty instrument shall be addressed to the Owner and state the

Cap and seal weathertight existing roof curbs and roof openings to be abandoned in place as a result of equipment removal.

Coordinate without delay all roughing-in with other divisions. Conceal piping, conduit, and rough-in except in unfinished areas and where otherwise shown.

Unless otherwise specified or shown on the structural drawings, reinforce equipment bases and housekeeping pads with No. 4 reinforcing bars conforming to ASTM A615 or 6x6 - W2.9 x W2.9 welded wire mesh conforming to ASTM A185. Place reinforcing bars 24 inches on center with a minimum of two bars each direction

Provide galvanized anchor bolts for equipment placed on concrete equipment bases and housekeeping pads or on concrete slabs. Anchor bolts size, number and placement shall be as recommended by the manufacturer of the equipment.

E. STRUCTURALSUPPORT SYSTEMS

Structural steel used for support of equipment, ductwork and piping shall be new, clean, and conform to ASTM Designation A-36. Support mechanical components from the building structure. Do not support mechanical components from ceilings, other mechanical or electrical components, and other

F. MOTORS AND STARTERS

Provide motors and starting equipment where not furnished with the equipment package. Motors shall have copper windings, Class B insulation, and standard squirrel cage with starting torque characteristics suitable for the equipment served. Motors controlled by variable frequency drives shall be rated for voltage peaks and minimum rise times in accordance with NEMA MG1, Part 31. Motors 5 horsepower and larger controlled by variable frequency drives shall be provided with a shaft grounding system equal to Aegis SGR Bearing Protection Ring, Inpro/Seal Current Diverter Ring (CDR) or approved equal. Motors for air handling equipment shall be selected for

quiet operation. Each motor shall be checked for proper rotation after electrical connection has been completed. Provide weather and not in air stream of fan; and totally enclosed fan cooled enclosure for motors exposed to weather. Motors shall be manufactured by Century, General Electric, Louis Allis, Westinghouse, or approved equal.

Provide every motor, except fractional horsepower single phase motors with an approved type of "built-in" thermal overload protection, with a motor starter. Each starter shall be provided with overload heaters sized to the motor rating, and every three phase motor starter shall have overload heaters in each phase. Ambient compensated heaters shall be installed wherever necessary. Unless noted otherwise, motor starters shall be furnished by the Division 23 Contractor for installation and connection by the Division 26 Contractor. Starters shall be Allen-Bradley, Clark, Furnas, Square D, or approved equal.

G. ELECTRICAL WIRING

High voltage wiring is defined as 50 Volts or higher. Low voltage wiring is defined as less than 50 Volts. Line voltage wiring shall be provided by Division 26. Line voltage control and interlock wiring for mechanical systems shall also be provided by Division 26. Low voltage control wiring shall be provided by Division 23. Furnish wiring diagrams to Division 26 as required for proper equipment hookup. Coordinate with Division 26 the actual wire sizing amps for mechanical equipment (from the equipment nameplate) to ensure proper installation.

Provide power and communication wiring with transient protection in accordance with IEEE C62.41.2. All control and interlock wiring shall comply with the NEC. Control wiring shall be sized to accommodate the voltage drop associated with the distance between the control device and the controller. Control wiring not installed in conduit shall be UL rated for plenum installation. All NEC Class 1 (line voltage) wiring shall be UL listed in approved raceway according to the NEC and Division 26 requirements. Maximum allowable voltage for control wiring shall be 120 V. All low-voltage wiring shall meet NEC Class 2 requirements. Low-voltage power circuits shall be sub-fused when required to meet Class 2 current limit.

Conduit for Control Wiring: EMT with compression fittings, cold rolled steel, zinc coated or zinc-coated rigid steel with threaded connections. Pull and Junction Boxes: Size according to number, size, and position of entering raceway as required by National Electrical Codes. Enclosure type shall be suited to

Install wiring parallel to building lines wherever possible. Conceal all control wiring in finished rooms. Do not install Class 2 wiring in raceway containing Class 1 wiring. Boxes and panels containing high voltage wiring and equipment may not be used for low-voltage wiring except for the purpose of interfacing the two wires (e.g., relays and transformers). All wire-to device and wire-to-wire connections shall be made at a terminal block or terminal strip. All runs of communication wiring shall be unspliced length when that length is commercially available. Verify the integrity of the entire network following the cable installation. Use appropriate test measures for each particular cable. Label all wiring and cabling at each end within 2 inches of termination with the controller termination number. Label control devices used in the system with permanent labels using the identifiers that match the record documents.

H. IDENTIFICATION

Provide manufacturer's standard pre-printed, semi-rigid snap-on or permanent adhesive, pressure-sensitive vinyl pipe markers. Color code pipe markers to comply with ANSI A13 1

Install pipe markers on each HVAC piping system and include arrows to show normal direction of flow.

and exterior non-concealed locations.

equipment units, and shut-off valves at HVAC terminal devices and similar rough-in connections of end-use fixtures and units.

Yellow/Green for combination Cooling and Heating; Brown for Energy Reclamation; Blue for other equipment types. Conform to ANSI A13.1 for Hazardous Equipment. Provide stenciled signs for equipment identification at Contractor's option or where distance of required identification requires lettering larger than 1 inch height. Stencil

3. PIPING AND PIPING SPECIALTIES

A. STEAM CONDENSATE PUMP

Provide floor-mounted, centrifugal steam condensate pumps, manufactured by Alyan Pump Co, Armstrong, Aurora, ITT Domestic, Mepco, Paco Pumps, Peerless Pump Co, Skidmore Div., Sterling Inc., or Weil Pump Co, of the type, size and capacity as scheduled on the drawings. Unit shall be factory-fabricated, with electric-driven pumps; receiver, controls, and accessories suitable for operation with low-pressure steam condensate. Receiver shall be floor-mounted with externally adjustable float switches and flanges for pump mounting. Pumps shall be centrifugal, close coupled; vertical design; permanently aligned; bronze fitted, with enclosed bronze case rings, mechanical seals, and independent pump control circuit for each pump. Control panel shall be NEMA 250, type 12 enclosure with hinged door and grounding lug, mounted on unit; factory wired for single external electrical connection. Panel shall have motor controller, electrical alternator, momentary "test" push button on cover of each pump, numbered terminal strip, disconnect switch, and fused transformer for each control circuit included in the cabinet. Control circuits shall be provided independent of each pump with electrical alternator to operate pumps in sequence and allow both pumps to operate on receiver high level. Provide manual lead-lag control to override the electrical alternator when active pump is manually selected and allow both pumps to operate on receiver high level. Install pumps to provide access for periodic maintenance, including removing motors, impellers, couplings, and accessories. Support pumps and piping separately so piping is not supported by pumps. Install pumps on concrete bases and anchor to bases using inserts or anchor bolts.

B. SAFETY RELIEF VALVES

General: Select steam safety valves for full relief of capacity of equipment served, in accordance with ASME Boiler and Pressure Vessel Code. Furnish complete with cast iron drip-pan elbow having threaded inlet and outlet with threads (FPT) conforming to ANSI B1.20.1; sized for full size of safety valve outlet connection. Select bronze or iron safety valves to suit piping materials. Valves listed below are available 1/2 inch through 2-1/2 inch.

Bronze Safety Valves: Valve shall have Class 250 cast bronze body with threaded (MPT) inlet and threaded (FPT) outlet; forged copper alloy disc, fully enclosed cadmium plated steel spring having an adjustable pressure range and positive shut-off. Factory-set valves to relieve at 10 psi above operating pressure.

Below valves are available 1-1/2 inch through 6 inch.

Cast-Iron Safety Valves: Valve shall have Class 250 cast iron body and bronze seat, forged copper alloy disc and nozzle; fully enclosed stainless steel spring having an adjustable pressure range and positive shut-off; threaded end connections for valves 2 inch and smaller, raised face flanged inlet and threaded outlet connections for valves 2-1/2 inch and larger. Factory-set valves to relieve at 10 psi above operating pressure

C. STEAM AND STEAM CONDENSATE PIPING AND ACCESSORIES

Provide ASTM A53, type E, grade B, black steel pipe, schedule 40 for steam 2-1/2 inches and larger, and schedule 80 for steam 2 inches and smaller, and schedule 80 for steam condensate. Provide threaded joints and fittings for 2 inches and smaller, and welded joints for 2-1/2 inches and larger. Threaded fittings shall be ANSI B16.4, class 125, standard pattern or malleable iron ANSI B16.3, class 150, standard pattern. Welded fittings shall be ASTM A234, seamless or welded.

Valves for steam and steam condensate shall be class 150 for gate, check and globe valves 2 inches and smaller, and class 125 for gate, check and globe valves larger than 2 inches. Valves shall be Crane, Hammond, Jenkins, Milwaukee, Nibco, or Powell. Class 250 ball valves rated for steam service may be used for low pressure steam and condensate 2 inches and smaller and under 15 PSIG. Ball valves shall be Apollo or Nibco.

Valves for high-pressure steam applications shall be class 200 for gate, check and globe valves 2 inches and smaller, and class 250 for gate, check and globe valves larger than 2 inches. Valves shall be Crane, Hammond, Jenkins, Milwaukee, Nibco, Powell, or Stockham. Nozzle (non-slam) check valves shall be Crane, Cameron Entech, Mokveld, or Noreva.

Provide float and thermostatic (for below 15 PSIG only) or inverted bucket type steam traps conforming to ASTM A 278 with cast iron body and bolted cap. Provide traps with stainless steel internal parts and with pressure rating of 250 PSIG. Steam traps shall be Dunham Bush. Hoffman, or Spirax Sarco, Provide Y-type strainers with cast iron body, threaded connections for 2 inches and smaller and flanged ends larger than 2 inches. Provide bolted cover, perforated type 304 stainless steel basket and bottom drain connection. The Reference manufacturer and model number for strainers is Mueller #351. Provide cast iron or bronze body air vents with balanced pressure stainless steel or Monel thermostatic bellows and stainless steel heads and seats.

Provide hangers with rods of the required length suspended from inserts in the concrete or suitable steel supports fastened to the building construction so that pipes are parallel and evenly spaced. Install insulation saddles at hanger and pipe locations on piping of 1 inch or greater to protect the insulation. Provide clevis type hangers and space on 7 foot centers for steel pipe up to 1-1/2 inches, on 10 foot centers for 2 inch to 4 inch pipe and 15 foot centers for piping greater than 4 inches. Install a support within one foot of each change of direction

Insulate steam and steam condensate piping smaller than 2 inches with 1-1/2 inch thick fiberglass and piping 2 inches and larger with 3 inches fiberglass insulation conforming to ASTM C547 with Type I vapor barrier jacket conforming to ASTM C 1136. Manufacture insulation in premolded sections with a white fiberglass reinforced foil laminate all-service jacket. Insulate fittings and valves and cover with Zeston type premolded PVC coverings. Fittings, jackets, PVC coverings and adhesives shall not exceed flame spread rating of 25 and smoke development rating of 50 per ASTM E 84.

D. SADDLES AND SHIELDS

Pipe Covering Protection Saddles:

Insulation Protection Shield:

Manufacturers: Same as hanger and Supports

Meet MSS SP-58 Type 39A or B, 100-psi average compressive strength, with center rib for pipes 12 inches and larger. Saddles shall cover approximately one sixth of the circumference of the pipe and shall be 12 inches long.

Sheet metal construction, meeting MSS SP-58 Type 40, of 18 gauge for 5-1/2 inches inside dimension and smaller, 16 gauge for 6-1/2 inches to 10-3/4 inches inside dimension, 14 gauge for 11-3/4 inches to 17 inches inside dimension, and 12 gauge for 18 inches to 28 inches inside dimension.

Lengths for pipes greater than 2 inches: Minimum 8 inch long section at each support.

For pipes 2 inch and smaller without pre-insulated supports, provide insulation protection shields installed between hanger and pipe which meets the following minimum



END OF SECTION 23

drip-proof enclosure for locations protected from
all be manufactured by Century, General Electric

Locate pipe markers and color bands wherever piping is exposed to view in occupied spaces, machine rooms, accessible maintenance spaces (shafts, tunnels, plenums)

Provide plastic laminate or brass valve tag on every valve, cock and control device in each HVAC piping system; exclude check valves, valves within factory-fabricated

Provide manufacturer's standard laminated plastic, color coded equipment markers. Conform to the following color code: Green for Cooling; Yellow for Heating;

paint shall be exterior type, oil-based, alkyd enamel, minimum 1-1/4 inch height or greater as required for long distance identification, white or black color for best contrast.

Shield shall cover half of the circumference of the pipe and shall be of length indicated by manufacturer for pipe size and thickness of insulation.

0 ENDER: Ξű

> М $\mathbf{\gamma}$

 \geq



MECHANICAL **SPECIFICATIONS**

A-014311

MO.1









06/25/2021 MECHANICAL PIPING BASEMENT PLAN

A-014311

M2.1





EMENT

 \mathbf{O}

Ω

REI REI

ĒC

SBURG S R H 1701 S E

RD

1

MILL

13408

06/25/2021

MECHANICAL PIPING

SCHEMATICS

A-014311

M3.1

100% BID AND PERMIT

-

PIPING DEMO PLAN NOTES:

- 1. REMOVE EXISTING CONDENSATE PUMP AND ASSOCIATED PIPING AND ACCESSORIES INDICATED.
- 2. REMOVE EXISTING DOMESTIC HOT WATER CONVERTER AND ASSOCIATED PIPING AND ACCESSORIES INDICATED.

- PIPING NEW WORK PLAN NOTES:
- 1. STEAM HEADER AND SHUT OFF VALVES FURNISHED BY EQUIPMENT MANUFACTURER FOR FIELD INSTALLATION BY DIVISION 23 CONTRACTOR.
- 2. CONNECT EXISTING LOW PRESSURE CONDENSATE PIPING FROM EXISTING STEAM TRAPS TO NEW CONDENSATE MAIN.









		CO	NDENS	ΑΤΕΙ	PUM	P AND	REC	EIVE	R SC	HED	ULE					DERS EERS /E. SUITE 3(566214 X 913.742.5 NGINEERS.1 UMBER: E-3
MARK CP-1	MANUFACTURER ARMSTRONG	MODEL 41525-JD	RECEIVER CAP (GAL) 45	NO OF PUMPS 2	GPM 37	DISCHARGE PRESS (PSI 50	MOTOR) HP 3	RPM 3450	V/PH 208/3	MCA 11	MOCP 20	DISC TYPE NF	STARTER TYPE COMBINATION	NOTES		HENL ENGINE ENGINE ENEXA DRIV LENEXA, KS 42.5000 FJ NDERSONE 2150002: 2150002: 12/31/2
	L MBERS SHALL NOT E	E CONSIDERED CON		RIAL SHALL NO		ERED BY MANUFA		D MODEL NU		LY. REVIEW	I / THE COM		CRIPTION, NO	I TES AND		8345 L 8345 L WWW.HEI KS. COF
DTES:					VDEILED. II					E DEGIGIN.						
	E WITH FLOAT SWITC E CONCRETE HOUS	H, ALTERNATOR, ST EKEEPING PAD PER	ARTER AND ALL CO SPECIFICATIONS.	ONTROLS REC			ON.									
PROVIDE	ELECTRICAL ALTE SOLATION VALVE E	RNATOR TO SWITCH BETWEEN RECEIVER	LEAD/LAG PUMP O	PERATION.												
			ет					_								
MARK	SERVICE	MANUFACTURER	MODEL			TRAP SIZE (IN)		E (L	CAP _B/HR)	DIFF. PRES	SS. S	AFETY	NOTES			
ST-1 ST-2	DWH DWH	SPIRAX SARCO SPIRAX SARCO	FT-15 FT-15	F&	&T	2 2	0.625		2605 2605	2.5 2.5		2:1 2:1	A,B A,B			
ODEL NUN OTES AND	/BERS SHALL NOT B	E CONSIDERED CON DETERMINE THE E	U MPLETE AND MATER XACT MATERIAL ANI	RIAL SHALL NO D ACCESSORI	OT BE ORDE	ERED BY MANUFA	ACTURER AND ANUFACTURE	D MODEL NU	MBERS ONI ARE THE BA	Y. REVIEW	THE COMP E DESIGN	PLETE DES	CRIPTION,			
OTES:																F
SIZE OR . PROVIDE	FICE OF STEAM TRA E INTEGRAL VACUUN	P FOR SPECIFIED CA I BREAKER.	APACITY TIMES IN DI	CATED SAFET	YFACTOR.											
																N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N
																AC
																H ⊔≺
																ST ST ST
																G, KS
																STATE EA ⁻ BROAE SBUR(5:06-25
																TEF 17
																_ ∧
																Ď
																A R
	STEAMI		`													S
			6													
[,] DEPTH (S	EE NOTE 1)		-TRAP DEPTH (SEE NOTE 1)					_{				ROUTE TO E AND TERMII TOWARDS (BUILDING EXTER NATE WITH ELBC GROUND.	IOR WALL WW DOWN		
TO M TRAP —			PIPE TO STEAM TRAP	Å			RELIEF VALVE									
NMM	SEE NOTE		-6" MINIMUM	>								— WEEP HO	DLE			
	VALV	/∉X	THREAD-O-LET					₽ ₽			<u>}</u>	—Drip Pai	I ELBOW			
YSTEM ST	ARTUP TYPE. REFER UP SHALL HAVE MININ	TO TABLE BELOW FO	R REQUIRED TRAP 28". SYSTEMS			:	STEAM PIPING	,				orain to w Elbow Man	ASTE. REFER TO) DRIP PAN IR SIZE.		
L HAVE M ZE (DIAME FOLLOWS	IINIMUM TRAP DEPTH TER) OF MAIN UP TO 4 :	of 14." 4"Ø MAIN. FOR MAINS	LARGER THAN			NOTE	c .				- CONNEC VALVE O	T DRIP PAN UTLET. SEE	ELBOW TO THE NOTES 2 AND 3	SAFETY		
8" 4"	10" 12" 14 6" 6" 8	4" 16" 18" " 8" 10"	20" 24" 10" 12"			1. T S 2. T	<u>3.</u> He weight of Tructure ini He discharg	F THE RELIEF DEPENDENT E PIPE DIAME	DISCHARGE OF THE REL ETER MUST E	E PIPING MU IEF VALVE A BE MINIMUM	ST BE SUP ND DRIP P SAME SIZE	PORTED FF AN ELBOW. E AS THE RI	OM BUILDING			
14" 28"	15" 18" 2" 28" 28" 28	1" 24" 27" 3" 28" 28"	30" 36" 30" 12"			D 3. P B 4. S	ISCHARGE SIZ IPING CONNEC E AS SHORT A AFETY VALVE	≟E. CTION BETWE \S POSSIBLE. AND DRIP PA	EEN THE REL	.IEF VALVE (Y SHALL BE	DUTLET AN	D THE DRIF	PAN ELBOW SH	ALL	ľ	
							<u>\ST</u> EA	<u>M R</u> ELI	EF VA	<u>LVE</u> D	ISCH/	ARGE	PIPING			PATHICIA CENSES CE
LEG	DETAIL					\bigcirc	NO SCAL	.E								13406 CENT P. CUM
																ANSAS ANSAS
																06/25/2021
															Í	MECHANICAL DETAILS AND
															ł	SCHEDULES Δ-014.311
																MA 1
																100% RID
																AND PERMIT









<u>. 14</u>	THE ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS INDICATE EXISTING ELECTRICAL ITEMS TO BE REMOVED. THE DRAWINGS ARE INTENDED TO INDICATE
	THE SCOPE OF WORK REQUIRED AND DO NOT INDICATED EVERY BOX, CONDUIT, OR WIRE THAT MUST BE REMOVED. CONTRACTOR SHALL INSPECT THE SITE PRIOR TO THE SUBMISSION OF A BID. CONTRACTOR SHALL INFORM THEMSELVES OF THE CONDITIONS UNDER WHICH THE WORK IS TO BE PERFORMED CONCERNING THE SITE OF THE WORK, THE OBSTACLES WHICH MAY BE ENCOUNTERED, THE DEMOLITION, AND TEMPORARY REMOVAL AND REINSTALLATION REQUIRED TO PROVIDE ACCESS TO THE WORK, AND ALL OTHER RELEVANT MATTERS CONCERNING THE WORK TO BE PERFORMED.
	THE EXISTING CONDITIONS INDICATED IN THESE DRAWINGS ARE TAKEN FROM THE BEST INFORMATION AVAILABLE FROM VISUAL SITE INSPECTIONS AND EXISTING DRAWINGS. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL EXISTING CONDITIONS AND THE INTENT OF THE WORK PRIOR TO BEGINNING WORK.
	CONTRACTOR SHALL REPAIR ALL DAMAGE TO EXISTING BUILDING, FIXTURES, AND FINISHED CAUSED BY CONTRACTOR DURING THE PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK. REPAIRS SHALL BE PERFORMED BY A QUALIFIED TRADESMEN AND SHALL BE COMPLETED IN A MANNER ACCEPTABLE TO THE OWNER.
	REMOVAL OR RELOCATION OF ANY CONDUIT OR CABLES, WIRES, ETC. NOT INSTALLED IN CONDUIT, REQUIRED TO ALLOW INSTALLATION OF NEW WORK SHALL BE CONSIDERED WORK REQUIRED BY THIS CONTRACTOR WHETHER OR NOT SUCH WORK IS SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS.
	REMOVAL OF CONDUITS SHALL INCLUDE REMOVAL OF HANGERS, SUPPORTS, AND ASSOCIATED MISCELLANEOUS MATERIALS. ALL PIPING, TUBING, CONDUITS, ETC. MADE OBSOLETE, BY WORK UNDER THIS CONTRACT, EXPOSED OR IN CONFLICT WITH NEW WORK, ARE TO BE REMOVED. REPAIR ALL HOLES IN WALLS, FLOORS, AND CEILING TO MATCH EXISTING CONDITIONS AND MAINTAIN FIRE/SMOKE RATINGS.
	IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THIS CONTRACTOR TO PERFORM ALL SELECTIVE DEMOLITION NECESSARY TO PERFORM THE WORK SHOWN ON THE DRAWINGS EXCEPT WHERE SAID DEMOLITION IS SHOWN ON THE ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS TO BE PERFORMED BY THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR.
	SHOULD ACTUAL CONDITIONS DEVIATE SUBSTANTIALLY FROM THOSE INDICATED ON THE DRAWING, CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY ENGINEER AND REQUEST INSTRUCTIONS.
	OWNER SHALL HAVE THE RIGHT TO SALVAGE ANY AND ALL MATERIALS AND EQUIPMENT OR PORTION THEREOF. ALL REMOVED EQUIPMENT MATERIALS NOT RETAINED BY THE OWNER SHALL BE CONSIDERED PROPERTY OF THE CONTRACTOR AND SHALL BE PROMPTLY REMOVED FROM THE OWNER'S PROPERTY AND LEGALLY DISPOSED OF. OWNER ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR CONDITION OF EQUIPMENT OR MATERIALS TO BE DEMOLISHED.
N	ERAL ELECTRICAL NOTES:
	PROPOSED WORK AND VERIFY THE CONDITIONS WHICH INVOLVE THIS WORK. BY THE ACT OF SUBMITTING A BID, THE CONTRACTOR HAS DEEMED TO HAVE MADE REASONABLE ALLOWANCES FOR SITE EXAMINATIONS, SITE CONDITIONS, AND INCLUDED ALL COSTS IN THEIR PROPOSAL. FAILURE TO VERIFY THESE CONDITIONS WILL NOT BE CONSIDERED A BASIS FOR THE GRANTING OF ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION.
	READ THE SPECIFICATIONS AND REVIEW DRAWINGS OF ALL DIVISIONS OF WORK. COORDINATE THIS WORK WITH ALL OTHER DIVISIONS OF WORK AND ALL SUBCONTRACTORS. PROVIDE ALL SUBCONTRACTORS WITH A COMPLETE SET OF BID DOCUMENTS.
	DRAWINGS ARE DIAGRAMMATIC ONLY AND REPRESENT THE GENERAL SCOPE OF WORK. REVIEW THE GENERAL NOTES, SPECIFICATIONS, AND PLANS FOR ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS THAT MAY NOT BE SPECIFICALLY NOTED IN THIS PORTION OF THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS. NOTIFY THE ARCHITECT OF ANY CONFLICTS OR DISCREPANCIES PRIOR TO SUBMISSION OF BID.
	THE DRAWINGS REPRESENT THE BEST INFORMATION AVAILABLE TO THE ENGINEER. ALL DIMENSIONS AND SIZES SHALL BE FIELD VERIFIED. DO NOT SCALE FROM THE DRAWINGS. SMALL DEVIATIONS SHALL BE RECONCILED DURING THE PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK.
	FURNISH A COPY OF INSPECTION REPORTS AND APPROVAL CERTIFICATES FROM LOCAL AND STATE INSPECTIONS TO THE ARCHITECT.
	DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS GOVERN, WHERE THEY EXCEED CODE REQUIREMENTS. COORDINATE ALL WORK WITH OTHER TRADES AND CONTRACTORS, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, REQUIREMENTS ASSOCIATED WITH NON-BASIS OF DESIGN EQUIPMENT.
	FIELD VERIFY EXACT LOCATIONS AND ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS OF ALL HVAC AND PLUMBING EQUIPMENT WITH OTHER TRADE CONTRACTORS <u>PRIOR</u> TO ORDERING RELATED ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT.
	ROOM NAMES/NUMBERS SHOWN IN PANELBOARD SCHEDULES ARE PER ARCHITECTURAL FLOOR PLANS. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE FINALIZED PANELBOARD SCHEDULES AT COMPLETION OF PROJECT WITH OWNER PROVIDED ROOM NAMES/NUMBERS. SEE SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.
	PROVIDE A CONSTRUCTION RECORD SET OF "AS-BUILT" DOCUMENTS TO THE ARCHITECT REFLECTING ANY VARIANCES OF INSTALLED PIPING, EQUIPMENT DEVICES, ETC LOCATIONS CONTRARY TO THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS. REFER TO SPECIFICATIONS FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.
	INSTALLATION SHALL COMPLY WITH LEGALLY CONSTITUTED CODES AND THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE AUTHORITIES HAVING JURISDICTION.
	ALL EXPOSED CONDUIT AND BOXES WITHIN EXPOSED CEILING SPACES SHALL BE PAINTED TO MATCH SURROUNDING CEILING AND STRUCTURE. PROVIDE CONDUIT PARALLEL TO STRUCTURAL LINES IN A NEAT MANNER.
	WHERE DEVICES ARE MOUNTED RECESSED IN CMU WALLS, ROUTE CONDUIT CONCEALED WITHIN INTERIOR OPENINGS WITHIN CMU WALL. COORDINATE WITH GENERAL CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO ROUGH-IN.
	ALL CEILING MOUNTED DEVICES INSTALLED IN ACOUSTICAL TILE CEILING SHALL BE CENTERED WITHIN TILE. ALL DEVICES SHOWN DIRECTLY ADJACENT TO EACH OTHER SHALL BE INSTALLED DIRECTLY ADJACENT TO EACH OTHER. ADJACENT DEVICES OF SIMILAR TYPE SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH SINGLE FACEPLATE WHERE FEASIBLE.
	ALL JUNCTION BOXES SHALL BE RIGIDLY ATTACHED TO STRUCTURE OR MILLWORK. REFER TO ARCHITECTURAL PLANS AND DETAILS FOR EXACT LOCATIONS, ALIGNMENT, AND MOUNTING OF ALL CEILING, WALL, AND
	FLOOR MOUNTED DEVICES. CONDUIT AND BOX ROUGH-IN FOR ADJACENT FIRE ALARM, TEMPERATURE CONTROLS, RECEPTACLES, LIGHTING CONTROL DEVICES, ETC, ON THE SAME WALL, SHALL BE PROVIDED IN A MANNER TO WHICH DEVICES ALIGN VERTICALLY ON SAME WALL. COORDINATE
	WITH OTHER TRADES. COORDINATE CONDUIT PENETRATIONS THROUGH SLABS WITH STRUCTURAL DOCUMENTS. CONDUITS ARE NOT TO BE ROUTED WITHIN THE COMPOSITE SLAB
	WHERE SPARE CONDUIT(S) ARE INDICATED FOR FUTURE USE, PROVIDE PULL STRINGS IN CONDUIT(S) AND PROTECTIVE BUSHINGS AT OPENINGS. CAP CONDUITS WHERE LOCATED BELOW GRADE OR EXPOSED TO THE ELEMENTS
	REFER TO MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT SCHEDULES FOR ELECTRICAL SCOPE OF WORK, IN ADDITION TO WORK SHOWN ON ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS.
	PROVIDE RECESSED CONDUIT AND OUTLET BOXES FOR ALL HVAC CONTROL LOCATIONS. PROVIDE CONDUIT FOR ALL CONTROLS WIRING LOCATED IN SPACES WITH EXPOSED CEILINGS. REFER TO MECHANICAL DOCUMENTS AND SCHEDULES FOR ALL DEVICE LOCATIONS. COORDINATE WORK WITH MECHANICAL CONTRACTOR.
	PROVIDE ALL MISCELLANEOUS STEEL REQUIRED FOR THE PROPER INSTALLATION OF ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT AND SYSTEMS.
	PROVIDE RECESSED OUTLET BOX AND CONCEALED CONDUIT FOR ALL TELECOMMUNICATIONS OUTLET LOCATIONS. PROVIDE CONDUIT FOR ALL TELECOMMUNICATIONS WIRING LOCATED IN SPACES WITH EXPOSED CEILINGS. COORDINATE WORK WITH TELECOMMUNICATIONS PROVIDER.
	REFER TO SPECIFICATIONS AND DETAILS FOR APPROVED CABLE AND RACEWAY INSTALLATION. NON-COMPLIANT INSTALLATIONS OF CABLE AND RACEWAY WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED AND WILL BE REQUIRED TO BE BROUGHT TO COMPLIANCE AT NO COST TO THE OWNER, PRIOR TO COMPLETION OF WORK.
	ALL NEW AND EXISTING ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT ALTERED UNDER THIS PROJECT SHALL BE VACUUM CLEANED OF ANY DEBRIS. ALL OPENINGS REMAINING SHALL BE SEALED WITH THE PROPER DEVICE (IE. KNOCKOUT BLANKS, BREAKER BLANKS, ETC) LISTED AND APPROVED FOR USE.
	NO WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED PRIOR TO REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF ALL REQUIRED SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT SUBMITTALS. ANY WORK INSTALLED PRIOR TO MEETING THESE REQUIREMENTS SHALL BE DONE SO AT THE SOLE RISK OF THIS CONTRACTOR.
N	PROVIDE UPDATED TYPED PANEL DIRECTORIES TO REFLECT WORK PERFORMED UNDER THIS CONTRACT.
	ALL CIRCUITRY SHALL BE #12 AWG IN 1/2" CONDUIT, MINIMUM, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
	PROVIDE A SEPARATE CODE SIZED GREEN EQUIPMENT GROUNDING CONDUCTOR IN ALL CONDUITS AND RACEWAYS CONTAINING LINE VOLTAGE CIRCUITS. FOR ALL 20A CIRCUITS, EQUIPMENT GROUNDING CONDUCTOR SHALL MATCH PHASE CONDUCTOR SIZE. FOR CIRCUITS UPSIZED DUE TO VOLTAGE DROP. INCREASE FOUR PHASE CONDUCTOR SIZE FOR DUE TO VOLTAGE DROP. INCREASE FOUR PHASE CONDUCTOR SIZE FOR DUE TO VOLTAGE DROP. INCREASE FOUR PHASE CONDUCTOR SIZE FOR DUE TO VOLTAGE DROP.
	PROVIDE A NEUTRAL CONDUCTOR TO THREE-PHASE EQUIPMENT WHEREVER REQUIRED.
	GROUND AND NEUTRAL CONDUCTORS SHALL NOT BE SHARED UNLESS SPECIFICALLY NOTED ON PLANS.
	ALL GFCI PROTECTED CIRCUITS SHALL HAVE INDIVIDUAL AND DEDICATED NEUTRALS.

F DEVICE) P OF DEVICE)		
VE COUNTER) CK) (CENTERLINE) IIPMENT ROOMS) (TOP OF E ERIOR)	+6" ABOVE I DEVICE)	BACKSPL
AGES) IG LIGHT (EQUIPMENT ROO IG LIGHT (FINISHED AREAS) OP OF DEVICE) DEVICE) EVICE) OUTLET (TOP OF DEVICE) IONS BACKBOARD ET	MS) (TOP OF I	DEVICE)
E (CENTERLINE)		
DUTLET BOXES AT THE MOU DCUMENTS. MOUNTING HEI DCUMENTS, ARE AFF OR AF PLIANCE WITH CURRENT AI	JNTING HEIGH GHTS LISTED GTO BOTTOI DA AND LOCA	HTS SHOV ABOVE, M, UNO. A L REQUIR
ONS		
FUSE SIZE INISHED CEILING INISHED FLOOR INISHED GRADE	MFR MIN MLO MLV	MANUFA MINIMUN MAIN LU MAGNET
ITY HAVING CTION DLING UNIT INTERRUPTING	MOCP MTD N/A	MAXIMU PROTEC MOUNTE NOT APP
Y SWITCH SIZE TRIP SETTING TIC TRANSFER SWITCH	NF NL NRTL	NON-FU NIGHT L NATION TESTING
ISUAL 3 AUTOMATION	NTS OS P	(CSA,ET NOT TO OCCUPA POLE
F RY ELEVISION SYSTEM CIRCUIT TELEVISION A	PART PH/Ø PNL PNLBD PROVIDE	PARTIAL PHASE PANEL PANELB FURNISH
BLE CODE ADOPTED BY CTION T TRANSFORMER	PT QTY R/REL RCPT RLA	QUANTI RELOCA RECEPT RUNNIN
DL/CONTROLLED TIVE VOLTAGE DROP TON POLE,	RTU SCCR SD	ROOFTC SHORT- RATING SMOKE
-THROW -POLE, THROW G TO REMAIN	SF SPDT SPST	SQUARE SINGLE- DOUBLE SINGLE-
CAL CONTRACTOR T FAN NCY MANAGEMENT	SSBJ ST SWBD	SINGLE- SUPPLY SHUNT
DNIC LOW-VOLTAGE C WATER COOLER	SWGR TBB	SWITCH TELECO BONDIN TO BE D
NRM CONTROL PANEL URRENT AMPS AVAILABLE	TGB TL TMGB	TELECO GROUNI TWISTLO
L CONTRACTOR	TX/XFMR TYP	GROUNI TRANSF TYPICAL
DING ELECTRODE TOR DING ELECTRODE SYSTEM	U/G U/S UH	UNDERG UNDERG UNIT HE
D GROUND CIRCUIT CURRENT	UPS VD	UNINTER SUPPLY VOLTAG
EET ROTOR AMPS	VS W	VACANC WIRE WITH

ELECTRICAL SYMBOLS					SON E 300 42.5001 RS.COM
THIS IS A MASTER LEGEND AND NOT ALL SYMBOLS OR ABBREVIATIONS ARE USE STANDARD MOUNTING HEIGHTS	D. ANNOTATION	LIGHTING	BOXES, LIGHTING CONTROL & WIRING DEVICES	V3.01 ELECTRICAL ONE-LINE & RISER DIAGRAM	DER EERS 5 66214 AX 913.74 NGINEEF
UNDER APPRIANCE (CENTERLINE) Set 2000 UNDER APPRIANCE (CENTERLINE) Set 2000 SAME AS ADJACENT DEVICE) SAME AS ADJACENT DEVICE. SAME AS ADJACENT DEVICE. SAME AS ADJACENT DEVICE.	1 MECHANICAL OR FIRE PROTECTION PLAN NOTE CALLOUT 1 PLUMBING PLAN NOTE CALLOUT 1 PLECTRICAL OR FIRE ALARM PLAN NOTE CALLOUT 1 PLECTRICAL COUPMENT DESIGNATION (CONTRACTOR PURNISHED AND INSTALLOUT 1 PLECTRICAL CONTRACTOR PLANTAGE SOLUTION (CONTRACTOR PURNISHED AND INSTALLOUT 1 PLECTRICAL CONTRACTOR PLANTAGE SOLUTION (CONTRACTOR PURNISHED AND INSTALLOUT 1 PLECTRICAL CONTRACTOR PLANTAGE SOLUTION (CONTRACTOR PURNISHED AND INSTALLOUT 1 PLECTRICAL CONTRACTOR PLANTAGE SOLUTION (CONTRACTOR PURNISHED AND INSTALLOUT 1 PLECTRICAL CONTRACTOR PLANTAGE SOLUTION (CONTRACTOR PURNISHED AND INSTALLOUT 1 PLECTRICAL CONTRACTOR PLAN	Light Fixture Code Letter is Switch Identifier	BUTCHER DESCRIPTION BUTCHER DESCRIPTI	WITCH (RATING AS INDICATED) WITCH (RATING AS INDICATED) USAD SWITCH (RATING PALES AND FUSE TYPE AS INDICATED) USAD SWITCH (RATING PALES AND FUSE TYPE AS INDICATED) WITCH (RATING PALES AND FUSE TYPE AS INDICATED) WITCH (RATING PALES AND FUSE TYPE AS INDICATED) WITCH (RATING PALES AS INDICATED) WITCH RATING PALES AS INDICATED INTON	PITTSBURG STATE UNIVERSITY WILLARD WATER HEATER REPLACEMENT 1701 S BROADWAY ST PITTSBURG, KS DATE-06-25-2021
					26555 26555 26555 26522 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26555 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26555 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26525 26555 26525 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 26555 265555 265555 265555 265555 265555 265555 26555555 2655555 2655555555

ELECTRICAL LEGEND AND NOTES

A-014311

E0.0

Division 26: GENERAL ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS 1 GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS	 Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) American National Standards Institute (ANSI) American Society of Testing Materials (ASTM) Rules and regulations of public utilities and municipal departments affected by connection of se 			
A. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS	 Other national standards and codes where applicable. Where the contract documents exceed the requirements of the referenced codes, standards, etc., th 			
All requirements under Division 01 and the general and supplementary conditions of these specifications apply to this section and division. Where the requirements of this section and division exceed those of Division 01, this section and division take precedence. Become thoroughly familiar with all its contents as to requirements that affect this division, section, or both.	shall take precedence. Where conflicts between various codes, ordinances, rules, and regulations ex stringent.			
Work required under this division includes all material, equipment, appliances, transportation, services, and labor required to complete the entire system as required by the drawings and specifications, or reasonably inferred to be necessary to facilitate the function of each system as implied by the design and the equipment specified.	Promptly bring all conflicts observed between codes, ordinances, rules, regulations, referenced standocuments to the attention of the Architect and Engineer for final resolution. Contractor will be held r violation of the law.			
The specifications and drawings for the project are complementary, and any portion of work described in one shall be provided as if described in both. In the event of discrepancies, notify the Engineer and request clarification prior to proceeding with the Work involved.	Procure and pay for permits and licenses required for the accomplishment of the work herein describ obtain, pay for, and furnish certificates of inspection to Owner. Provide all safety lights, guards, and for the performance of the work and for the safety of the public.			
Drawings are graphic representations of the work upon which the contract is based. They show the materials and their relationship to one another, including sizes, shapes, locations, and connections. They convey the scope of work, indicating the intended general arrangement of the systems without showing all of the exact details as to elevations, offsets, control lines, and other installation requirements. Use the drawings as a guide when laying out the work and to verify that materials and equipment will fit into the designated spaces, and which when installed per manufacturers' requirements, will ensure a complete, coordinated, satisfactory, and properly operating system.	Electrical equipment shall be located so that the code required minimum working clearance and ded are maintained. Existing equipment not meeting current code required clearance requirements may AHJ, Engineer and Owner. H. PROTECTION OF EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS			
B. DEFINITIONS	Store and protect from damage equipment and materials delivered to job site. For materials and equipment materials weather conditions, dampness, or temperature variations, store inside in conditioned space			
Division: References contained in this specification follow the numbering system defined in the Construction Specifications Institute (CSI) MasterFormat 2004 Edition. Specification Divisions 01 through 13 provided with this project may reference the CSI MasterFormat 1995 Edition. The corresponding division references between the 2004 Edition and 1995 Edition are as follows:	requipment not susceptible to these conditions, cover with waterproof, tearnesistant, newy tarp of per required to protect from plaster, dirt, paint, water, or physical damage. Equipment and material dama activities shall be rejected, and Contractor shall furnish new equipment and material of a like kind at Keep premises broom clean of foreign material created during work performed under this contract. C			
2004 Edition 1995 Edition Division 21 - Fire Suppression Division 15	shall have a neat and clean appearance at the termination of the work.			
Division 22 - Plumbing Division 15 Division 23 - HVAC Division 15 Division 26 - Floating	to keep dirt, dust, and noise from being transmitted to adjacent areas. Remove protection and barrie operations are complete.			
Division 26 - Electrical Division 16 Division 27 - Communications Division 16 Division 28 - Electronic Safety and Security Division 16	Plug or cap open ends of conduits while stored and installed during construction when not in use to p debris into the systems.			
Furnish: "to supply and deliver to the project site, ready for unloading, unpacking, assembling, installing, and similar operations."	I. SUBSTITUTIONS			
Install: "to perform all operations at the project site including, but not limited to, the actual unloading, unpacking, assembling, erecting, placing, anchoring, applying, working to dimension, finishing, curing, protecting, cleaning, testing, commissioning, starting up and similar operations, complete, and ready for the intended use." Provide: "to furnish and install."	Materials, products, equipment, and systems described in the Bidding Documents establish a standa dimension, appearance and quality to be met by the proposed substitution. The base bid shall includ manufacturers specifically named in the drawings and specifications. To request a substitution, requ Request Form from the Architect or Engineer. Complete and send the Substitution Request From for equipment, or system that is proposed to be substituted. The burden of proof of the merit of the prop the proposer.			
Furnished by Owner (or Owner-Furnished) or Furnished by Others: "an item furnished by the Owner or under other divisions or contracts, and installed under the requirements of this division, complete, and ready for the intended use, including all items and services incidental to the work necessary for proper installation and operation. Include the installation under the	Unless stated otherwise in writing to the Engineer by the Contractor, Contractor warrants to the Engi Owner the following:			
Engineer: Where referenced in this Division, "Engineer" is the Engineer of Record and the Design Professional for the work under this division, and is a consultant to, and an authorized representative of the Architect, as defined in the General and/or Supplementary Conditions. When used in this division. Engineer means increased involvement by and obligations to the	 Proposed substitution has been fully investigated and determined to meet or exceed the specifi unless stated otherwise in the substitution request. Proposed substitution is consistent with the Contract Documents and will produce indicated res clearances, maintenance service, and sourcing of replacement parts. 			
Engineer, in addition to involvement by and obligations to the Architect.	Proposed substitution has received necessary approvals of authorities having jurisdiction.			
NRTL : Nationally Recognized Testing Laboratory, as defined and listed by OSHA in 29 CFR 1910.7 (e.g., UL, ETL, CSA), and acceptable to the AHJ over this project. Nationally recognized testing laboratories and standards listed are used only to represent the characteristics required and are not intended to restrict the use of other NRTLs that are acceptable to the AHJ and standards that meet the specified criteria	Same warranty will be turnished for proposed substitution as for specified Work. If accepted substitution fails to perform as required, Contractor shall replace substitute material or sy specified and bear costs incurred thereby.			
Homerun: That portion of an electrical circuit originating at a junction box, termination box, receptacle, or switch with termination at an electrical panelboard. Note: Where MC cable is utilized for receptacle and/or lighting branch circuiting loads, the originating point of the homerun shall be at the first load in the circuit or at a junction box located in an accessible ceiling	No substitutions will be considered unless the Substitution Request Form is completed and attached substitution documentation. No substitution will be considered prior to receipt of bids unless written r has been received by the Engineer at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the date for receipt of bids			
space as close as possible to the first load. Substitution: Changes in products, materials, equipment, and methods of construction from those required by the Contract Documents and proposed by Contractor. Substitutions include Value Engineering proposals.	If the proposed substitution is approved prior to receipt of bids, such approval will be stated in an add not rely upon approvals made in any other way. Verbal approval will not be given. No substitutions w contract is awarded unless specifically provided in the contract documents.			
 Substitutions for Cause: Changes proposed by Contractor that are required due to changed Project conditions, such as unavailability of product, regulatory changes, or unavailability of required warranty terms. 	J. SUBMITTALS			
 Substitutions for convenience: changes proposed by contractor or owner that are not required in order to meet other project requirements but may offer advantage to contractor or owner. When 'furnish', 'install', 'perform', or 'provide' is not used in connection with services, materials, or equipment in a context 	Assemble and submit for review shop drawings, material lists, manufacturer product literature for eq and items requiring coordination between contractors under this contract. Provide submittals in suffic demonstrate compliance with these Contract Documents and the design concept. Prior to transmittin the equipment submitted is mutually compatible with and suitable for the intended use will fit the ave-			
clearly requiring an obligation of Contractor, "provide" is implied. The terms "approved equal", "equivalent", or "equal" are used synonymously and shall mean "accepted by or acceptable to the Engineer as equivalent to the item or manufacturer specified". The term "approved" shall mean labeled, listed, certified, or	Transmit submittals as early as required to support the project schedule. Allow two weeks for Engine			
C. PRE-BID SITE VISIT	to/from mailing time via the Architect, plus a duplication of this time for resubmittals, if required. Only requested for resubmittal.			
Prior to submitting bid, visit the site of the proposed work and become fully informed as to the conditions under which the work is to be done. Failure to comply with this requirement shall not be considered sufficient justification to request or obtain extra compensation over and above the contract price.	Submittals shall contain the project name, applicable specification section, submittal data, equipmen as used on the drawings, and the Contractor's stamp. The stamp shall certify that the submittal has to Contractor, complies with the drawings and specifications, and is coordinated with other trades. Man literature shall include shop drawings, product data, performance sheets, samples, and other submitt division. Highlight mark list or indicate the materials, performance criteria, and accessories that are			
Existing conditions were taken from original drawings and/or site visits and may not reflect exact "as-built" conditions. Contractor shall verify existing conditions prior to submitting final bid. Coordinate new and demolition work with all other trades and existing conditions.	division. Highlight, mark, list, or indicate the materials, performance criteria, and accessories that are General product catalog data not specifically noted to be part of the specified product will be rejected review.			
D. MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP	copies of the work product of the Engineer. If the Contractor desires to use elements of such product "Electronic Drawing Files" for procedures to be used.			
Provide new material, equipment, and apparatus under this contract unless otherwise stated herein, of best quality normally used for the purpose in good commercial practice, and free from defects. Model numbers listed in the specifications or shown on the drawings are not necessarily intended to designate the required trim, written descriptions of the trim govern model numbers.	Separate submittals according to individual specification sections. Illegible submittals will be rejected review. Catalog data shall be properly bound, identified, indexed and tabbed in a 3-ring binder. Each shall be clearly marked and accessories indicated. Label the catalog data with the equipment identifing number as used on the drawings and include performance curves, capacities, sizes, weights, materi			
reference to establish quality, size, and capacity. All workmanship shall be of the finest possible by experienced mechanics of the proper trade. In general, provide the following quality grade(s) for all materials and equipment.	diagrams, electrical requirements and deviations from specified equipment or materials. Mark out in drawings will be returned without review if the above mentioned requirements are not met. Provide the quantity of submittals required by Division 01. If not indicated and hard-copy sets are pro of six (6) copies. Refer to Division 01 for acceptance of electronic submittals for this project. For elec			
Provide all hoists, scaffolds, staging, runways, tools, machinery, and equipment required for the performance of the electrical work. Store and maintain material and equipment in clean condition, and protected from weather, moisture, and physical damage.	Contractor shall submit the documents in accordance with the procedures specified in Division 01. C Architect and Engineer that the submittals have been posted. If electronic submittal procedures are in Contractor shall include the website, user name, and password information needed to access the su sent by e-mail, Contractor shall copy the designated representatives of the Architect and Engineer.			
Furnish only material and equipment that are listed, labeled, certified, or all three, by an NRTL whenever any listing or labeling exists for the types of material and equipment specified.	the Engineer review time as specified above in the construction schedule. Contractor shall submit or required to purchase the materials and/or equipment in the submittal.			
At a minimum, general work practices for electrical construction shall be in accordance with NECA 1 (latest edition), "Standard Practices for Good Workmanship in Electrical Construction". E. MANUFACTURERS	The checking and subsequent acceptance of submittals by the Engineer and/or Architect shall not re responsibility for deviations from the drawings and specifications, errors in dimensions, details, sizes quantities, omissions of components or fittings, coordination of electrical requirements, and not coord building conditions and adjacent work. Contractor shall request and secure written acceptance from Architect prior to implementing any deviation.			
In other articles where lists of manufacturers are introduced, subject to compliance with requirements, provide products by	K. ELECTRONIC DRAWING FILES			
Where a list is provided, manufacturers are listed alphabetically and not in accordance with any ranking or preference.	In preparation of shop drawings or record drawings, Contractor may, at his option, obtain electronic or DXF format on CD-ROM disk, DVD disk, flash drive, or direct download, as desired, from the Eng			
Where manufacturers are not listed, provide products subject to compliance with requirements from manufacturers that have been actively involved in manufacturing the specified product for no less than 5 years.	handling fee of \$200 for a drawing set up to 12 sheets and \$15 per sheet for each additional sheet. Of written authorization and Engineer for the necessary agreement form and to specify shipping method addition to payment, the written authorization from the Architect and release agreement form from the received before electronic drawing files will be sent.			
Coordinate all work with other divisions and trades so that various components of the systems are installed at the proper	L. RECORD DRAWINGS (AS-BUILT DRAWINGS)			
time, fit the available space, and allow proper service access to those items requiring maintenance. Components which are installed without regard to the above shall be relocated at no additional cost to the Owner. All roof penetrations, floor chasing and/or core drilling shall require the specific approval of the Landlord and Owner. All work	During progress of the work in this division, Contractor shall maintain an accurate record of all chang installation of the system. Upon completion of the work, accurately transfer all record information to t approved shop drawings. Insert one set into each copy of the manual described below.			
in common areas, shafts or other Landlord owned spaces must be reviewed and approved by the Landlord and Owner prior to commencement of the work. Contractor shall minimize any disruption and disturbances to other tenants. All work within other tenant spaces must be coordinated with and approved by the Landlord and Owner.	See Division 01 and General Conditions for additional information. M. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE INSTRUCTIONS			
Unless otherwise indicated, the General Contractor shall provide chases and openings in building construction required for installation of the systems specified herein. Contractor shall furnish the General Contractor with information where chases and openings are required. Contractor shall keep informed as to the work of other trades engaged in the construction of the project and shall execute work in a manner as to not interfere with or delay the work of other trades.	During the course of construction, collect and compile a complete brochure of equipment furnished a project. Include operational and maintenance instructions, manufacturer's catalog sheets, wiring diag approved submittals and shop drawings, warranties, and descriptive literature as furnished by the economic of the project name, date, Owner, Architect, Engineer, General (
Figured dimensions shall be taken in preference to scale dimensions. Contractor shall take his own measurements at the building, as variations may occur. Contractor shall be held responsible for errors that could have been avoided by proper	Sub-Contractor, and an index of contents. Submit three copies of literature bound in approved binders with index and tabs separating equipme			

Provide materials with trim that will properly fit the types of ceiling, wall, or floor finishes actually installed. Model numbers listed in the specifications or shown on the drawings are not intended to designate the required trim.

Make all offsets required to clear equipment, beams, and other structural members, and to facilitate concealing raceways in the manner anticipated in the design. Provide materials with trim that will fit properly the types of ceiling, wall, or floor finishes actually installed.

Coordinate all work with Architectural phasing drawings to properly stage transitions of work to provide power to existing, new and temporary loads. Monitor loads on distribution system to ensure shifting of loads does not overload electrical equipment.]

G. ORDINANCES AND CODES

checking and inspection.

Work performed under this contract shall, at a minimum, be in conformance with applicable national, state and local codes having jurisdiction. Equipment furnished and associated installation work performed under this contract shall be in strict compliance with current applicable codes adopted by the local AHJ, including any amendments and standards as set forth by the following:

1. National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 2. Underwriters Laboratories (UL)

At a time mutually agreed upon between the Owner and Contractor, provide the services of a factory trained and authorized representative to train Owner's designated personnel on the operation and maintenance of the equipment provided for this project.

Provide training to include, but not be limited to, an overview of the system and/or equipment as it relates to the facility as a whole; operation and maintenance procedures and schedules related to startup and shutdown, troubleshooting, servicing, preventive maintenance and appropriate operator intervention; and review of data included in the operation and maintenance manuals.

 American National Standards Institute (ANSI) American Society of Testing Materials (ASTM) Rules and regulations of public utilities and municipal departments affected by connection of services. 	Submit a certification letter to the Architect stating that the Owner's designated representative has been trained as specified herein. Letter shall include date, time, attendees and subject of training. The Contractor and the Owner's representative shall sign the certification letter indicating agreement that the training has been provided.	specified in following sections. Maintain the following on the project premises at all times: a true RMS reading voltmeter,
 Other national standards and codes where applicable. 	Schedule training with Owner with at least 7 days advance notice.	megohmmeter insulation resistance tester. Provide test data readings as requested or as
Where the contract documents exceed the requirements of the referenced codes, standards, etc., the contract documents shall take precedence. Where conflicts between various codes, ordinances, rules, and regulations exist, comply with the most stringent.	O. WARRANTIES	K. EQUIPMENT IDENTIFICATION
Promptly bring all conflicts observed between codes, ordinances, rules, regulations, referenced standards, and these documents to the attention of the Architect and Engineer for final resolution. Contractor will be held responsible for any violation of the law.	Warrant each system and each element thereof against all defects due to faulty workmanship, design, or material for a period of 12 months from date of Substantial Completion, unless specific items are noted to carry a longer warranty in these construction documents or manufacturer's standard warranty exceeds 12 months. Remedy all defects occurring within the warranty period(s) as stated in the General Conditions and Division 01.	Provide equipment identification nameplates on all switchboards, panelboards, electrical e doors, transformers, disconnect switches, enclosed circuit breakers, motor starters, feede distribution panelboards, and motor control centers.
Procure and pay for permits and licenses required for the accomplishment of the work herein described. Where required, obtain, pay for, and furnish certificates of inspection to Owner. Provide all safety lights, guards, and warning signs required for the performance of the work and for the safety of the public.	Warranties shall include labor and material, including travel expenses. Make repairs or replacements without any additional costs to the Owner, and to the satisfaction of the Owner, Architect, and Engineer.	 Nameplates: Engraved, contrasting color, three-layer, laminated plastic, indicating the name of the designated on the drawings and in the specifications:
Electrical equipment shall be located so that the code required minimum working clearance and dedicated electrical space are maintained. Existing equipment not meeting current code required clearance requirements may remain if allowed by the AHL Engineer and Owner.	Perform the remedial work promptly, upon written notice from the Engineer or Owner. Also warrant the following additional items:	Attachment method shall be acceptable to the manufacturers of the equipment to which the
H. PROTECTION OF EQUIPMENT AND MATERIALS	 All raceways are free from obstructions, holes, crushing, or breaks of any nature. All raceway seals are effective. 	Nameplate Color: Black background with white letters for Normal Power;
Store and protect from damage equipment and materials delivered to job site. For materials and equipment susceptible to changing weather conditions, dampness, or temperature variations, store inside in conditioned spaces. For materials and equipment not susceptible to these conditions, cover with waterproof, tear-resistant, heavy tarp or polyethylene plastic as required to protect from plaster, dirt, paint, water, or physical damage. Equipment and material damaged by construction	3. The entire electrical system is free from all short circuits and unwanted open circuits and grounds. At the time of Substantial Completion, deliver to the Owner all warranties, in writing and properly executed, including term limits for warranties extending beyond the one year period and any actions the Owner must take in order to maintain warranty status. Each warranty instrument shall be addressed to the Owner and state the commencement date and term.	 Letter height: sys-inch minimum. L. SYSTEM START UP Perform the following prior to starting up the electrical systems:
Activities shall be rejected, and Contractor shall furnish new equipment and material of a like kind at his own expense. Keep premises broom clean of foreign material created during work performed under this contract. Conduit, equipment, etc.	2 GENERAL MATERIALS AND INSTALLATION	 Check all components and devices and lubricate items accordingly. Tighten screws and bolts for connectors and terminals according to manufacturer's provided and the second second
shall have a neat and clean appearance at the termination of the work. Protect adjacent materials indicated to remain. For work specific to this Division, install and maintain dust and noise barriers to keep dirt, dust, and noise from being transmitted to adjacent areas. Remove protection and barriers after demolition	A. BUILDING OPERATION Comply with the schedule of operations as outlined in the architectural portions of this specification. Building shall be in operation during portral workday hours. Accomplish work requiring interruption of building operation at a time when the	 manufacturer's torque values are not indicated, use those specified in UL 486A and 3. After all systems have been inspected and adjusted, confirm all operating features respecifications and make final adjustments as necessary.
operations are complete. Plug or cap open ends of conduits while stored and installed during construction when not in use to prevent the entrance of debris into the systems.	building is not in operation and only with written approval of building Owner and/or tenant. Coordinate interruption of building operation with the Owner and/or tenant a minimum of seven (7) days in advance of work.	END OF SECTION 26
I. SUBSTITUTIONS	B. EXISTING EQUIPMENT REUSE AND REMOVAL Provide all demolition of existing electrical systems and new electrical system modifications required because of building	Division 26: BASIC ELECTRICAL MATERIALS AND METHODS
Materials, products, equipment, and systems described in the Bidding Documents establish a standard of required function, dimension, appearance and quality to be met by the proposed substitution. The base bid shall include only the products from manufacturers specifically named in the drawings and specifications. To request a substitution, request the Substitution	remodeling, as noted on the Drawings, or necessary for proper operation and new construction. Remove all abandoned cables and wiring and conduit above accessible ceilings and ventilation shafts.	1 RACEWAYS
Request Form from the Architect or Engineer. Complete and send the Substitution Request From for each material, product, equipment, or system that is proposed to be substituted. The burden of proof of the merit of the proposed substitution is upon the proposer.	Notify Architect, Engineer and Owner immediately of any dangerous conditions that exist on the job site, as they are discovered, before demolition, during selective demolition or before remodel work begins.	A. INETALLIC CONDOLLAND LOBING Electrical Metallic Tubing, Couplings, and Fittings (EMT): ANSI C80.3, UL 797. Only steel EMT is not allowed.
Unless stated otherwise in writing to the Engineer by the Contractor, Contractor warrants to the Engineer, Architect, and Owner the following:	Remove all existing wiring, light fixtures, exposed conduits, and other electrical installations not reused prior to substantial completion of the work.	EMT is not allowed. Flexible Metal Conduit (FMC): Zinc-coated steel or aluminum, UL 1. Reduced-wall FMC is
 Proposed substitution has been fully investigated and determined to meet or exceed the specified Work in all respects unless stated otherwise in the substitution request. Proposed substitution is consistent with the Contract Documents and will produce indicated results, including functional clearances, maintenance service, and sourcing of replacement parts. 	Existing raceways may be reused if their points of terminations are suitable; if they are clean inside with no evidence of rust or burrs; if free from cracks, flattened sections, or sharp bends; and, if suitably located to avoid conflicts with other trades or installations. Carefully "fish" all existing conduits reused under this contract to remove all debris and obstructions, and swab until all moisture is removed.	Liquidtight Flexible Metal Conduit (LFMC): Flexible steel conduit with PVC jacket, UL 360; Rigid Metal Conduit (RMC):
Proposed substitution has received necessary approvals of authorities having jurisdiction.	Cut, patch, and repair where required for new electrical installations, and patch and repair all surface damage resulting from this work. Cut flush with the floor and plug at both ends raceways stubbed above the floor and not used at substantial completion of the work.	 Hot-dip Galvanized Rigid Steel Conduit (GRS): ANSI C80.1, UL 6. Plastic-Coated IMC, RMC, and Fittings: NEMA RN 1, NRTL listed. Coating thickness of 0.
Same warranty will be furnished for proposed substitution as for specified Work.	Relocate all existing electrical systems required to be in operation at substantial completion of the contract, if required, as a	IMC and RMC Fittings: NEMA FB 1; compatible with conduit type and material, NRTL liste
If accepted substitution fails to perform as required, Contractor shall replace substitute material or system with that originally specified and bear costs incurred thereby.	Existing service entrance conductors and feeder conductors may be reused if all of the following conditions are met:	Manufacturers: AFC Cable, Alflex, Anamet Electrical, Electri-Flex, Indalex, Manhattan/CD Raceway, Tyco International, Western Tube and Conduit, or Wheatland Tube.
Coordination, installation and changes in the Work as necessary for accepted substitution will be complete in all respects. No substitutions will be considered unless the Substitution Request Form is completed and attached with the appropriate	 Conductor sizes meet or exceed the sizes specified on the drawings. Conductor insulation is in good or better condition. 	2 RACEWAY INSTALLATION
substitution documentation. No substitution will be considered prior to receipt of bids unless written request for approval to bid has been received by the Engineer at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the date for receipt of bids.	 Conductor insulation is the correct type for the conditions. COINCIDENTAL DAMAGE 	A. GENERAL RACEWAY INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS
If the proposed substitution is approved prior to receipt of bids, such approval will be stated in an addendum. Bidders shall not rely upon approvals made in any other way. Verbal approval will not be given. No substitutions will be considered after the contract is awarded unless specifically provided in the contract documents.	Avoid damaging streets, sidewalks, drives, paving, walls, finishes, and other facilities, including equipment, light fixtures, and devices that are existing to remain, new or reused. Repair all damage caused in the course of this Work at no extra cost to	Install raceways parallel and perpendicular to building lines.
J. SUBMITTALS	the Owner. Repair or replace any existing damaged or recalled electrical equipment, light fixtures, wiring devices and related circuitry and restore all electrical systems to proper working order. Repair materials shall match existing construction. Repair materials shall generally match existing construction. Repair work shall meet all requirements of the Owner, local authorities	Install raceways set in forms for concrete structure in such a manner that installation will n structure.
Assemble and submit for review shop drawings, material lists, manufacturer product literature for equipment to be furnished, and items requiring coordination between contractors under this contract. Provide submittals in sufficient detail so as to demonstrate compliance with those Contract Decuments and the design concent. Brief to transmitting submittals, varies that	having jurisdiction, and meet the satisfaction of the Architect. Repair work shall be thoroughly first class and be free from any defects.	Install raceways continuous between connections to outlets, boxes, and cabinets with a more than the equivalent of four 90 degree bonds between connections. Use more
the equipment submitted is mutually compatible with and suitable for the intended use, will fit the available space, and maintain manufacturer recommended service clearances. If the size of equipment furnished makes necessary any change in	D. CUTTING AND PATCHING	90-degree bends, unless approved by the Engineer in advance. Make other bends smoot raceway or flaking galvanizing or enamel. Radii of bends shall be as long as possible and
location or configuration, submit a shop drawing showing the proposed layout. Transmit submittals as early as required to support the project schedule. Allow two weeks for Engineer review time, plus to/from mailing time via the Architect, plus a duplication of this time for resubmittals, if required. Only resubmit those sections requested for resubmittal.	Conform to the requirements in Division 01. Cut walls, floors, ceilings, and other portions of the facility as required to install work under this division. Obtain permission of the Architect prior to cutting. Do not cut or disturb structural members without prior approval from the Architect. Cut holes as small as possible. Patch walls, floors, and other portions of the facility as required by work under this division. Patching shall match the original material and construction including fire ratings, if applicable. Repair and refinish areas disturbed by work to the condition of adjoining surfaces in a manner satisfactory to the	corresponding trade elbow. Conceal raceways from view unless noted or approved otherwise. Route all exposed non-flexible raceways tight to structure, parallel to building lines in strut
Submittals shall contain the project name, applicable specification section, submittal data, equipment identifications acronym as used on the drawings, and the Contractor's stamp. The stamp shall certify that the submittal has been checked by the		Install raceways plumb/level where exposed to view.
Contractor, complies with the drawings and specifications, and is coordinated with other trades. Manufacturer product literature shall include shop drawings, product data, performance sheets, samples, and other submittals required by this division. Highlight, mark, list, or indicate the materials, performance criteria, and accessories that are being proposed. General product catalog data not specifically noted to be part of the specified product will be rejected and returned without review.	Coordinate without delay all roughing-in with other divisions. Conceal all conduit and raceways except in unfinished areas and where otherwise indicated on the drawings. F. SUPPORT SYSTEMS	the building structure. Hang single raceways for feeders with malleable split ring hangers from inserts spaced not over 10 feet apart in construction above. Clamp groups of horizor channels that are suspended from inserts spaced not over 10 feet apart in construction at raceways to structural steel members attached to structure. Install cable clamps for suppor required. Add raceway supports within 12 inches of all bends, on both sides of the bends.
Submittals and shop drawings shall not contain firm name, logo, the seal, or signature of the Engineer. They shall not be copies of the work product of the Engineer. If the Contractor desires to use elements of such product, refer to paragraph "Electronic Drawing Files" for procedures to be used.	Steel Slotted Support Systems (Slotted Channel): Comply with MFMA-3, factory-fabricated components for field assembly; 12-gauge, 1-5/8-inch by 1-5/8-inch.	suspended ceiling components. Ream raceway ends, thoroughly clean raceways before installation, and keep clean after and boxes as required to keep raceways clean during construction and fish all raceways o
Separate submittals according to individual specification sections. Illegible submittals will be rejected and returned without review. Catalog data shall be properly bound, identified, indexed and tabbed in a 3-ring binder. Each item or model number	Finishes:	conductor wires. Provide raceways of ample size for pulling of wire, not smaller than code 1/2-inch in size, unless indicated otherwise on Drawings. Homeruns containing more than than 3/4-inch in size.
shall be clearly marked and accessories indicated. Label the catalog data with the equipment identification acronym or number as used on the drawings and include performance curves, capacities, sizes, weights, materials, finishes, wiring diagrams, electrical requirements and deviations from specified equipment or materials. Mark out inapplicable items. Shop	Aluminum Slotted Support Systems (Slotted Channel): Comply with MFMA-3, Type 6063-T6, per ASTM B221; factory-fabricated components for field assembly: 12-auge. 1-5/8-inch by 1-5/8-inch.	Protect all raceway installations against damage during construction. Repair all raceways roughing-in to meet Engineer's approval without additional cost to the Owner.
drawings will be returned without review if the above mentioned requirements are not met. Provide the quantity of submittals required by Division 01. If not indicated and hard-copy sets are provided, submit a minimum	Manufacturers: Cooper B-Line, ERICO International, Hilti, Power-Strut, Thomas and Betts, or Unistrut.	Align and install true and plumb all raceway terminations at panelboards, switchboards, m boxes.
of six (6) copies. Refer to Division 01 for acceptance of electronic submittals for this project. For electronic submittals, Contractor shall submit the documents in accordance with the procedures specified in Division 01. Contractor shall notify the Architect and Engineer that the submittals have been posted. If electronic submittal procedures are not defined in Division 01,	Field Fabrication: Where field cutting of standard lengths of channel are required, make cuts straight and perpendicular to manufactured	Install approved expansion/deflection fittings where raceways pass through (if embedded) joints, and when using RNC or RAC in exposed environments in accordance with NFPA 7
Contractor shall include the website, user name, and password information needed to access the submittals. For submittals sent by e-mail, Contractor shall copy the designated representatives of the Architect and Engineer. Contractor shall allow for the Engineer review time as specified above in the construction schedule. Contractor shall submit only the documents	surfaces. For field-cut or damaged surfaces of coated channels, dress cut ends, damaged surfaces, or both, with an abrasive material	properties of RNC or RAC. Install a pull wire in each empty raceway that is left for installation of conductors or cables
required to purchase the materials and/or equipment in the submittal. The checking and subsequent acceptance of submittals by the Engineer and/or Architect shall not relieve the Contractor from responsibility for deviations from the drawings and specifications, errors in dimensions, details, sizes of equipment, or	(e.g., file, grinding stone, or similar) and cleanser to remove oils, rust, sharp edges, and shards. For channel with a factory-applied coating, re-finish cut edges with a coating compatible with the factory finish and as	each end of pull wire. Terminate all conduit stub-ups with nvlon bushings.
quantities, omissions of components or fittings, coordination of electrical requirements, and not coordinating items with actual building conditions and adjacent work. Contractor shall request and secure written acceptance from the Engineer and Architect prior to implementing any deviation.	applicable).	Make all joints and connections in a manner that will ensure mechanical strength and elec
K. ELECTRONIC DRAWING FILES	Coordinate sleeve selection and application with selection and application of fire-stopping specified in Division 07 section	Coordinate raceway routing and installation with other trades prior to rough-in and installa B. ABOVE GROUND RACEWAY USE:
In preparation of shop drawings or record drawings, Contractor may, at his option, obtain electronic drawing files in AutoCAD or DXF format on CD-ROM disk, DVD disk, flash drive, or direct download, as desired, from the Engineer for a shipping and	Roofs:	Install all circular raceways concealed above suspended ceilings or concealed in walls or where attentics indicated. Provide CPS for all conduits exposed to weather or other base
written authorization and Engineer for the necessary agreement form and to specify shipping method and drawing format. In addition to payment, the written authorization from the Architect and release agreement form from the Engineer must be	 Coordinate all roof penetrations with Engineer, Owner, and as applicable, the roofing contractor providing a roof warranty. 	Unless noted otherwise, all other raceway may be EMT where approved by local code. Us
L. RECORD DRAWINGS (AS-BUILT DRAWINGS)	 Keep all raceway penetrations within mechanical equipment curbs wherever possible. Coordinate with Division 01. Flash and counterflash all openings through roof, and/or provide pre-fabricated molded seals compatible with the roof construction installed, or as required by the Engineer, Owner, or roofing contractor. All roof penetrations shall be 	are not allowed.
During progress of the work in this division, Contractor shall maintain an accurate record of all changes made during the installation of the system. Upon completion of the work, accurately transfer all record information to three identical sets of the	leaktight at the termination of the work and shall not void any new or existing roof warranties. Walls and Floors:	C. EQUIPMENT CONNECTIONS Use FMC for final connection to each motor, transformer, and any device that would other
approved shop drawings. Insert one set into each copy of the manual described below. See Division 01 and General Conditions for additional information.	 Steel Pipe Sleeves for Raceways and Cables: ASTM A53/A53M, Type E, Grade B, Schedule 40, galvanized steel, plain ends, and drip rings. 	noise. Use LFMC where exposed to liquids, vapors, or sunlight. Provide all FMC and LFM conductor.
M. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE INSTRUCTIONS	 Cast-Iron Pipe Sleeves for Raceways and Cables: Cast or fabricated "wall pipe," equivalent to ductile-iron pressure pipe, with plain ends and integral waterstop, unless otherwise indicated. Sleeves for Rectangular Openings: Calvanized sheet steel with minimum 0.052 inch thickness and of length to suit 	Use only metal raceways for all power wiring from the output of variable frequency drives D BUSHINGS AND LOCKNUTS
During the course of construction, collect and compile a complete brochure of equipment furnished and installed on this project. Include operational and maintenance instructions, manufacturer's catalog sheets, wiring diagrams, parts lists,	application.	Rigidly terminate conduits entering sheet metal enclosures to the enclosure with a bushing
approved submittals and shop drawings, warranties, and descriptive literature as furnished by the equipment manufacturer. Include an inside cover sheet that lists the project name, date, Owner, Architect, Engineer, General Contractor, Sub-Contractor, and an index of contents.	H. FIRESTOPPING Sealants and accessories shall have fire-resistance ratings indicated, as established by testing identical assemblies in	locknut or an approved hub on the outside. Conduit shall enter the enclosure squarely. Provide bushings and locknuts made of galvanized malleable iron with sharp, clean-cut th
Submit three copies of literature bound in approved binders with index and tabs separating equipment types to the Architect, for Engineer's review, at the termination of the work Paper clins, staples, rubber bands, loose-leaf binding, and mailing	accordance with UL 2079 or ASTM E 814, or other NRTL acceptable to AHJ.	Where EMT enters a box, provide approved EMT compression connectors.
envelopes are not considered approved binders. Final approval of systems installed under this contract shall be withheld until this equipment brochure is received and deemed complete by the Architect and Engineer. Instruct workmen to save required literature shipped with the equipment itself for inclusion in this brochure.	Through and Membrane Penetration Firestopping Systems Product Schedule: Provide UL listing, location, wall or floor rating, and installation drawing for each penetration fire stop system	Use insulated, grounding, or combination bushings wherever connection is subject to vibra required by NFPA 70.
Include Record Drawings as described above.	Where project conditions require modification to qualified testing and inspecting agency's illustrations for a particular	Provide nylon bushings for all communications and low voltage wiring conduits and sleeve
Refer to Division 01 for acceptance of electronic manuals for this project. For electronic manuals, refer to paragraph "Submittals" for requirements.	fire-protection engineer as an engineering judgment or equivalent fire-resistance-rated assembly. Include qualifications data for testing agency.	
N. TRAINING	I. EQUIPMENT FURNISHED BY OTHERS	Annealed (soft) copper complying with ICEA S-95-658/NEMA WC70 and UL standards 44

Provide necessary equipment and accessories that are not provided by the equipment supplier or Owner to complete installation of equipment furnished by others in locations as indicated on the drawings, specified herein, or both. Equipment and accessories not provided by the equipment supplier may include, but not be limited to, flexible cords and plugs as

J. SYSTEM TESTING AND ADJUSTING

prior to rough-in and service installations.

Adjust, align, and test all electrical equipment on this project provided under this division and all electrical equipment furnished by others for installation or wiring under this division for proper operation.

Contractor shall be responsible for correct rough-in dimensions, and verify them with Architect and/or equipment supplier

required for proper operation of the complete system, in accordance with the manufacturers' instructions.

Test all systems and equipment according to the requirements in NETA ATS (latest edition) and all additional requirements specified in following sections.	All Branch Circuit Wiring: Not smaller than No. 12 AWG. If no conductor size is indicated on the Drawings for a branch circuit, provide conductors and conduit sized per NFPA 70 and based on the indicated branch circuit overcurrent protective device (OCPD) rating and number of poles. Where no circuit size (i.e., conductors and OCPD) is indicated on the drawings for a	22 COM 001
Maintain the following on the project premises at all times: a true RMS reading voltmeter, a true RMS reading ammeter, and a megohmmeter insulation resistance tester. Provide test data readings as requested or as required by the Engineer.	branch circuit, provide three No. 12 AWG conductors, in 3/4-inch raceway, and a 20A circuit breaker. Control Wiring: Stranded copper conductors, 600V insulation, of the proper type, size, and number as required to accomplish	RSC S 14 13.742.5 IEERS.(ER: E-3
K. EQUIPMENT IDENTIFICATION	specified function. Minimum size: No. 14 AWG, unless noted otherwise.	LECTING RIVE, S KS 662 FAX 91 NENGIN NENGIN
Provide equipment identification nameplates on all switchboards, panelboards, electrical equipment enclosures, access doors, transformers, disconnect switches, enclosed circuit breakers, motor starters, feeder devices in switchboards, distribution panelboards, and meter central centers	Special Purpose Conductors And Cables, Such As Low Voltage Control And Shielded Instrument Wiring: As recommended by the system equipment manufacturer unless indicated otherwise	21500 2.5000 2.5000 2.5000 2.5000 2.5000 2.5000 2.5000 2.5000
Nameplates:	Copper Conductor Manufacturers: Advance Wire and Cable, AFC Cable, Alan Wire, Alflex, American Insulated Wire, Encore	345 LEP 913.745 W.HEN
 Engraved, contrasting color, three-layer, laminated plastic, indicating the name of the equipment, load, or circuit as designated on the drawings and in the specifications: 	Connections: Apply a zinc based anti_oxidizing compound to connections. Do not use terminals on wiring devices to feed	¥ H ≈
Attachment method shall be acceptable to the manufacturers of the equipment to which the nameplates are being applied.	through to the next device. B. CONDUCTORS AND CABLES INSTALLATION	
Nameplate Color:	Install all wiring in approved raceway and enclosures, except where specified or indicated for low-voltage wiring, where	
 Letter height: 3/8-inch minimum. 	Install all conductors and cables in raceways continuous without taps or splices. Splice or tap only in approved boxes and	
L. SYSTEM START UP Perform the following prior to starting up the electrical systems:	enclosures with approved solderless connectors, or crimp connectors and terminal blocks for control wiring, and keep to the minimum required. Insulate all splices, taps, and joints as required by codes.	
 Check all components and devices and lubricate items accordingly. Tighten screws and bolts for connectors and terminals according to manufacturer's published torque-tightening values. If 	All materials used to terminate, splice, or tap conductors: designed for, properly sized for, and NRTL listed for the specific application and conductors involved, and installed in strict accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations, using the manufacturer's recommended tools.	
 and botts for connectors and command according to manufacturer's published torque-tightening values. If manufacturer's torque values are not indicated, use those specified in UL 486A and UL 486B. After all systems have been inspected and adjusted, confirm all operating features required by the drawings and the systems have been inspected and adjusted. 	Where wiring is indicated as installed, but the connection is indicated "FUTURE" or "BY OTHER DIVISION, TRADES, OR	
specifications and make final adjustments as necessary.	In general, the direction of branch circuit "home run" routing is indicated on the drawings, complete with circuit numbers and	
END OF SECTION 26	panelboard designation. Continue all such "nome run" wiring to the designated panelboard, as though "circuit runs" were indicated in their entirety.	
Division 26: BASIC ELECTRICAL MATERIALS AND METHODS	The number of conductors in a specific raceway "home run" is indicated with cross lines (tick marks) on each "circuit run" on the drawings.	
1 RACEWAYS	Common or shared neutrals are not allowed unless shown on the drawings to be used or specifically noted to be allowed. Where multi-wire branch circuits (i.e., shared neutral) are allowed, they shall be provided with a means that will	
A. METALLIC CONDUIT AND TUBING Electrical Metallic Tubing, Couplings, and Fittings (EMT); ANSI C80.3, UL 797, Only steel products allowed, Reduced wall	simultaneously disconnect all ungrounded conductors at the point the branch circuit originates. Multi-pole breakers or 3 single-pole breakers with a handle tie are two examples.	
EMT is not allowed.	When multiple home runs are combined into a single raceway such that the number of conductors exceeds four (conductor count is made up of any combination of phase and neutral conductors), the following restrictions apply, which are in addition	
Liquidtight Flexible Metal Conduit (LFMC): Flexible steel conduit with PVC jacket, UL 360; fittings: NEMA FB 1.	to those in NEPA 70: Normal or Non-Essential circuits:	
Rigid Metal Conduit (RMC):	 Maximum of 16 conductors in a single raceway. For up to eight conductors in a raceway, minimum raceway size: 3/4-inch. For greater than eight conductors, minimum raceway size: 1-inch. Do not install any other type of circuit in this 	
 Hot-dip Galvanized Rigid Steel Conduit (GRS): ANSI C80.1, UL 6. Plastic-Coated IMC, RMC, and Fittings: NEMA RN 1, NRTL listed, Coating thickness of 0.04 inches minimum. 	raceway. 2. Minimum wire size for all conductors in this raceway: No. 10 AWG.	U U
IMC and RMC Fittings: NEMA FB 1; compatible with conduit type and material, NRTL listed.	GFCI circuits:	Ā
Manufacturers: AFC Cable, Alflex, Anamet Electrical, Electri-Flex, Indalex, Manhattan/CDT/Cole-Flex, O-Z/Gedney, Republic Raceway, Tyco International, Western Tube and Conduit, or Wheatland Tube.	1. Do not use multi-conductor circuits, with a shared neutral, for any GFCI circuit breaker or receptacle circuit.	L L
2 RACEWAY INSTALLATION	For branch circuits fed from GFCI circuit breakers, limit the one-way conductor length to 100 feet between the panelboard and the most remote receptacle or load on the GFCI circuit.	
A. GENERAL RACEWAY INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS	Properly identify all terminal blocks and wire terminals for control wiring with vinyl stick-on markers or equivalent. Provide Engineer with a list of proposed identifying numbers for review prior to installing markers.	ERS ST ST
Install raceways parallel and perpendicular to building lines.	Provide an equipment-grounding conductor or bonding jumper, as applicable, in all feeders and branch circuits, sized in accordance with NFPA 70 Tables 250.66 or 250.122, as applicable, unless indicated as larger on the drawings.	Z021
depressions, pipes, ducts, reinforcing steel, and other immovable obstacles.	Wiring shall have insulation of the proper color to match color code system in the table below unless there is a color system currently in use by the facility, utility, or enforced by local amendments, in which case the colors are to match the	
structure.	requirements set forth by the AHJ, utility or facility management. In larger sizes where properly colored insulation is not available, use vinyl plastic electrical tape of the appropriate color around each conductor at all termination points, junctions, and null bases	E:06
Install raceways continuous between connections to outlets, boxes, and cabinets with a minimum possible number of bends and not more than the equivalent of four 90-degree bends between connections. Use manufactured elbows for all 45- and 90-degree bends, unless approved by the Engineer in advance. Make other bends smooth, even and without flattening	System Voltage:	
raceway or flaking galvanizing or enamel. Radii of bends shall be as long as possible and never shorter than the corresponding trade elbow.	240V and under, including 208Y/120, 120/240, 120/208, and 240D/120 systems:	
Conceal raceways from view unless noted or approved otherwise.	 Phase A: Black. Phase B: Red Phase C: Blue. 	
Install raceways plumb/level where exposed to view.	 Neutral: White. Equipment Ground: Green. Isolated Ground: Green with vellow stripe 	
Securely fasten raceways in place with approved straps, hangers, and steel supports as required. Attach raceway supports to the building structure. Hang single raceways for feeders with malleable split ring hangers with rod and turnbuckle suspension from inserts spaced not over 10 feet apart in construction above. Clamp groups of horizontal feeder raceways to steel	480V and 480Y/277V [600V and 347Y/120V]	
channels that are suspended from inserts spaced not over 10 feet apart in construction above. Securely clamp vertical feeder raceways to structural steel members attached to structure. Install cable clamps for support of vertical feeders where required Add raceway supports within 12 inches of all bends, on both sides of the bends. Do not support raceways from	 Phase A: Brown Phase B: Orange 	L R
suspended ceiling components.	 Phase C: Yellow Neutral: Gray Equipment ground: green. 	
and boxes as required to keep raceways clean during construction and fish all raceways clear of obstructions before pulling conductor wires. Provide raceways of ample size for pulling of wire, not smaller than code requirements and not less than	C. MC CABLE	
1/2-inch in size, unless indicated otherwise on Drawings. Homeruns containing more than one branch circuit shall not be less than 3/4-inch in size.	Metal-clad cable (MC Cable): 600V, unjacketed; UL Standard 83, 1569, and 1685; NFPA 70 Article 330; aluminum or galvanized steel interlocked armor; THHN- or XHHW-insulated conductors; color code: ICEA Method 1, with green insulated	\geq
Protect all raceway installations against damage during construction. Repair all raceways damaged or moved out of line after roughing-in to meet Engineer's approval without additional cost to the Owner.	grounding conductor; listed for use in UL 1, 2, and 3 hour through-penetration firestop systems. MC Cable manufacturers: AFC Cable Systems, Encore Wire Corporation, Kaf-Tech, or Southwire.	
Align and install true and plumb all raceway terminations at panelboards, switchboards, motor control equipment, and junction boxes.	D. APPLICATIONS OF MC CABLE	
Install approved expansion/deflection fittings where raceways pass through (if embedded) or across (if exposed) expansion joints, and when using RNC or RAC in exposed environments in accordance with NFPA 70 and expansion/contraction	E. MC CABLE INSTALLATION	
properties of RNC or RAC.	Secure and support cable per NFPA 70 Article 330. Secure cable within 12 inches of every box or fitting. Securing and supporting intervals shall not exceed six feet. Maintain consistent spacing to avoid derating due to bundling per NFPA 70	
Use polypropylene or monofilament plastic line with not less than 200-lb tensile strength. Leave at least 24 inches of slack at each end of pull wire.	Section 310.15. Utilize steel cable hangers, Arlington SMC series or equivalent, to support wherever possible so cables can be routed in a neat and workmanship like manner.	
Terminate all conduit stub-ups with nylon bushings.	4 JUNCTION BOXES, PULL BOXES, CABINETS, AND WIREWAYS	
Coordinate raceway routing and installation with other trades prior to rough-in and installation.	Provide junction boxes, pull boxes, cabinets, and wireways wherever necessary for proper installation of various electrical systems according to NFPA 70 and where indicated on the drawings. Size as required for the specific function or as required by NEPA 70, whichever is larger. Construction shall be of a NEMA design suitable for the environment installed	
B. ABOVE GROUND RACEWAY USE:	Junction boxes installed behind wall cases and in or on other store fixtures, except where otherwise specified, shall be 4	
Install all circular raceways concealed above suspended ceilings or concealed in walls or floors wherever possible except where otherwise indicated. Provide GRS for all conduits exposed to weather or other hazardous conditions.	Horizontally mount junction boxes under center fixtures (and cases), handy boxes or 4-inch square boxes with tops of boxes	
Unless noted otherwise, all other raceway may be EMT where approved by local code. Use compression type fittings for EMT, with all fittings NRTL listed for the environment in which they are used. Unless noted otherwise, set-screw type fittings	not more than 3-1/2 inches above the floor. Size junction boxes to adequately contain all required conductors and splices.	
are not allowed. C. EQUIPMENT CONNECTIONS	All outlets including light fixture, switch, receptacle, and similar outlets: galvanized steel knockout boxes, suitable in design to	
Use FMC for final connection to each motor, transformer, and any device that would otherwise transmit motion, vibration, or noise. Use LEMC where exposed to liquids, vapors, or suplight, Provide all EMC and LEMC with an insulated bonding	the purpose they serve and the space they occupy. Size as required for the specific function or as required by NFPA 70, whichever is larger. Set all outlet boxes in walls, columns, floors, or ceilings so they are flush with the finished surface, accurately set, and rigidly secured in position. Provide plaster rings, extension rings and/or masonry rings as required for	
conductor.	flush mounting. Provide approved cast outlet boxes with hubs and weatherproof covers in all areas subject to damp, wet, or harsh conditions.	
 BUSHINGS AND LOCKNUTS 	Manufacturers: Appleton, Cooper, Erikson Electrical, Hoffman, Killark Electric, O-Z/Gedney, Raco, Robroy Industries, Scott Fetzer, Spring City Electrical, Thomas and Betts, Walker Systems, or Woodhead.	TIS A. OL
Rigidly terminate conduits entering sheet metal enclosures to the enclosure with a bushing and locknut on the inside and a	6 ELECTRICAL SERVICE AND GROUNDING	
Provide bushings and locknuts made of galvanized malleable iron with sharp, clean-cut threads.	A. ELECTRICAL SERVICE	20555
Where EMT enters a box, provide approved EMT compression connectors.	See drawings for type, size, voltage, phase, and other requirements. Provide, or arrange with the serving utility for installation to provide, a recording voltmeter at the service point, on the first dav	TANSAS MULTING
Use insulated, grounding, or combination bushings wherever connection is subject to vibration and/or moisture, or when required by NFPA 70.	the facility is open for business, for a 24-hour voltage test. If voltage and regulation are not within acceptable limits, arrange with the utility for proper voltage. Submit to the Owner a report of maximum and minimum voltage and a copy of the recording voltmeter chart.	
Provide nylon bushings for all communications and low voltage wiring conduits and sleeves, unless noted otherwise.	B. GROUNDING	00/24/2021
A. GENERAL CONDUCTOR AND CABLES	Permanently and effectively ground and bond the electrical installation in a thorough and efficient manner, and in conformance, at a minimum, with NFPA 70, or these documents, where they exceed code requirements. Use bare or	
Annealed (soft) copper complying with ICEA S-95-658/NEMA WC70 and UL standards 44 or 83 as applicable.	insulated conductors as specified herein, and other materials indicated on the Drawings.	ELECTRICAL SPECIFICATIONS
Conductor Insulation Types: 90-degree C-rated, Type THHN/THWN-2 or XHHW-2 complying with ICEA S-95-658/NEMA WC70.		
Sizes of conductors and cables indicated or specified are in American Wire Gage (AWG - Brown and Sharpe).		A-014311
All feeder and branch circuit conductors No. 8 AWG and larger: Stranded. All conductors, No. 10 AWG and smaller: Solid copper.		E0.1
		100% BID

VEF 0

AND PERMIT





CURTIS A. OLDS

GENERAL DEMOLITION NOTES:

- 1. PRIOR TO SUBMITTING BID, VISIT THE JOB SITE AND BECOME FULLY ACQUAINTED WITH THE EXISTING CONDITIONS OF THE PROJECT. REVIEW THE GENERAL NOTES, SPECIFICATIONS AND OTHER DRAWINGS FOR ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS WHICH MAY NOT BE SPECIFICALLY CALLED OUT IN THIS PORTION OF THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS. NOTIFY ENGINEER AND/OR OWNER OF CONFLICTS OR DISCREPANCIES PRIOR TO SUBMISSION OF BID.
- 2. EXISTING CONDITIONS WERE TAKEN FROM ORIGINAL DRAWINGS AND SITE VISITS AND MAY NOT REFLECT EXACT "AS-BUILT" CONDITIONS. FIELD VERIFY EXISTING CONDITIONS PRIOR TO SUBMITTING FINAL BIDS. COORDINATE NEW WORK AND DEMOLITION WITH OTHER DISCIPLINES AND EXISTING CONDITIONS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.
- 3. OWNER RETAINS RIGHTS OF SALVAGE FOR EQUIPMENT AND FIXTURES TO BE REMOVED. COORDINATE WITH THE OWNER THE EQUIPMENT AND FIXTURES TO BE SALVAGED AND THE LOCATION FOR STORAGE. AVOID DAMAGE TO EQUIPMENT, FIXTURES AND DEVICES DURING DEMOLITION WORK AND DURING TRANSPORT TO OWNER'S DESIGNATED STORAGE LOCATION.
- 4. REMOVE ITEMS SHOWN HEAVY LINED AND/OR CROSSHATCHED AND/OR NOTED TO BE REMOVED.
- 5. AVOID DAMAGING EXISTING SURFACES AND EQUIPMENT TO REMAIN FOR NEW INSTALLATION. REPAIR ANY DAMAGE CAUSED DURING WORK AT NO EXTRA COST TO THE OWNER.
- 6. SEAL ALL PENETRATIONS THROUGH FLOORS, WALLS, CEILINGS AND ROOFS WHERE PLUMBING COMPONENTS ARE REMOVED AND WHERE THE EXISTING PENETRATION IS NOT USED FOR THE NEW INSTALLATION. REPAIR SURFACES TO MATCH ADJACENT AREAS.
- 7. INSTALL PERMANENT CAPS WHERE PIPING IS REMOVED AND THE EXISTING TAPS ARE NOT USED FOR THE NEW INSTALLATION. INSTALL TEMPORARY CAPS WHERE PIPING IS REMOVED AND THE EXISTING TAPS WILL BE USED FOR THE NEW INSTALLATION TO PROTECT THE INTERIOR SURFACES UNTIL NEW PIPING IS INSTALLED.
- 8. REMOVE PIPE HANGERS, PIPE SUPPORTS AND EQUIPMENT SUPPORTS WHERE PIPING OR EQUIPMENT IS REMOVED AND THE EXISTING HANGERS AND SUPPORTS ARE NOT USED FOR THE NEW INSTALLATION.
- 9. VERIFY THAT EXISTING EQUIPMENT TO REMAIN IS OPERATING PROPERLY. NOTIFY THE ENGINEER AND/OR OWNER OF ANY DAMAGED AND/OR MALFUNCTIONING COMPONENTS. 10. WHERE SHUTDOWN OF EXISTING ACTIVE PIPING SYSTEMS IS REQUIRED DURING
- DEMOLITION PHASE OF WORK IN PREPARATION FOR NEW TIE-IN PHASE OF WORK, COORDINATE WITH THE OWNER AND MINIMIZE DOWNTIME. VERIFY EXISTING SYSTEMS, EQUIPMENT, AND COMPONENTS WILL BE PROVIDED WITH BACKUP SERVICE WHERE REQUIRED. NOTIFY OWNER A MINIMUM OF SEVEN (7) DAYS PRIOR TO INTERRUPTION OF SERVICE.

<u>ROVIDE A CONSTRUCTION RECORD SET OF "AS-BUILT" DOCUMENTS TO THE OWNER'S ONSTRUCTION MANAGER REFLECTING ANY VARIANCES OF INSTALLED PIPING</u>	PLUMBING S	MBOLS					300 300 5. CON
CATIONS OR EQUIPMENT CONTRARY TO THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS, REFER TO PECIFICATIONS.	THIS IS A MASTER LEGEND AND NOT AL	L SYMBOLS OR ABBREVIATIONS ARE USE	D. PIPING SYMBC	DLS	PIPING LINETYPES	V2.03	E R S E R S E R S E R S 66214 X 913.742 GINEERS GINEERS MBER: E-
WANNES ARE DAGEMAINTING BU, VARI THE GARLENA, NOTES, SPECTHOLTING, AND MINITORS OF THE WALKET, REVIEW THE GARLENA, NOTES, SPECTHOLTING, AND MINITORS OF THE WALKET, REVIEW THE GARLENA, NOTES, SPECTHOLTING, AND MINITORS OF THE WALKET, REVIEW THE GARLENA, NOTES, SPECTHOLTING, AND MINITORS OF THE WALKET, REVIEW THE GARLENA, NOTES, SPECTHOLTING, AND MINITORS OF ANY COMPLICTS ON DISCREPANCIES PROR TO SUBMISSION OF BU. SUBMISSION OF BU. SUBMISSION OF BU. SUBMISSION OF BU. SUBMISSION OF BU. MINITORS COMPLICTS OF DISCREPANCIES PROR TO SUBMISSION OF BU. MINITORS OF ANY COMPLICTS OF DISCREPANCIES PROR TO SUBMISSION OF BU. SUBMISSION OF BU. SUBMISSION OF BU. MINITORS COMPLICTS OF DISCREPANCIES PROR TO SUBMISSION OF BU. MINITORS OF THE OWNER COMPLICITION MANGER A COMPLICATION MINITORS OF THE OWNER COMPLICITION MANGER A COMPLICATION MINITORS OF THE OWNER COMPLICITION MANGER A COMPLICATION MINITORS OF THE OWNER COMPLICITION AND ALSO MEET AL MINITORS OF THE OWNER COMPLICITION OF THE MINITOR BU. MINITORS OF THE OWNER COMPLICITION OF AN ALSO MEET AL MINITORS OF THE OWNER COMPLICITION OF AN ALSO MEET AL MINITORS OF THE COMPLICATION OF OWNER TO COMPLICATION MINITORS OF THE ALL MINITOR OF THE THE THE THE COMPLICATION MINITORS OF THE ALL MINITOR OF THE MINITOR OF ALMONDALING A MINITOR MINITORS OF MINITOR OF COMPLICATION OF AL ADON OF AL ADON MINITORS OF MINITOR OF THE THEORY OF THE MINITOR OF MINITORY MINITORS OF MINITAL VALUES AND ADDR THE MINITORY OF ANOTHER MINITORS OF MINITAL WALKER AND ADDR THE MINITORY MINITORY OF ALL MINITORY OF MINITORY OF MINITORY MINITORY OF MINITAL MINITORY MINITORY OF MINITAL MINITORY OF MINITORY MINITORY OF MINITORY MINITORY OF MINITAL MINITORY OF MINITORY MINITORY OF MINITORY MINITORY OF MINITORY MINITORY OF MINITORY MINITORY MINITORY OF MINITAL MINITORY MIN	SIANDARD HEIGHT (RIM) HOSE BIBB (CENTERLINE) ICE MAKER OUTLET BOX (CENTER OF BOX) JANITOR'S SINK FAUCET FITTINGS (CENTERLIN LAVATORY OR SINK STANDARD HEIGHT (RIM) ADA ACCESSIBLE (RIM) CHILD HEIGHT (RIM) NON FREEZE WALL HYDRANT (AFG TO CENTERLINE) SHOWER HEAD MEN (CENTERLINE) WOMEN (CENTERLINE) SHOWER VALVE STANDARD HEIGHT (CENTERLINE) SURGEON'S SCRUB-UP SINK (FRONT RIM) TUB VALVE STANDARD HEIGHT (CENTERLINE) SURGEON'S SCRUB-UP SINK (FRONT RIM) TUB VALVE STANDARD HEIGHT (RIM) ADA ACCESSIBLE (RIM) CHILD HEIGHT (RIM) ADA ACCESSIBLE (RIM) CHILD HEIGHT (RIM) ADA ACCESSIBLE (RIM) WASHING MACHINE OUTLET BOX (RIM) WATER CLOSET STANDARD HEIGHT (RIM) ADA ACCESSIBLE (POP OF SEAT) CHILD HEIGHT (RIM) ADA ACCESSIBLE (FOP OF SEAT) CHILD HEIGHT (RIM) ADA ACCESSIBLE (FOP OT) ADA ACCESSIBLE (FOP	11 S 30" 36" 34" 24" 31" 34" 34" 24" 31" 34" 34" 24" 31" 34" 34" 24" 35" CENTER BETWEEN GRAB BAR AND TUB RIM 24" 12" 15" 12" 15" 12" 15" 12" 10" 14" 42" 14" 42" 15" 17" TO 16" 17" TO 17" TO 19" 10" 11" 41" 33" 30" 30" VICHEIGHTS SHOWN ABOVE UNO IN THE IN THE CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS. FINAL UNTING HEIGHTS LISTO ADDUE OF LLOUT SIGNATION (CONTRACTOR FURNISHED AND UMBING FIXTURE OR EQUIPMENT 10 1000 BTU PER HOUR MH 1000 BTU PER HOUR MIN MINMIMM NC NORMALLY COSED NO NORMALLY CORED NO NORMALLY CORED NO NORORALLY CORED	PIPING SYMBO PIPING SYMBO PI	LS OXYGEN OUTLET MIROUS OXIDE OUTLET MEDICAL VACUUM INLET FLOOR DRAIN (FD), SIZE & TYPE FLOOR DRAIN (FD), SIZE & TYPE BALL VALVE CONTROL VALVE SHITOFY VALVE CHECK VALVE BALL VALVE CONTROL VALVE SHATOFY VALVE CHECK VALVE SALANCING VALVE WITH PRESSURE PORTS WATER METER STRAINER STRAINER REDUCING VALVE SOLENOID VALVE PRESSURE REDUCING VALVE GAS PRESSURE REGULATOR THERMOMETER PRESSURE CAUGE THERMOMETER UNION FLARED CONNECTION HOSE BIG (HB) NONFREEZE WALL HYDRANT (NW) MANUAL / AUTOMATIC AR VENT OR VACUUM RELIEF VALVE PRESSURE / VACUUM SWITCH CLEANOUT (FCO) FLOOR CLEANOUT (FCO) ELBOW DOWN ELBOW DOWN ELBOW DOWN ELBOW DOWN WITH SHUT-OFF VALVE (SOV) ELBOW DOWN WITH SHUT-OFF VALVE (SOV) ELBOW DOWN WITH SHUT-OFF VALVE (SOV)	PIPING LINE LYPES SCW SOFTENED DOMESTIC / CODOMESTIC / SOL PIPING COW COW COW COW COW COW COW COH COH CONDENSA' COH CONDENSA' COH CONDENSA' COH CONDENSA' COH CONDENSA' MPG MEDIUM PRI NPW NON POTAB LPG LIQUIFIED	DOLD WATER (SCW) DOLD WATER (SCW) NOT WATER (AW) NOT WATER RECIRC. (HWR) TIC HOT WATER (140°) IR LINE (T) - ABOVE FLOOR (S) SELOW FLOOR (S) SELOW FLOOR (W) STE - ABOVE FLOOR (W) STE - ABOVE FLOOR (GW) NG FABE WASTE AND VENT (COWV) NN ASTE AND VENT (COWT) STOR DRONF (OF) STOR DRONF (G) SSON ROOF (G) SSUEN ANTURAL GAS (NPO) SSUENE NATURAL GAS (NPO) SSUENE NATURAL GAS ON ROOF (MPG) LE WATER (NPW) ETOLEUM GAS (LPG) VICE (VS) YO CHOOR (AW) ANO <th>PITTSBURG STATE UNIVERSITY WILLARD WATER HEATER REPLACEMENT 1701 S BROADWAY ST PITTSBURG, KS DATE:06-25-2021 ISAIR 2500 FX3 ISAIR 2500 F</th>	PITTSBURG STATE UNIVERSITY WILLARD WATER HEATER REPLACEMENT 1701 S BROADWAY ST PITTSBURG, KS DATE:06-25-2021 ISAIR 2500 FX3 ISAIR 2500 F
							S3408
							06/25/2021
							O6/25/2021 PLUMBING NOTES & LEGEND
							PLUMBING NOTES & LEGEND A-014311
							PLUMBING NOTES & LEGEND A-014311 PO.0

GENER/

1. PR(CC LOC SPE

2. DR/ WC CO PLA THI MA

3. PR(AN SPE

4. INS RE REG REG

5. PLA 6. VE OF

7. DO

8. INS 9. VAL

10. INS ANI

11. INS LOC ANI WIT

12. CO

- 13. CO RE AR CC
- 14. CLE TH
- 15. PR(16. CO

OV 17. PAI

CC 18. CO

EQ 19. INS INS

20. WA

21. PR0

- SU 22. PR(SLA
- 23. VEF GO MA

Division 22: PLUMBING

1. GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

A. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

All requirements under Division 01 and the general and supplementary conditions of these specifications apply to this section and division. Where the requirements of this section and division exceed those of Division 01, this section and division take precedence. Become thoroughly familiar with all its contents as to requirements that affect this division, section, or both. Work required under this division includes all material, equipment, appliances, transportation, services and labor required to complete the entire system as required by the drawings and specifications, or reasonably inferred to be necessary to facilitate the function of each system as implied by the design and equipment specified.

The specifications and drawings for the Project are complementary, and any portion of work described in one shall be provided as if described in both. In the event of discrepancies, notify the Engineer and request clarification prior to proceeding with the work involved.

Drawings are graphic representations of the work upon which the contract is based. They show the materials and their relationship to one another, including sizes, shapes, locations, and connections. They convey the scope of work, indicating the intended general arrangement of the systems without showing all of the exact details as to elevations, offsets, control lines, and other installation requirements. Use the drawings as a guide when laying out the work and to verify that materials and equipment will fit into the designated spaces, and which when installed per manufacturers' requirements, will ensure a complete, coordinated, satisfactory, and properly operating system

B. DEFINITIONS

Division: References contained in this specification follow the numbering system defined in the Construction Specifications Institute (CSI) MasterFormat 2004 Edition. Specification Divisions 01 through 13 provided with this project may reference the CSI MasterFormat 1995 Edition. The corresponding division references between the 2004 Edition and 1995 Edition are as follows:

	2004 Edition	1995 Editior
1.	Division 21 - Fire Suppression	Division 15
2.	Division 22 - Plumbing	Division 15
3.	Division 23 - HVAC	Division 15
4.	Division 26 - Electrical	Division 16
5.	Division 27 - Communications	Division 16
6.	Division 28 - Electronic Safety and Security	Division 16

Furnish: "to supply and deliver to the project site, ready for unloading, unpacking, assembly, installation and similar operations." Install: "to perform all operations at the project site including, but not limited to, the actual unloading, unpacking, assembling, erecting, placing, anchoring, applying,

Provide: "to furnish and install, complete and ready for the intended use."

operation. Include the installation under the warranty required by this division."

Furnished by Owner (or Owner-Furnished) or Furnished by Others: "an item furnished by the Owner or under other divisions or contracts, and installed under the

Engineer: Where referenced in this division, "Engineer" is the Engineer of Record and the Design Professional for the work under this division, and is a consultant to, and an authorized representative of the Architect, as defined in the General and/or Supplementary Conditions. When used in this division, Engineer means increased involvement by and obligations to the Engineer, in addition to involvement by and obligations to the Architect.

AHJ: The local code and/or inspection agency (Authority) Having Jurisdiction over the work.

NRTL: Nationally recognized testing laboratory, as defined and listed by OSHA in 29 CFR 1910.7 (e.g., UL, ETL, CSA), and acceptable to the AHJ over this project. Nationally recognized testing laboratories and standards listed are used only to represent the characteristics required and are not intended to restrict the use of other NRTLs that are acceptable to the AHJ and standards that meet the specified criteria.

Substitution: Changes in products, materials, equipment, and methods of construction from those required by the Contract Documents and proposed by Contractor. Substitutions include Value Engineering proposals. A Substitutions for Cause: Changes proposed by Contractor that are required due to changed Project conditions, such as unavailability of product, regulatory

changes, or unavailability of required warranty terms. B Substitutions for Convenience: Changes proposed by Contractor or Owner that are not required in order to meet other Project requirements but may offer advantage to Contractor or Owner.

The terms "approved equal", "equivalent", or "equal" are used synonymously and shall mean "accepted by or acceptable to the Engineer as equivalent to the item or

manufacturer specified". The term "approved" shall mean labeled, listed, or both, by an NRTL, and acceptable to the AHJ over this project. The term lead free refers to the wetted surface of pipe, fittings and fixtures in potable water systems that have a weighted average lead content of less than or equal to

0.25% per safe drinking water act as amended January 4, 2011 Section 1417.

C. PREBID SITE VISIT

Prior to submitting bid, visit the site of the proposed work and become fully informed as to the conditions under which the work is to be done. Failure to comply with this requirement shall not be considered sufficient justification to request or obtain extra compensation over and above the contract price.

D. MATERIAL AND WORKMANSHIP

Provide new material, equipment, and apparatus under this contract unless otherwise stated herein, of best quality normally used for the purpose in good commercial practice, and free from defects. Install material and equipment in accordance with the manufacturer's installation instructions. Model numbers listed in specifications or shown on the drawings are not necessarily intended to designate the required trim, written descriptions of the trim govern model numbers.

Pipe, pipe fittings, pipe specialties and valves shall be manufactured in plants located in the United States or certified to meet the specified ASTM and ANSI standards Work performed under this contract shall provide a neat and "workmanlike" appearance when completed, to the satisfaction of the Architect and Engineer. Workmanship

shall be the finest possible by experienced mechanics. Installations shall comply with applicable codes and laws.

The complete installation shall function as designed and intended with respect to efficiency, capacity, noise level, etc. Abnormal noise caused by rattling equipment. piping and squeaks in rotating components shall not be acceptable. Materials and equipment shall be of commercial specification grade in quality. Light duty and

residential grade equipment shall not be accepted unless otherwise indicated. Remove from the premises waste material present as a result of his work, including cartons, crating, paper, stickers, and/or excavation material not used in backfilling,

etc. Clean equipment installed under this contract to present a neat and clean installation at the termination of the work. Repair or replace public and private property damaged as a result of work performed under this contract to the satisfaction of authorities and regulations having

jurisdiction. Provide all safety lights, guards, and warning signs required for the performance of the work and for the safety of the public.

E. MANUFACTURERS

In other articles where lists of manufacturers are introduced, subject to compliance with requirements, provide products by one of the manufacturers specified.

Where a list is provided, manufacturers are listed alphabetically and not in accordance with any ranking or preference.

Where manufacturers are not listed, provide products subject to compliance with requirements from manufacturers that have been actively involved in manufacturing the specified product for no less than 5 years.

F. COORDINATION

Coordinate work with that of other trades so that the various components of the systems are installed at the proper time, will fit the available space, and will allow proper service access to those items requiring maintenance. Components which are installed without regard to the above shall be relocated at no additional cost to the Owner.

Unless otherwise indicated, General Contractor shall provide chases and openings in building construction required for installation of the systems specified herein. Contractor shall furnish the General Contractor with information where chases and openings when required. Contractor shall keep informed as to the work of other trades

Figured dimensions shall be taken in preference to scaled dimensions. Contractor shall take his own measurements at the building, as variations may occur. Contractor shall be held responsible for errors which could have been avoided by proper checking and verification.

drawings are not intended to designate the required trim.

G. ORDINANCES AND CODES

Work performed under this contract shall, at a minimum, be in conformance with applicable national, state and local codes having jurisdiction. Equipment furnished and associated installation work performed under this contract shall be in strict compliance with current applicable codes adopted by the local AHJ, including any amendments and standards as set forth by the following:

- National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) Underwriters Laboratories (UL)
- Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA)
- American Society of Mechanical Engineers (ASME)
- American Society of Heating, Refrigeration, and Air Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE)
- American National Standards Institute (ANSI) American Society of Testing Materials (ASTM)
- Other national standards and codes where applicable

Where the contract documents exceed the requirements of the referenced codes, standards, etc., the contract documents shall take precedence. Where conflicts between various codes, ordinances, rules, and regulations exist, comply with the most stringent.

Promptly bring all conflicts observed between codes, ordinances, rules, regulations, referenced standards, and these documents to the attention of the Architect and

Procure and pay for permits and licenses required for the accomplishment of the work herein described. Where required, obtain, pay for, and furnish certificates of inspection to Owner.

H. PROTECTION OF EQUIPMENT AND MATERIAL

Store and protect from damage equipment and material after delivery to job site. For materials and equipment susceptible to changing weather conditions, dampness, or temperature variations, store inside in conditioned spaces. For materials and equipment not susceptible to these conditions, cover with waterproof, tear-resistant, heavy tarp or polyethylene plastic as required to protect from plaster, dirt, paint, water, or physical damage. Equipment and material damaged by construction activities shall be rejected and Contractor shall furnish new equipment and material of a like kind at his own expense

Keep premises broom clean of foreign material created during work performed under this contract. Piping, equipment, etc. shall have a neat and clean appearance at the termination of the work.

Plug or cap open ends of piping systems while stored and installed during construction when not in use to prevent the entrance of debris into the systems.

Keep the manufacturer-provided protective coverings on floor drains, floor sinks and trench drains during construction. Remove coverings at the termination of the work and polish exposed surfaces.

working to dimension, finishing, curing, protecting, cleaning, testing, commissioning, starting up and similar operations, complete, and ready for the intended use."

requirements of this division, complete, and ready for the intended use, including all items and services incidental to the work necessary for proper installation and

engaged in the construction of the project and shall execute his work in such a manner as not to interfere with or delay the work of other trades.

Provide materials with trim that will properly fit the types of ceiling, wall, or floor finishes actually installed. Model numbers listed in the specifications or shown on the

Engineer for final resolution. Contractor will be held responsible for any violation of the law.

I. SUBSTITUTIONS

Materials, products, equipment, and systems described in the Bidding Documents establish a standard of required function, dimension, appearance and quality to be met by the proposed substitution. The base bid shall include only the products from manufacturers specifically named in the drawings and specifications. To request a substitution, request the Substitution Request Form from the Architect or Engineer. Complete and send the Substitution Request From for each material, product, equipment, or system that is proposed to be substituted. The burden of proof of the merit of the proposed substitution is upon the proposer.

Unless stated otherwise in writing to the Engineer by the Contractor, Contractor warrants to the Engineer, Architect, and Owner the following: Proposed substitution has been fully investigated and determined to meet or exceed the specified Work in all respects unless stated otherwise in the substitution

Proposed substitution is consistent with the Contract Documents and will produce indicated results, including functional clearances, maintenance service, and sourcing of replacement parts.

Proposed substitution has received necessary approvals of authorities having jurisdiction.

Same warranty will be furnished for proposed substitution as for specified Work. If accepted substitution fails to perform as required, Contractor shall replace substitute material or system with that originally specified and bear costs incurred

6. Coordination, installation and changes in the Work as necessary for accepted substitution will be complete in all respects.

No substitutions will be considered unless the Substitution Request Form is completed and attached with the appropriate substitution documentation. No substitution will be considered prior to receipt of bids unless written request for approval to bid has been received by the Engineer at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the date for receipt of bids.

If the proposed substitution is approved prior to receipt of bids, such approval will be stated in an addendum. Bidders shall not rely upon approvals made in any other way. Verbal approval will not be given. No substitutions will be considered after the contract is awarded unless specifically provided in the contract documents.

J. SUBMITTALS

Assemble and submit for review shop drawings, material lists, manufacturer product literature for equipment to be furnished, and items requiring coordination between contractors under this contract. Provide submittals in sufficient detail so as to demonstrate compliance with these Contract Documents and the design concept. Prior to transmitting submittal, verify that the equipment submitted is mutually compatible and suitable for the intended use, will fit the available space, and maintain manufacturer recommended service clearances. If the size of equipment furnished makes necessary any change in location or configuration, submit a shop drawing showing the proposed layout.

Transmit submittals as early as required to support the project schedule. Allow for two weeks Engineer review time, plus to/from mailing time via the Architect, plus a duplication of this time for resubmittal, if required. Only resubmit those sections requested for resubmittal.

Submittals shall contain the project name, applicable specification section, submittal date, equipment identification acronym as used on the drawings, and the Contractor's stamp. The stamp shall certify that the submittal has been checked by the Contractor, complies with the drawings and specifications, and is coordinated with other trades. Manufacturer product literature shall include shop drawings, product data, performance sheets, samples and other submittals required by this division. Highlight, mark, list, or indicate the materials, performance criteria, and accessories that are being proposed. General product catalog data not specifically noted to be part of the specified product will be rejected and returned without review.

Submittals and shop drawings shall not contain the firm name, logo, seal, or signature of the Engineer. They shall not be copies of the work product of the Engineer. If the Contractor desires to use elements of such product, refer to paragraph "Electronic Drawing Files" for procedures to be used.

Separate submittals according to individual specification sections. Illegible submittals will be rejected and returned without review. Catalog data shall be properly bound, identified, indexed and tabbed in a 3-ring binder. Each item or model number shall be clearly marked and accessories indicated. Label the catalog data with the equipment identification acronym or number as used on the drawings and include performance curves, capacities, sizes, weights, materials, finishes, wiring diagrams, electrical requirements and deviations from specified equipment or materials. For equipment with motor starters or VFDs, include short circuit current ratings. Mark out inapplicable items. Shop drawings will be returned without review if the above mentioned requirements are not met.

Provide the quantity of submittals required by Division 01. If not indicated and hard-copy sets are provided, submit a minimum of six (6) copies. Refer to Division 01 for acceptance of electronic submittals for this project. For electronic submittals, Contractor shall submit the documents in accordance with the procedures specified in Division 01. Contractor shall notify the Architect and Engineer that the submittals have been posted. If electronic submittal procedures are not defined in Division 01, Contractor shall include the website, user name, and password information needed to access the submittals. For submittals sent by e-mail. Contractor shall copy the designated representatives of the Architect and Engineer. Contractor shall allow for the Engineer review time as specified above in the construction schedule. Contractor shall submit only the documents required to purchase the materials and/or equipment in the electronic submittal.

The checking and subsequent acceptance of submittals by the Engineer and/or Architect shall not relieve the Contractor from responsibility for deviations from the drawings and specifications, errors in dimensions, details, size of members, or quantities, omissions of components or fittings; coordination of electrical requirements; and not coordinating items with actual building conditions and adjacent work. Proceed with the procurement and installation of equipment only after receiving approved shop drawings relative to each item.

K. ELECTRONIC DRAWINGS

In preparation of shop drawings or record drawings, Contractor may, at his option, obtain electronic drawing files in AutoCAD or DXF format on CD-ROM disk. DVD disk. flash drive, or direct download, as desired, from the Engineer for a shipping and handling fee of \$200 for a drawing set up to 12 sheets and \$15 per sheet for each additional sheet. Contact the Architect for written authorization and Engineer for the necessary release agreement form and to specify shipping method and drawing format. In addition to payment, written authorization from the Architect and release agreement form from the Engineer must be received before electronic drawing files will be sent.

L. RECORD DRAWINGS (AS-BUILT DRAWINGS)

See Division 01 and General Conditions for additional information.

During progress of the work in this division, Contractor shall maintain an accurate record of all changes made during the installation of the system. Upon completion of the work, accurately transfer all record information to three identical sets of the approved shop drawings. Insert one set into each copy of the manual described below.

M. OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE INSTRUCTIONS

During the course of construction, collect and compile a complete brochure of equipment furnished and installed on this project. Include operational and maintenance instructions, manufacturer's catalog sheets, wiring diagrams, parts lists, approved submittals and shop drawings, warranties, and descriptive literature as furnished by the equipment manufacturer. Include an inside cover sheet that lists the project name, date, Owner, Architect, Engineer, General Contractor, Sub-Contractor, and an index of contents.

Submit three copies of literature bound in approved binders with index and tabs separating equipment types to the Architect, for Engineer's review, at the termination of the work. Paper clips, staples, rubber bands, loose-leaf binding, and mailing envelopes are not considered approved binders. Final approval of systems installed under this contract shall be withheld until this equipment brochure is received and deemed complete by the Architect and Engineer. Instruct workmen to save required literature shipped with the equipment itself for inclusion in this brochure.

Include record drawings as described above

Refer to Division 01 for acceptance of electronic manuals for this project. For electronic manuals, refer to paragraph "Submittals" for requirements.

N. SPARE PARTS

Furnish to Owner, with receipt, the spare parts for faucet washers and O-rings, flushometer repair kits, and water closet tank repair kits for the fixtures furnished for this

O. TRAINING

At a time mutually agreed upon between the Owner and Contractor, provide the services of a factory trained and authorized representative to train Owner's designated personnel on the operation and maintenance of the equipment provided for this project.

Provide training to include, but not be limited to, an overview of the system and/or equipment as it relates to the facility as a whole; operation and maintenance procedures and schedules related to startup and shutdown, troubleshooting, servicing, preventive maintenance and appropriate operator intervention; and review of data included in the operation and maintenance manuals.

Submit a certification letter to the Architect stating that the Owner's designated representative has been trained as specified herein. Letter shall include date, time, attendees and subject of training. The Contractor and the Owner's representative shall sign the certification letter indicating agreement that the training has been provided

Schedule training with Owner with at least 7 days advance notice.

P. WARRANTIES

Warrant each system and each element thereof against all defects due to faulty workmanship, design, or material for a period of 12 months from date of Substantial Completion, unless specific items are noted to carry a longer warranty in the construction documents or manufacturer's standard warranty exceeds 12 months. Remedy all defects, occurring within the warranty period(s), as stated in the General Conditions and Division 01.

Warranty shall include a guarantee of free circulation of liquids throughout the system as intended without leaks, excessive noise, or water hammer.

Warranties shall include labor and material, including travel expenses. Make repairs or replacements without any additional costs to the Owner, and to the satisfaction of the Owner, Architect, and Engineer

Perform the remedial work promptly, upon written notice from the Engineer or Owner.

At the time of Substantial Completion, deliver to the Owner all warranties, in writing and properly executed, including term limits for warranties extending beyond the one year period and any actions the Owner must take in order to maintain warranty status. Each warranty instrument shall be addressed to the Owner and state the commencement date and term.

2. GENERAL MATERIALS AND INSTALLATION

A. BUILDING OPERATION

Comply with the schedule of operations as outlined in the architectural portions of this specification. Building shall be in operation at all timesAccomplish work requiring interruption of building operation at a time when the building is not in operation and only with written approval of building Owner and/or tenant. Coordinate interruption of building operation with the Owner and/or tenant a minimum of seven (7) days in advance of work.

B. EXISTING EQUIPMENT REUSE AND REMOVAL

Provide items of plumbing systems modification required because of building remodeling, as noted on the drawings, or necessary for proper operation. Match existing materials and construction techniques when modifying existing systems. Coordinate requirements with general contractor and architect.

Seal existing floor drains to be abandoned or not in use at completion of work gas-tight with plug. Clean P-trap of debris. Provide blank grate. Cover drains with floor

material matching adjacent area in finished portions of the building.

New floor drains shall be connected to the existing sanitary drainage system as shown on the drawings or as required. Saw-cut existing concrete floor as required to install new underfloor lines, and patch to match existing sub-floor. Refer to architectural specifications for finish floor patching requirements.

Existing plumbing fixtures where indicated on the drawings to be reused shall be cleaned, repaired, provided with new washers, etc. As required to put them into good operating condition.

Patch holes weather-tight in existing roofs caused by removal of plumbing items such as piping.

Make connection of new pipe to similar existing waste, water and gas pipe using standard fittings and joining practices

C. EXCAVATION AND BACKFILLING

Perform excavation and backfill required for installation of underground work under this contract. Trenches shall be of sufficient width. Crib or brace trenches to prevent cave-in or settlement. Do not excavate trenches close to columns and walls of new building without prior consultation with the Architect. Use pumping equipment if required to keep trenches free of water. Backfill trenches in maximum 6 inch layers of well-tamped dry earth in a manner to prevent future settlement.

Excavation as specified herein shall be classified as common excavation. Common excavation shall comprise the satisfactory removal and disposition of material of whatever substances and of every description encountered, including rock, if any, within the limits of the work as specified and shown on the drawings. Excavation shall be performed to the lines and grades indicated on the drawings. Dispose of excavated materials that are considered unsuitable for backfill and surplus of excavated material which is not required for backfill to the satisfaction of the Architect.

D. COINCIDENTAL DAMAGE

Repair streets, sidewalks, drives, paving, walls, finishes, and other facilities damaged in the course of the work. Repair materials shall match existing construction. Repair work shall meet all requirements of the Owner, local authorities having jurisdiction, and meet the satisfaction of the Architect. Conform to requirements of Division 02 of this specification.

E. CUTTING AND PATCHING

Conform to the requirements in Division 01. Cut walls, floors, ceilings, and other portions of the facility as required to install work under this division. Obtain permission from the Architect prior to cutting. Do not disturb structural members without prior approval from the Architect. Cut holes as small as possible. Patch walls, floors, and other portions of the facility as required by work under this division. Patching shall match original material and construction including fire ratings, if applicable. Repair and refinish areas disturbed by work to the condition of adjoining surfaces in a manner satisfactory to the Architect.

F. ROUGH-IN

Coordinate without delay all roughing-in with other divisions. Conceal piping, conduit, and rough-in except in unfinished areas and where otherwise shown.

G. CONCRETE BASES

Provide concrete bases (e.g., housekeeping pads) for equipment where indicated on the drawings and as specified herein. Concrete bases shall have chamfered edges. Size of base shall be a minimum of 4 inches greater than the footprint of the equipment that it is supporting and shall have a minimum height as described below.

Construct equipment bases of a minimum 28 day, 4000 psi concrete conforming to American Concrete Institute Standard Building Code for Reinforced Concrete (ACI 318-99) and the latest applicable recommendations of the ACI standard practice manual. Concrete shall be composed of cement conforming to ASTM C150 Type I. aggregate conforming to ASTM C33, and potable water. Exposed exterior concrete shall contain 5 to 7 percent air entrainment.

Unless otherwise specified or shown on the structural drawings, reinforce equipment bases and housekeeping pads with No. 4 reinforcing bars conforming to ASTM A615 or 6x6 - W2.9 x W2.9 welded wire mesh conforming to ASTM A185. Place reinforcing bars 24 inches on center with a minimum of two bars each direction.

Provide galvanized anchor bolts for equipment placed on concrete equipment bases and housekeeping pads or on concrete slabs. Anchor bolts size, number and placement shall be as recommended by the manufacturer of the equipment.

Concrete equipment bases shall have minimum heights in accordance with the following:

For water heaters, water softeners and other equipment not listed, minimum height is 3-1/2 inches. For water heaters over 200 gallons capacity and domestic water booster pumps, minimum height is 5-1/2 inches.

Height of equipment bases applies to equipment installed on slab-on-grade. For equipment installed on floors above grade and on the roof, refer to the drawings

H. SUPPORT SYSTEMS

Structural steel used for pipe supports, equipment supports, etc., shall be new and clean, and shall conform to ASTM designation A-36.

Support plumbing equipment and piping from the building structure. Do not support plumbing equipment and piping from ceilings, other mechanical or electrical components, and other non-structural elements.

I. PENETRATIONS

Provide sleeves for pipes passing through above grade concrete or masonry walls, concrete floor or roof slabs. Sleeves are not required for core drilled holes in existing masonry walls, concrete floors or roofs. Provide 10 gauge galvanized steel sleeves for sleeves 6 inches and smaller. Provide galvanized sheet metal sleeves for larger than 6 inches.

Seal elevated floor, exterior wall and roof penetrations watertight and weathertight with non-shrink, non-hardening commercial sealant. Pack with mineral wool and seal both ends with minimum of 1/2 inch of sealant.

beal around penetrations of fire rated assemblies. Coordinate fire ratings and locations with the architectural drawings. Refer to architectural specifications for fire stoppings. Provide a product schedule for UL listing, location, wall or floor rating and installation drawing for each penetration fire stop system.

Extend pipe insulation for insulated pipe through floor, wall and roof penetrations, including fire rated walls and floors. The vapor barrier shall be maintained. Size sleeve for a minimum of 1 inch annular clear space between inside of sleeve and outside of insulation.

Seal concrete or masonry exterior wall penetrations below grade with wall sleeve and mechanical sleeve seals. Provide galvanized schedule 40 steel wall sleeve with 2" wide metal plate. Wall sleeve is not required for existing concrete walls with core drilled penetrations. Provide modular mechanical sleeve seals, manufactured by Advance Products & Systems, Calpico, GPT Industries/Link Seal, Metraflex, or Proco Products.

Seal elevated concrete slab with water proof membrane penetrations with "wall pipes" and water proof sealant. Secure waterproof membrane flashing between "wall pipe" clamping flange and clamping ring. Provide cast iron "wall pipes" with integral waterstop ring manufactured by Josam, Jay R. Smith, Wade, Watts or Zurn.

Provide sleeves for horizontal pipe passing through or under foundation. Sleeves shall be cast iron soil pipe two nominal pipe sizes larger than the pipe served. Provide cast iron soil pipe sleeves for vertical pressure pipe passing through concrete slab on grade. Sleeves shall be one nominal pipe size larger than the pipe served and two pipe sizes larger than pipe served for ductile iron pipes with restraining rods. Seal water-tight with silicone caulk.

Provide 1/2 inch thick cellular foam insulation around perimeter of non-pressure pipe passing thru concrete slab on grade. Insulation shall extend to 2 inches above and below the concrete slab.

J. FIRESTOPPING

penetration fire stop system.

Sealants and accessories shall have fire-resistance ratings indicated, as established by testing identical assemblies in accordance with UL 2079 or ASTM E 814, or other NRTL acceptable to AHJ.

Manufacturers: Hilti, RectorSeal, Specified Technologies Inc., United States Gypsum Company, or 3M corp.

Through and Membrane Penetration Firestopping Systems Product Schedule: Provide UL listing, location, wall or floor rating, and installation drawing for each

Where project conditions require modification to qualified testing and inspecting agency's illustrations for a particular firestopping condition, submit illustration, with modifications marked, approved by penetration firestopping manufacturer's fire-protection engineer as an engineering judgment or equivalent fire-resistance-rated assembly. Include qualifications data for testing agency.

K. MOTORS AND STARTERS

Provide motors and starting equipment where not furnished with the equipment package. Motors shall have copper windings, Class B insulation, and standard squirrel cage with starting torque characteristics suitable for the equipment served. Motors controlled by variable frequency drives shall be rated for voltage peaks and minimum rise times in accordance with NEMA MG1. Part 31. [Each motor shall be checked for proper rotation after electrical connection has been completed. Provide drip-proof enclosure for locations protected from weather and not in air stream of fan; and totally enclosed fan cooled enclosure for motors exposed to weather. Motors shall be manufactured by Century, General Electric, Westinghouse, Louis Allis, or approved equal.

Provide every motor, except fractional horsepower single phase motors with an approved type of "built-in" thermal overload protection, with a motor starter. Each starter shall be provided with overload heaters sized to the motor rating, and every three phase motor starter shall have overload heaters in each phase. Ambient compensated heaters shall be installed wherever necessary. Unless noted otherwise, motor starters shall be furnished by the Division 23 Contractor for installation and connection by the Division 26 Contractor. Starters shall be Allen-Bradley, Clark, Furnas, Square D, or approved equal.

L. ELECTRICAL WIRING

Line voltage wiring shall be provided by Division 26. Line voltage control and interlock wiring for plumbing systems shall also be provided by Division 26. Low voltage control wiring shall be provided by Division 23. Furnish wiring diagrams to Division 26 as required for proper equipment hookup. Coordinate with Division 26 the actual wire sizing amps for plumbing equipment (from the equipment nameplate) to ensure proper installation.

CONTINUED..

0 **Ľ** v Ξű





PLUMBING **SPECIFICATIONS**

A-014311

PO.1

A. SYSTEM TESTING AND ADJUSTING

Upon completion of each phase of the installation, test each system in conformance with local code requirements and as noted below. Furnish labor and equipment required to test each system installed under this contract. Assume all costs involved in making the tests and repairing and/or replacing any damages resulting therefrom.

Notify the Architect and the AHJ, three (3) working days prior to making plumbing system tests. Leave concealed work uncovered until the required tests have been completed, but if necessary due to construction procedure, tests on portions of the work may be made, and when satisfactory, the work may be concealed. Test piping before insulation is installed, and before backfill. Pipes, joints, flanges, valve stems, etc., shall be leak tight. Repair or replace system defects with new materials. Caulking of defective joints, cracks or holes will not be permitted. Repeat tests after defects have been eliminated. Make tests in the presence of the administrative authority and/or the Owner's authorized representative.

Upon completion of the systems installation, and prior to acceptance by the Architect and Engineer, make general operating tests to demonstrate that equipment and systems are in proper working order, and are functioning in conformance with the intent of the drawings and specifications. As a part of these tests, open every water outlet to ensure complete system flushing, remove and clean faucet aerators, clean strainers, light pilot lights, and operate every piece of equipment furnished under this contract to demonstrate proper functioning.

Test the drainage and vent system by plugging openings with test plugs, except those at the top of the stacks. Fill the system with water; test results will be satisfactory if the water level remains stationary for not less than one (1) hour. Subject the drainage and vent system to a pressure of at least ten (10) feet of water. If leaks develop, repair them and repeat the test

Test the domestic water system by filling it with water and then isolating the system from its source. Keep the system closed for a period of twenty-four hours with no fixture being used. The pressure differential for this test period shall not exceed 10 psig. Test water piping to a 125 PSI hydrostatic pressure.

B. VIBRATION ISOLATION

Provide vibration isolation equipment and materials by a single manufacturer. If type and deflection for specific equipment is not specified within the contract documents, reference ASHRAE Handbook "HVAC Applications" or provide per manufacturer's recommendations. Approved manufacturers Amber Booth, Kinetics Noise Control, Mason Industries, Inc., Vibration Eliminator Co., Inc., and Vibration Mounting and Controls, provided their systems are in compliance with the specified design and performance requirements.

or calibration markings so that, after adjustment, the static deflection can be verified, thus determining that the load is within the proper range of the isolator. Isolators shall operate in the linear portion of their load versus deflection curves. Spring isolators shall have 50 percent excess capacity without becoming coil bound. Coat vibration isolators with factory-applied paint. Coat vibration isolators exposed to weather and other corrosive environments with factory-applied corrosion resistance protection. Install and adjust vibration isolators in accordance with manufacturers written instructions.

Pipe Connections. Provide flexible connectors for piping system connections on equipment side of shutoff valves for vacuum pumps and air compressors. Flexible piping connectors shall be braided hose type as recommended by the manufacturer for the application.

Isolator Types

1. Provide type MWP (Metal and Waffle Sandwich Pads) for equipment mounted on equipment pads consisting of two, 5/16 inch thick ribbed or waffle neoprene pads sandwiching a 16 gauge stainless steel shim plate with bridge bearing quality neoprene with a maximum durometer of 50 and designed for 15 percent strain. If the isolator is bolted to the structure, provide a neoprene vibration isolation washer and sleeve (Uniroyal Type 620/660, or as approved) installed under the bolt head between the steel washer and the base plate. Provide Mason Industries Type WSW or equal.

2. Provide type DDNM (Double Deflection Neoprene Mounts) for piping suspended from the structure within 50 feet of rotating equipment, consisting of double deflecting, molded neoprene isolators and be laterally stabilized with all metal surfaces covered with neoprene. Top and bottom surfaces shall be ribbed and bolt holes shall be provided in the base. The mounts shall have leveling bolts rigidly secured to the equipment. The isolator shall be manufactured with bridge bearing quality neoprene, and selected for a maximum durometer of 50 and designed for 15 percent strain. DDNM mounts shall be selected for a static deflection of 3/8 inch unless otherwise specified. Provide Mason Industries Type ND or as equal.

Install pipe markers on each plumbing piping system and include arrows to show normal direction of flow. 3. Provide type DDNH (Double Deflection Neoprene Hangers) for piping supported on the floor within 50 feet of rotating equipment, consisting of a molded neoprene isolating element in a steel hanger box. A neoprene sleeve shall be provided where the lower hanger rod passes through the steel hanger box, such that the hanger rod Locate pipe markers and color bands wherever piping is exposed to view in occupied spaces, machine rooms, accessible maintenance spaces (shafts, tunnels, plenums) cannot contact the steel hanger. The diameter of the clear hole in the hanger box shall be at least 3/4 inch larger than the diameter of the hanger rod and permit the and exterior non-concealed locations. hanger rod to swing through a 30 degree arc. When installed, the hanger box shall be allowed to rotate through a full 360 degrees without encountering any obstructions The isolator shall be manufactured with bridge bearing quality neoprene, and selected for a maximum durometer of 50 and designed for 15 percent strain. Unless otherwise specified, the static deflection of DDNH hangers shall be 0.3 inches. Provide Mason Industries Type HD or as equal. Provide plastic laminate or brass valve tag on every valve, cock and control device in each plumbing piping system; exclude check valves, valves within factory-fabricated equipment units, plumbing fixture faucets, convenience and lawn-watering hose bibbs, and shut-off valves at plumbing fixtures and similar rough-in connections of end-use fixtures and units.

3. PLUMBING PIPING

A. PIPING MATERIALS

Materials specified or noted on the drawings are subject to the approval of local code authorities. Verify approval before installing any material or joining method.

Domestic Water (Cold, Hot and Hot Water Recirculation): Domestic water piping installed above the floor slab inside the building shall be Type "L" hard temper copper tube with wrought copper fittings and soldered connections made up with 95/5 solder. Brazed mechanically formed tee connections (T-drill) may be used in copper lines where approved by code; connection shall be brazed joints made with AWS A5.8, BAg Silver filler metal.

Underground domestic water piping 2 inch and smaller shall be Type "K" soft temper copper tubing with flared copper alloy fittings and connections. or Type "K" hard temper copper tubing with conventional wrought copper fittings and brazed joints made with AWS A5.8, BAg Silver filler meta. Install as few underground copper piping joints as possible. At building service entrance, no joints shall be installed under or within 5 feet of the building. Install domestic water piping below grade outside building at adequate depth to prevent freezing.

Indirect and Condensate Drain Inside Building: Indirect and condensate drain pipe installed inside the building shall be schedule 80 steel with iron fittings. Install cleanouts at elbows greater than 45 degrees. Slope piping at 1/8" per foot.

B. PIPING AND EQUIPMENT INSULATION

Provide domestic cold water, hot water, hot water recirculation, indirect and condensate drain pipe (within building) with one-piece fiberglass insulation with all-service jacket with self-sealing lap to provide a continuous vapor barrier by CertainTeed Corp., Knauf Insulation, Johns Manville or Owens Corning. Provide Insulation thickness as follows:

1" thick for cold piping

1" thick for storm piping and overflow storm piping

1" thick for condensate and auxiliary condensate piping

1" thick for hot water and hot water return piping 6" and smaller

Up to 140F hot water and hot water return piping: 1" thick for 1-1/4" and smaller and 1-1/2" thick for 1-1/2" and larger

Provide 1 inch fiberglass insulation on vent piping within six feet of vent through the roof. Provide fiberglass insulation on domestic cold and hot water pipes installed in walls and chases.

Insulate water heaters, storage tanks, hot water pumps, etc. that are not factory insulated.

For hot piping, provide pipe hangers and riser clamps sized for the outside diameter of piping. Butt insulation to hanger or riser clamp for vertical pipe. Seal exposed insulation with insulation sealer. Exception for Vertical Piping: Provide clamps sized for the outside diameter of the vertical pipe and extend clamp through insulation. Seal penetrations of insulation and vapor barrier with wet coat of vapor barrier lap cement. For 2-1/2" and larger cold piping at hangers, provide 8 inch long sections of high density, high temperature calcium silicate by Johns-Manville, Fiberglass by Knauf or flexible unicellular piping insulation meeting ASTM C 534-01A, Type I with integral high density pipe supports and encased in steel insulation shield by Cooper B-line, Armacell, or approved equal. Insulation shall be continuous along the pipe surface, except at valves, unions, and where piping is exposed at fixtures. For pipes 2 inch and smaller using fiberglass or flexible elastomeric insulation without pre-insulated supports, provide insulation protection shields installed between hanger and pipe which meets the following minimum length requirements: Pipe Insulation Minimum Shield Length, (in) Size Thickness Hanger Spacing, (ft) (NPS) (inches) 5 6 7 8 9 10 1 3 5 5 - - -Less than 1 1.5 3 5 5 - - -5 6 8 9 11 11 1-1/4" to 1.5 5 6 8 8 9 9

2" and Less

Cover fittings with Johns Manville Zeston 2000 PVC or approved equal one-piece PVC premolded insulating covers. Fitting covers, jackets and adhesives shall not exceed flame spread rating of 25 and smoke development rating of 50 per ASTM E84. Fill voids between covers and piping with fiberglass insulation and tape joints at all elbows and tees. Install pipe insulation in compliance with manufacturer's recommendations. Where premolded insulating fittings are not approved by the local AHJ, miter insulation at fittings.

5 5 6 6 8 8

C. PIPING JOINTS

2

Copper Tubing: Joints in hard temper tubing shall be soldered joints using lead-free 95/5 solder except where tubing is installed below grade or below the base slab, in which case joints shall be soldered with silver solder (Sil-Fos). Joints in soft temper copper tubing shall be of the flared type installed in compliance with the fitting manufacturer's recommendations

Threaded Steel Pipe: Threaded joints shall be full and clean, cut with not more than three (3) threads exposed beyond the fittings. Make joints tight with graphite base pipe joint compound, use joint compound for gas systems for gas piping (joint tape is not accepted).. No caulking, lamp-wick or other material will be permitted for correction of defective joints.

Welded Steel Pipe: Welded joints shall be of the butt welded single "Vee" type. Bevel pipe at a 45 degree angle to within 1/16 inch of the inside wall, and build up the weld to one fourth greater depth than the pipe wall thickness. Welding shall be either electric or oxy-acetylene, performed in conformance with the ASME code for pressure pipe welding, and only by experienced certified welders.

Dissimilar Pipes Above Grade: Make connection of new waste pipe to new or existing dissimilar waste pipe using shielded transition couplings meeting ASTM C1460 with neoprene adapter gasket with stainless steel shield and hose clamps, Fernco, Proflex 3000 Series or Mission Flexseal MR56 Series

Dissimilar Pipes Below Grade: Make connection of new waste pipe to new or existing dissimilar waste pipe using shielded adapter couplings meeting ASTM C1173 with neoprene adapter gasket with stainless steel shield and hose clamps, Fernco, 1056 Series or Mission Sewer Couplings.

D. PIPING INSTALLATION

General: Clean pipe thoroughly prior to installation. Ream ends of pipe to remove burrs. Cut pipe accurately to measurements taken on the job. Install with adequate clearance for installation of coverings where required. Pipe shall not be sprung or bent. Neatly align pipe, connect it securely, and support it from the building structure with hangers as specified below. Provide chrome-plated escutcheons on pipes passing through ceilings, floors or walls of finished spaces. Run pipes freely through floor and wall penetrations using pipe sleeves. Do not grout in place unless required for structural fire integrity. Install pipe concealed in finished spaces wherever possible.

General Requirements: Select vibration isolators by the weight distribution to produce uniform deflection. Vibration isolators shall have either known un-deflected heights

Use a dielectric union where ferrous and copper pipe connect. Dielectric union shall have a zinc-plated steel body, a threaded nylon insert, and insulating pressure gasket. No ferrous metal-to-copper connection made without insulating unions will be allowed.

Hanger & Supports: Pipe hangers shall be as described in the specifications by B-Line or equal by Anvil, Elite Components, FNW, Michigan, Truscon, or Unistrut. Connect hangers to the structure with side beam connectors and all thread hanger rods. Provide engineered support struts between joists and other structural members as required to provide a rigid hanging installation. Do not hang pipes from other pipes, conduit or ductwork. Provide hanger rods and space hangers at intervals as specified in "hanger spacing". Provide support within 1 foot of each elbow and tee. Provide supports within 1 foot of each equipment connection. Provide two nuts on threaded supports to securely fasten the support. Install hanger types or supports for various piping as follows:

Copper Tube: Adjustable band hangers for bare copper tube 3 inches and smaller shall be B-Line #B3170 CT copper plated adjustable band swivel ring type. Adjustable band hangers for insulated copper tube 3 inches and smaller shall be B-Line #B3170 NF adjustable band swivel ring type. Clevis hangers for insulated copper tube 4 inches and larger shall be B-Line #B3100 galvanized steel clevis type. Support exposed copper tube 2 inches and smaller to walls or in chases with B-Line #B3198RCT copper coated extension split ring pipe clamps, 3/8 inch threaded rod and B-Line #B3199CT ceiling flanges. Support copper tube in chases and walls at plumbing fixtures with plastic or copper brackets secured to structure and U-bolts sized to bare on the pipe. Riser clamps to support vertical copper tube shall be B-Line #B3373CT copper coated steel, cut insulation, seal vapor barrier, and attach to bare tube.

Steel Pipe: Adjustable band hangers for 2 inch and smaller shall be B-Line #B3170 NF adjustable band swivel ring type. Clevis hangers for 2-1/2 inch and larger shall be B-Line #B3100 galvanized steel clevis type. Riser clamps to support vertical pipe shall be B-Line #B3373 galvanized steel.

Insulation Protection Shields: B-Line #B3151 of 18 gauge galvanized sheet metal. Shield shall cover half of the circumference of the pipe and shall be of length indicated by manufacturer for pipe size and thickness of insulation.

Hanger Spacing, Rod Sizes & Connectors: Connect rods to steel beams or joists with B-Line #B3031 or #B3033 beam clamps as required. Connect rods to concrete with B-Line #3014 malleable iron single type inserts with malleable iron nut. Connect rods in wood construction with B-Line #B3058 side beam connectors. Hang and support piping with spacing and rod sizes as follows:

Copper Tube: 1-1/2 inch and smaller - every 6 feet with 3/8 inch hanger rods; 2 inch - every 10 feet with 3/8 inch hanger rods; 2-1/2 inch - every 10 feet with 3/8 inch hanger rods; 3 inch - every 10 feet with 1/2 inch rods, 4 inch - every 10 feet with 5/8 inch hanger rods. Support vertical copper tube every 10 feet.

Steel Pipe: 1 inch and smaller - every 8 feet with 3/8 inch hanger rods; 1-1/4 inch through 2 inch - every 10 feet with 3/8 inch hanger rods; 2-1/2 inch and 3 inch - every 10 feet with 1/2 inch hanger rods, 4 inch - every 10 feet with 5/8 inch hanger rods. Support vertical steel pipe every 10 feet. Supports On Floor: Support piping from the floor where required for ferrous pipe or insulated copper tube, shall be B-Line B3093 galvanized steel with pipe saddle,

Domestic Water: Arrange cold, hot, and hot water recirculation piping to drain at the lowest point in each system. Install at least one pipe union adjacent to all shutoff valves, at connection points of each piece of equipment, and elsewhere in the system where required to allow proper maintenance. Provide unions of the ground joint type. Make allowance for expansion and contraction where required by the installation. Where water piping occurs in exterior walls, hold pipe as close as possible to the interior face of wall and install insulation batt or other insulation (minimum R-8) between piping and the exterior wall face

E. PIPING SANITIZATION

Sanitize the entire domestic water piping system (cold, hot, and hot water return) with a solution containing not less than 50 ppm available chlorine. Keep solution in the system for a minimum of 24 hours, with each valve being operated several times during the period. After completion, flush system with city water until chlorine residual is lowered to incoming city water level.

F. PIPE AND VALVE MARKERS

threaded shank for height adjustment and floor stand secured to the floor.

Provide manufacturer's standard pre-printed, semi-rigid snap-on or permanent adhesive, pressure-sensitive vinyl pipe markers. Pipe markers shall be color-coded complying with ANSA A13.1.

4. PLUMBING SPECIALTIES

A. WATER HAMMER ARRESTORS, AND TRAPS

[Provide water hammer arrestors at valves or batteries of fixtures as indicated on the drawings to prevent water hammer. Arrestors shall be Josam, Sioux Chief, Smith, Precision Plumbing Products, Proflo, Wade, Watts, or Zurn, stainless steel bellows type, or O-ring sealed and lubricated acetal piston. Install water hammer arrestors per the Plumbing and Drainage Institute (PDI) WH-201 installation instructions. Installation of arrestors at batteries of fixtures precludes the requirement for individual air chambers at each battery fixture. Submit certification that water hammer arrestors comply with NSF 61 Annex G and/or NSF 372.

Provide water-seal traps on floor drains, fixtures and equipment with drain connections, including traps not furnished in combination with fixtures and equipment. Place trap as close to the fixture or drain as possible. Exposed traps in finished spaces shall be chrome-plated brass.

Provide conventional "P" type trap, water-sealed self-cleaning design. Full "S" traps or trap standards shall be used only where specifically called for on the drawings or elsewhere in this specification. Trap water seals shall not be less than 2 inches, and deep seal traps shall be provided where specified or indicated. Each trap not integral with the fixture or floor drain or installed below the base slab shall be provided with an accessible cleanout of adequate size. Provide trap primers where required by code and where indicated on the drawings.

B. CLEANOUTS, FLOOR DRAINS AND ROOF DRAINS

Cleanouts, floor drains and roof drains shall be by one manufacturer if possible. Acceptable manufacturers are Josam, MIFAB, Sioux Chief, Smith, Wade, Watts, and Zurn. [Provide long sweep fittings for cleanout extensions; short sweeps at start of runs or change in direction and combination wye and eight bend fittings in horizontal runs. Install cleanouts with a minimum of 18 inches clear all around, consult local codes for other requirements, for easy system maintenance. Install plug with Teflon joint compound.

Floor Drains: As scheduled on the drawings.

Floor Cleanouts: As scheduled on the drawings. Install cleanouts at points as noted on the drawings, at the building exit; at a minimum of every 50 feet in horizontal soil and waste lines; and at turns of pipe greater than 45 degrees cleanouts shall be full size of the pipe up to 4 inches, and 4 inch size for pipes larger than 4 inches. Determine the type of floor covering to be used at each floor cleanout location and provide top with variations suitable for floor covering (carpet markers, recessed for tile and scoriated for unfinished floor). Rough-in and install each floor cleanout flush with the finished floor construction.

Exterior Cleanouts: As scheduled on the drawings. Install cleanouts at points as noted on the drawings, at the building exit; at a minimum of every 100 feet in horizontal soil, waste and storm service lines. Embed each exterior cleanout in an 18 inch x 18 inch x 8 inch block of concrete, flush with finished grade.

Wall Cleanouts: As scheduled on the drawings. Install wall cleanouts at points as noted on the drawings; at the foot of each soil, waste or interior downspout stack; at horizontal soil and waste branches longer than five feet not served by a floor cleanout; consult local codes for installation at specific fixture types. Install wall cleanouts above the flood rim of the fixture served within four feet of the floor and install extensions from the cleanout tee to the wall to locate the plug within 2 inch of the wall where required. Install cleanouts on urinals and sinks where required by code.

C. VALVES, STRAINERS, HOSE BIBBS, AND UNIONS

Plumbing system valves shall be designed for 125 psi steam working pressure and 200 psi cold water pressure. Install valves on the hot and cold water lines at the water heater connections and other items of equipment, at branches from mains serving groups of fixtures, and at other places indicated or required by the installation to allow ease of future maintenance. Submit certification that valves, fittings and specialties comply with NSF 61 Annex G and / or NSF 372. Except for the following: Hose bibbs, hydrants, backflow preventers isolating irrigation or mechanical make-up systems, emergency mixing valves and trap primers.

Ball Valves Class 150, two piece lead free cast bronze body, with sweat ends, chrome plated bronze ball with conventional port, 600 psi, blow-out proof stem by Apollo # 70-LF-200, or Nibco S-585-70.

Swing Check Valves 2 inch and Smaller: Class 125, lead free cast bronze body and with sweat ends by Apollo # 163S-LF, or Nibco # S-413-Y-LF. Install in horizontal pipe runs.

Swing Check Valves 2-1/2 inch and Larger: Class 125, cast iron body with brass trim by Apollo # 910-f or Nibco # F-918. Install in horizontal pipe runs.

Lift Check Valves 2 inch and Smaller: Class 125, lead free cast bronze body, stainless steel spring and with sweat ends by Nibco # S-413-Y-LF. Install in vertical pipe or in horizontal runs where required.

Strainers: Strainers 2 inch and smaller shall be Watts #LFS777SI with lead free cast bronze body and soldered ends, brass cap and Monel 40 mesh screen. Strainers 2-1/2 inch and larger shall be Watts #77F-DI-FDA-125 with flanged iron body with fused FDA epoxy coating, bolted iron cap and stainless steel screen with 1/16 inch perforations. Strainers size 2-1/2 inch and larger shall have a 1 inch blow-off line with a 1 inch gate valve connected to the blow-off connection and shall be extended to the nearest floor drain.

Drain Valves and Interior Hose Bibbs: As specified on the drawings by Prier or equal by Woodford or Watts.

Exposed Interior Hose Bibbs: As specified on the drawings by Chicago or equal by Speakman, T&S Brass or Zurn.

Hot & Cold Water Mixing Hose Bibbs: As specified on the drawings by Chicago or equal by Speakman, T&S Brass or Zurn.

Wall Hydrants: As specifed on the drawings by Prier or equal Woodford, Josam, Prier, Wade, Watts or Zurn. Provide accessible shutoff valve and water hammer arrestor inside building.

Unions: Ferrous unions shall be Crane or equal, combination iron and brass, ground joint with screwed ends. Copper unions shall be streamline or equal, cast bronze sweat type with ground joint. Ferrous to copper unions shall be universal controls or equal, dielectric type with threaded nylon insert.

D. SYSTEM ACCESSORIES

Thermometers shall be American 3 inch bi-metal dial type with separable socket, and shall be installed where indicated or required.

Pressure gauges shall be Ashcroft 3 inch dial type with shut-off cock, and shall be installed where indicated or required.

Backflow Preventers: Shall be of the type as scheduled and indicated on the drawings by Watts, Conbraco, Febco or Wilkins.

Trap primers shall be as specified on the drawings, Precision Plumbing Products "Prime Rite" or equal by Mifab or Sioux Chief with brass body and integral vacuum breaker. Provide distribution box where more than one trap is indicated to be primed on the drawings. Provide access panel where required.

PLUMBING FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT

Vitreous china fixtures shall be of the best grade vitreous ware, without pit holes or blemishes, and the outlines shall be generally true. The engineer reserves the right to reject any pieces which, in his opinion, are faulty. Fixtures set against walls shall have ground backs and shall be caulked with silicone sealant of a matching color.

shower valves and heads or flush valves.

Fixture P-traps shall be 17 gauge brass body with cleanout, 17 gauge seamless tubular wall bend with cast brass slip nut, shallow steel flange, all chrome plated by McGuire, Brass Craft, Dearborn Brass, EBC, Proflo, Watts Brass and Tubular or Zurn.

Hot Water Generators: Automatic, factory assembled, skid mounted, commercial steam to hot water type. Provide with integral electronic controls with adjustable thermostat, high temperature cut out, capillary sensing bulb and strainer upstream, thermometer, T&P valve, removable double wall heat exchanger with steam in the tubes with 3/4" seamless copper 20bWg tubes and bronze tube sheet and relief valve, 150 psig ASME stamped all "AQUAPLEX" stainless steel tank with 25 year warranty, factory insulation and jacket panels, 23" diameter tank access and drain valve. Furnish with float and thermostatic steam trap and auxillary inlet steam trap. Hot Water Generator Package as scheduled on the drawings by PVI or Armstrong.

Vacuum Relief Valve: Lead free brass body meeting ANSI Z21.22 with silicon disc. Valve shall open at 0.5 inches HG vacuum and be rated for 200 psig working pressure and 250 F operating temperature by Apollo #37, Cash ACME #VR801, Watts #N36 or Wilkins #VR-10. Install in cold water supply to each water heater downstream of the shutoff and check valves

Expansion Tank: Expansion tank shall be Amtrol "Therm-X-Trol" as scheduled on the drawings or equal by Armstrong, Bell & Gossett, Proflo, Taco, or Watts. Unit shall be constructed of welded carbon steel ASME labeled for 150 psig working pressure, with a FDA approved butyl rubber diaphragm, taps for pressure gage, air charging fitting, and drain fitting. Support as detailed on the drawings. Charge tank with air pressure equal to the static water pressure.

END OF SECTION 22

A. PLUMBING FIXTURES

Furnish and install commercial grade plumbing fixtures, see the drawings for quantities and descriptions. Provide fixtures of same manufacturer where possible.

Fixtures shown on the drawings or specified herein shall be furnished and installed, set firm and true, connected to required piping services, thoroughly cleaned, left clean and ready for use. Exposed fittings and piping at the fixtures shall be chrome-plated, and water supply piping shall be valved at each fixture.

B. PLUMBING FIXTURE TRIM

Submit certification that faucets and trim comply with NSF 61 Annex G and / or NSF 372. Except for the following: Faucets not used for drinking water or cooking,

Fixture trim shall have the manufacturer's name stamped clearly and visibly on each item.

C. WATER HEATER (HOT WATER GENERATORS)

Temperature and Pressure Relief Valve: lead free brass body meeting ANSI Z21.22, The temperature shall be normally set to relieve at 210 F and the pressure relief shall be equal to the tank pressure rating . Install line size relief valve discharge line to discharge to an approved receptor with air gap.

Recirculation Pump: By B&G as scheduled on the drawings, or equal by Armstrong, Grundfos or Taco, of all bronze construction with Aquastat and/or timer.





06/29/202⁻

PLUMBING **SPECIFICATIONS**

A-014311

PO.2



AND PERMIT


PLUMBING PLAN NOTES

- 1 EXISTING MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT TO REMAIN AND BE REUSED. CONTRACTOR TO FIELD VERIFY EXISTING CONDITIONS AND USE CARE IN WORKING AROUND EXISTING TO REMAIN EQUIPMENT AND PIPING.
- 2 CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE THE LOCATION OF THE ENTERING 3"DHW TO WILLARD HALL WITH EXISTING CONDITIONS AND ALL OTHER TRADES. SEE SHEET P1.1 FOR MORE INFORMATION.
- 3 INTERCONNECTING 3" HOT WATER SUPPLY AND RETURN FROM DHX-1 HEAT EXCHANGER TO STORAGE STANK. PROVIDE UNIONS AT EACH CONNECTION AND VALVES. COORDINATE ROUTING WITH EXISTING CONDITIONS AND WITH ALL OTHER TRADES.
- 4 CONNECT 3"DCW TO EXISTING DCW MAIN. FIELD VERIFY EXACT LOCATION AND COORDINATE WITH ALL OTHER TRADES.
- 5 EXISTING DCW MAIN TO REMAIN.
- 6 RELOCATE EXISTING DOMESTIC HOT WATER RETURN RECIRCULATION PUMP TO BE IN AN ACCESSIBLE LOCATION. COORDINATE WORK WITH ALL OTHER TRADES INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO, ELECTRICAL.
- 7 DHX-1: DUAL DOMESTIC HOT WATER STEAM-TO-WATER HEAT EXCHANGER ON FACTORY RACK. COORDINATE LOCATION WITH ALL OTHER TRADES AND INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS.
- 8 DHX-1: 150 GALLON DOMESTIC HOT WATER STORAGE TANK. ROUTE T&P DRAIN FULL SIZE TO NEARBY FLOOR SINK. COORDINATE LOCATION WITH ALL OPTHER TRADES AND INSTALL PER MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS.
- 9 SEE MECHANICAL DRAWINGS FOR NEW EQUIPMENT INFORMATION.
- 10 CONNECT TO EXISTING 1-1/4"DHWR AND EXTEND AS SHOWN TO RELOCATED CIRCULATION PUMP.



HENDERSON ENGINEERS



WILLARD PLUMBING BASEMENT PLAN

A-014311

P1.1

100% BID AND PERMIT



1 GIBSON PLUMBING BASEMENT PLAN SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"

N T É⊥	HENDERSON ENGINEERS 8345 LENEXA DRIVE, SUITE 300 LENEXA, KS 66214 TEL 913.742.5000 FAX 913.742.5001 www.HENDERSONENGINEERS.COM 2150002327 KS. CORPORATE NUMBER: E-325 12/31/21	
	PITTSBURG STATE UNIVERSITY WILLARD WATER HEATER REPLACEMENT 1701 S BROADWAY ST PITTSBURG, KS DATE:06-25-2021	
	A-O14311 P1.2 100% BD AND PERMIT	

PLUMBING PLAN NOTES

- 1 EXISTING MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT TO REMAIN AND BE REUSED. CONTRACTOR TO FIELD VERIFY EXISTING CONDITIONS AND USE CARE IN WORKING AROUND EXISTING TO REMAIN EQUIPMENT AND PIPING.
- 2 CONTRACTOR TO COORDINATE THE LOCATION FOR THE 3"DHW TO EXIT FROM GIBSON HALL WITH EXISTING CONDITIONS AND ALL OTHER TRADES. SEE SHEET P1.0 FOR MORE INFORMATION.
- 3 CONNECT 3"DHW TO EXISTING DHW MAIN WITH SHUT-OFF VALVE. ROUTE PIPE OVER TO UTILITY TRENCH ENTRANCE WITHOUT INTERFERING WITH EXISTING SYSTEMS.



	HENDERSON ENGINEERS 8345 LENEXA DRIVE, SUITE 300 LENEXA, KS 66214 TEL 913.742.5000 FaX 913.742.5001 www.HENDERSONENGINEERS.COM 2150003327 KS. CORPORATE NUMBER: E-325 12/31/21	
	PITTSBURG STATE UNIVERSITY WILLARD WATER HEATER REPLACEMENT 1701 S BROADWAY ST PITTSBURG, KS DATE:06-25-2021	
K	A-O14311 P2.1 100% BD AND PERMIT	

						-
					TUB	
	MANUFACTURER/	AREA	FLUID	GPM	EWT	
RK	MODEL#	SERVED			(°F)	
X-1	PVI 3600-2 LH 150A-TR	HOT WATER	WATER	60	40	

- PROVIDE WITH "A" CSA-RATED TEMPERATURE AND PRESSURE RELEIF VALVES
- PROVIDE WITH COMMON STEAM HEADER MANIFOLD AND ISOLATION VALVES

MARK	MANUFACTURER /	TANI
	MODEL #	(GAL
DET-1	AMTROL ST-30V-C	
NOTES:		
A. B.	CHARGE TANK WITH AIR TO IDENTICA ASME LABLED	AL PRESS











PLUMBING DEMO BASEMENT PLAN SCALE: 1/4"=1'-0"



100% BID AND PERMIT

BASEMENT PLAN

A-014311

PD1.1